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Statement of Vision, Mission,
Corporate Objectives and Strategy
&

Strategic

VISION STATEMENT

To have eminent position in manufacturing and supplying
quality white refined sugar and allied products and thereby
play an important role in the economic and social
development of the country.

MISSION STATEMENT

We the Management of Enterprise, have set forth our belief
as to the purpose for which the Company is established
and the principles under which it should operate. We
pledge our entire efforts to the accomplishment of the
purpose within the agreed principles. Sanghar Sugar Mills
Limited is committed to:

o Manufacture to the highest quality standards. Pursuing
the improvement in shareholders’ value through team
work and continuous improvement in the system in a
competitive business environment.

o Be ethicalin practice and fulfill social responsibilities.
o Ensure afairreturn to stakeholders.

o Realize responsibility towards society and contribute
to the environment as good corporate citizen.

CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

The over riding objective of the Company is to optimize
over the time, the return to its shareholders. To achieve
this objective, the Company shall endeavor to ensure long
term viability of its business and to manage effectively its
relationship with stakeholders. Sanghar Sugar Mills
Limited shall:

0 Recognize the need of working at the highest standard
to achieve greater level of performance in order to
meet the expectations of the stakeholders.

o Optimize over the time, the returns to shareholders of
the Company.

o Strive for excellence and build on the Company’s core
competencies.

o Conduct Company’s business with integrity and supply
only quality and credible information.

o0 Respect confidentiality of the information acquired
during the course of dealings with the interested
parties and refrain from acting in any manner which
might discredit the Company.

Planning

o Operate within the regulatory framework and be free of
any vested interest which might be incompatible with
Organization’s integrity, objectivity and independence.

CORPORATE STRATEGY

Production of sugar and sugar by-products are the
Company’s main area of business. The Company, its
Director and Management:-

o Believe in diversification through new manufacturing
facilities and through equity participation.

o Recognize the value of technological improvement
and acquire the benefits of current innovation and
developmentin their business field.

o Believe in professional management and modern
practices and use latest techniques available for
growth and overall prosperity.

o Consider their human resource as the most important
asset and help them in providing facilities with regard
to training and updating their knowledge and skill and
keep them highly motivated.

o Believe in integrity in business and the Company’s
integrity depends on integrity of each one of its
employees.

o Consider the sugar cane growers as the most
important part of the business.

STRATEGIC PLANNING

o Keep up with technological advancement and
continuously update the company in the field of sugar
technology.

o Maintain all relevant technical and professional
standards to be compatible with the requirement of the
trade.

o Gauge the market conditions and availability of
substitute products and services and ensure quality
with cost effectiveness.

o Inculcate efficient, ethical and time tested business
practice in the Company’s management.
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The Code of Conduct

The entire Organization of Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) will be guided by the following principles of
The Code of Conduct in its pursuit of excellence in all activities for the attainment of the Company's Objectives for
the Company and its Directors, Executives, Managers, Employees and Workers:

1. Business Ethics:

(0]
0
(0]
(0]
(0]

Observe Company policies, regulations and code of best business practices;

Provide direction and leadership for the organization and take viable and timely decisions;
Promote and develop culture of excellence, conservation and continual improvement;
Develop and cultivate work ethics and harmony among colleagues and associates;
Ensure cost effectiveness and profitability of operation.

2. Understanding of the Legal Duties:

(o]

(o]

Fulfills all statutory requirements of the Government and follows all applicable laws of the Country
together with compliance with accepted accounting principles, rules and procedures required;

Meets the expectations of the spectrum of society and Government agencies by implementing an
effective and fair system of financial reporting and internal controls;

Promote and develop conducive environment through responsive policies and guidelines to facilitate
viable and timely decisions;

Support and adherence to compliance of legal and industry requirements;
Maintain organizational effectiveness for the achievement of the Company's goals;

Acquire appropriate knowledge of the legal requirements relating to their duties to perform their
obligations diligently and in compliance with the applicable laws, relevant guidelines and policies of the
Company and to ensure compliance of applicable regulatory frameworks;

Make dedicated efforts to improve competence and skills in their respective roles through continuing
professional education;

Bring to the notice of the Board, any non-compliance or violation of law or policy by the Company, other
Board members or employees.

3. Personal Conduct:

(o]

(0]

[0}

(0]

Avoid following actions:

Misconduct, intimidating & insulting behavior, verbal onslaught, accusations, misogynist behavior, sexual
harassment, ignorance of regulatory framework, spate communication (letters, emails, etc.) without
highlighting specific discrepancies, humiliation, pressurizing tactics, coerciveness, disruptive and
distractive measures, bullying, disruption of conduct of business, unnecessary interference in
managementissues, unethically tarnishing image of any person;

Exhibit high standards of personal conduct, both inside and outside the Company.

Conductin Business Dealings:

Treat everyone, inside and outside the Company, professionally with respect and equality without taking
improper advantage of their position;

To not involve in such practices like manipulation, misuse of privileged information and concealment of
facts.

5. Safeguarding Company's Assets:

(0]

(0]

Use Company's assets, property, proprietary information and intellectual rights for business purposes of
the Company and not for personal benefits or gains and to make utmost efforts for the protection and
efficient use of the Company's assets;

Ensure protection and safeguard the interest and assets of the Company and meet obligations of the
Company.
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10.

1.

Integrity and Honesty:

o Maintain financial integrity and must avoid making personal gain at the Company's expense by
participating in or assisting activities which compete with the Company;

o Act, at all times, with honesty, integrity and independence to protect Company's properties, reputation
and image, and not get into dishonest practices such as bribery or corruption, etc.;

o Exercise due diligence, objectivity, sound and independent judgment while performing the duties;

o Exercise prudence in effective, efficient and economical utilization of resources of the Company;

o To notinvolve in practices with the intention to get any undue advantage either for himself or his family

members.

Avoid Conflict of Interest:

(o]

[0}

Activities and involvement of directors and employees of the Company in no way conflict with the interest
of the Company. All acts and decisions of the management are motivated by the interest of the Company
rather theirown;

To not getinto any such business or practice that would tend to influence him/her in a way other than in the
bestinterests of the Company;

To not get into any business transaction or agreement that would result in the conflict of interest in any
manner, other than those in the best interests of the Company;

To notreceive gifts and other benefits from the outsiders having pecuniary and other interest.

Ensure Confidentiality:

(0]

(0]

Protect confidential, proprietary and any such information received by virtue of their position in the
Company and not disclose such information to anyone, unless the disclosure is required under any law or
authorized by the Board of the Company;

To not use or intend to use the confidential and proprietary information for gaining unfair advantage and
personal benefits, unless it becomes public.

Diversity and Inclusion:

(¢}
[0}

(0]

To promote diverse and inclusive Board and management composition;

Provide equal opportunities to all employees for employment in the Company irrespective of their culture,
race, gender, caste, and religion;

Promote a work environment free from discrimination, harassment and intimidations of any nature.

Role Towards Shareholders / Members and other Stakeholders:

[0}

O O O ©O

Deals with all stakeholders in objective and transparent manner so as to meet the expectations of those
who rely on the Company;

Ensure efficient and effective utilization of its resources;

Treat all shareholders/members and stakeholders of the Company in a fair and respectable way;
Actin the best interests of the Company and fulfill their fiduciary responsibilities;

Understand and consider the interests of all stakeholders in the success of the Company.

Encourage Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance (ESG) Practices:

[0}
o
o

Encourage to adopt digitalization to enhance efficiency and to protect the environment;

Promote and ensure compliance with ESG policy of the Company;

Encourage philanthropic activities, donations, contributions to charities and other matters of social
welfare, in terms of sustainable practices;

Encourage to publish or disclose regular reports on their ESG targets, environmental and social impact
activities;

Ensure thatthe Company operates in an environmentally and socially responsible manner;

Ensure that the Company adopts most efficient energy management system, prevention of energy waste
and utilization of natural resources in responsible manner;

Ensure commitment to prevent the wasteful use of natural resources and minimize any hazardous impact
of the development, production, use and disposal of any of its products and services on the ecological
environmentin accordance with the applicable laws.
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12. Promoting Safe and Healthy Environment:

o

[0}
[0}

Give due consideration to the safety and health of all employees and to provide safe, competitive and
healthy working environment;

Institute commitment to environmental, health and safety performance;
Uses all means to protect the environment and ensures health and safety of the employees.

13. External Activities and Public Comments:

(0]

To not undertake any external activities during the working hours or, at the expense of Company's duties
and commitments.

14. Avoid Insider Trading & Disclosure of Inside Information:

(0]

To not indulge in insider trading on the basis of unpublished price sensitive information, subject to
exceptions given in the Securities Act, 2015, and ensure compliance with all relevant laws and
Company's policies, on prohibition of insider trading;

Commit to making prompt public disclosure of 'material information’ as prescribed by the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Regulations, if required;

Information that is generally referred to as 'material inside information', the same must be held in strict
confidence until itis publicly released oris no longer considered as 'material inside information’;

To not indulge in buying or selling securities of a Company for their own account or any other account, if
possess non-public information or inside information of the Company or information pertaining to any
potential trade/deal which may affect the share price of the Company. Further, will not pass any such
information to others.

15. Protection against Harassment at Work Place:
Implement a five step framework in daily functioning:

o
o
o
o
o

Raise prevention awareness;

Commit to all aspects of women empowerment;
Implement supportive policies;

Collaborate with other sectors; and

Ensure transparency and accountability.

Commit to eliminate violence and harassment at work and adopt to:

o
o
o

o

Affirm that violence and harassment will not be tolerated;
Establish violence and harassment prevention program with, if appropriate, measurable objectives;

Specify the rights and responsibilities of the workers and the employer, including the right of the worker to
remove her or himself from a situation involving violence or harassment without fear or retaliation;
Establish complaint and investigation procedures;

Ensure all internal and external communications related to incidents of violence and harassment will be
duly considered, and acted upon as appropriate;

Specify the right to privacy of individuals and confidentiality, while balancing the right of workers to be
made aware of all hazards;

Include measures to address domestic violence; awareness rising, leave for victims, flexible work
arrangements, temporary protection against dismissal for victims of domestic violence and referral to
public mitigation measures;

Institute measures to protect complainants, victims, witnesses and whistle blowers against victimization
or retaliation.

16. Role Toward Employees:

(0]

Promote a culture that supports enterprise and innovation, with appropriate short-term and long-term
performance related rewards that are fair and achievable in motivating management and employees
effectively and productively;

Encourage initiatives and self-realization in employees through meaningful empowerment;
Provide pleasant work atmosphere and ensure an equitable way of working and rewarding system;
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(0]

Devote productive time and continued efforts to strengthen the Company;
Make concerted struggle for excellence and quality;

Protect and safeguard the interest of the Company and avoid conflict of interest;
Promote equal pay for work of equal value;

Prevent and end violence and harassment in the world of work;

Promote work family balance and an equal sharing of childcare responsibilities;
Building a future of work that works forwomen.

17. Miscellaneous:

(0]

Employees are required to comply with this Code of Conduct and are personally responsible for doing so.
Employees must comply with any rules set out in this Code of Conduct. Breach of any principles within
the Code may result in disciplinary action and a serious breach, such as if any employee is found to be in
wanton abuse of the Code and their action can cause reputational risk or damage or financial loss to the
Company, may amount to gross misconduct, which may result in dismissal. Further, the Company
reserves the rightto seek redress and damages from such individuals;

Employees at all levels will be required to certify annually that they understand the Code and that they are
in full compliance with it. The Board monitors the findings of this certification on an annual basis;

The Company has in place a confidential '"Whistleblowing Policy' as a mechanism and process to
encourage the reporting of any non-compliance with the Code of Conduct;

Employees agree that all right, title and interest in and to all work product resulting from the course of
his/her employment with the Company, whether generated or produced by him/her or others or under
his/her supervision, for the Company, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all ideas,
designs, concepts, information, data, inventions, improvements, works, discoveries, know-how and all
intellectual property, including but not limited to patent, copyright, trade secrets and other related rights,
belong to the Company exclusively and shall be the exclusive property of the Company and may be used
by the Company at any time without any obligation to pay the employee any compensation whatsoever
and to the extent that ownership of such work product may not automatically vest in the Company by
operation of law or otherwise, the employee hereby assign, and upon the future creation thereof shall
assign, all right, title and interest in and to the work product to the Company and may be used by the
Company at any time without any obligation to pay him/her any compensation whatsoever and to the
extent that ownership of such work product may not automatically vest in the Company by operation of
law or otherwise, the employee hereby assign and the employee shall not use the same for any purpose
other than for the benefit of the Company nor will he/she pass it on to any other person or institution other
than to those approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and the employee will not take the
same with him/her when the employee cease to be an employee of the Company for any reason
whatsoever and the employee shall take all steps and shall execute all such documents as may be
necessary or reasonably required by the Company, at the expense of the Company, to procure and
ensure that the Company obtains and retains complete and exclusive legal title to any such invention or
improvement and the employee shall assist the Company in obtaining, securing and enforcing the
abovementioned intellectual property rights as is needed by the Company.

This Code may be amended, modified or waived only by the Company's Board of Directors and must be
publically disclosed, if required by any applicable law and or regulations. As a general Policy, the Board
will not grant waivers to the Code and waiver may be considered only case to case basis.
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SANGHAR SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Notice of the Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that 39th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders of the Sanghar Sugar Mills
Limited (the Company) will be held on Monday January 27, 2025 at 11:30 a.m. at 3rd Floor, PSX Auditorium,
Pakistan Stock Exchange Building (Administration Block), Stock Exchange Road, Karachi and also through video
link facility to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To confirm the minutes of Annual General Meeting of the Company held on January 27, 2024.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
September 30, 2024 together with Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon.

Availability & Circulation of Annual Audited Financial Statements on Company's
Website & through QR Enabled Code

In compliance of Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017 read with S.R.O. 389(1)/2023
dated March 21, 2023, the Company is hereby also circulate the "Annual Audited Financial
Statements together with all relevant and or related Reports and documents™ of the
Company for the year ended September 30, 2024 to the members of the Company, through
weblink and QR enabled code, to view and download the annual audited financial statements
together with the reports and documents annexed thereto. The Members may view and or
download through the following links and code:

Weblink: www.sangharsugarmills.com/ Investor Information /Annual Reports
QR Code: [
N
[E]h ke

3. ToappointAuditors for the year 2024-2025 and fix their remuneration. The present Auditors M/s Kreston Hyder
Bhimji & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

4. Totransactany other ordinary business with the permission of the Chair.
By Order of the Board

Muhammad Mubeen Alam
Karachi: January 06, 2025 Company Secretary

NOTES:
1. Transmission of Audited Financial Statements:

The Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2024 have been made
available on the Company's website www.sangharsugarmills.com in addition to Annual and Quarterly
Financial Statements for the prior year's / period's respectively.

Further, in compliance of Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017 read with S.R.O. 389(1)/2023 dated
March 21, 2023 and with the provisions of the Electronic Transaction Ordinance, 2002 that the Annual Audited
Financial Statements together with the relevant notices / reports and or documents of the Company for the
year ended September 30, 2024 has been e-mailed by the Company to the respective shareholders who have
provided their valid email IDs to the Share Registrar and or concerned Participant / CDC Investor Account
Services.

Furthermore, in compliance of Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017 read with S.R.O. 389(1)/2023 dated
March 21, 2023 and with the provisions of the Electronic Transaction Ordinance, 2002 that the Notice of
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Annual General Meeting has been dispatched to members as per requirements of the Companies Act, 2017,
on their registered address, containing the QR code and the weblink address to view and download the annual
audited financial statements together with the reports and documents required to be annexed thereto under
the CompaniesAct, 2017.

Closure of Share Transfer Books:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 20-01-2025 to 27-01-2025 (both days
inclusive). Physical Transfers/CDS Transactions IDS received in order, in all respects, at the close of the
Business on 18-01-2025 at the Company's Share Registrar M/s Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Limited,
Karachi Chamber, Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi, will be considered for attending and voting at Annual
General Meeting.

Online Participationin AGM:

The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its Circular No. 4 dated February 15, 2021 has
directed the listed companies to ensure the participation of members in General Meeting through electronic
means as a regular feature in addition to holding physical meetings. Therefore, the Members will also be able
to participate in the AGM proceedings after completing all the formalities required for the verification and
identification of the Members for online login participation.

For this purpose, Members are requested to get their particulars registered with the Company by sending
email on "info@sangharsugarmills.com" mention in the subject that "AGM January 2025" and can also be
registered by sending the following details through courier / post at the registered Office of the Company,
addressed to Company Secretary. Following details are required:

Member Name CNIC No. Folio / CDS No. Email ID Cell No.

Video-link and login credentials and time will be shared with only those shareholders / proxies (must submit
proxy form) whose details as stated above, must received by us at least 48 hours before the time of this
meeting. Incomplete, suspicious and details received after the expiry of time period will not be entertained.

Members are also required to attach the copy of their CNIC and where applicable, copy of CNIC of member(s)
of whom they hold proxy(ies) while sending the information. Without the copy of CNIC, such member(s) shall
not be registered for the video-link facility.

Comments/ Suggestions for the Agenda Items:

Members can also participate in the meeting through their comments / suggestions for the agenda items via
our WhatsApp number and or through our email (kindly mention subject "AGM January 2025"). Details are
given below:

WhatsApp No. +923002742176
Email ID: info@sangharsugarmills.com

Itis our responsibility that the comments / suggestions of the Members of the Company will be discussed in the
meeting and will become part of the minutes of the meeting.

Voting (Electronic / Postal Ballot):

In order to comply with the requirements of the S.R.0. 906(1)/2023 dated July 07, 2023, S.R.0. 2192(1)/2022
dated December 05, 2022 and the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations,
2018 (the Regulations) and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 the
responsibility of the Company is to provide the right of vote through electronic voting facility and vote through
postal ballot to every member of the Company, subject to the requirements of sections 143 and 144 of the Act.

14
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6. Participationinthe AGMthrough Proxy:

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as proxy to attend and vote
on his/her behalf. Forms of Proxy to be valid must be properly filled in/executed and received at the Registered
Office of the Company at Office No. 204, 2nd Floor, Clifton Centre, Block-5, Clifton, Karachi, at least 48 hours
before the time of this meeting. A Form of Proxy is attached herewith and the same is also available on the
Company's website. CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in circular
dated January 26, 2000 issued by SECP.

7. Submission of copy of CNIC (Mandatory):

The Company's Shareholders who are holding its Share in Physical Form are hereby informed and notified in
their own interest who have not yet provided copy of their valid Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC)
mentioning their Folio Numbers and are hereby reminded again through this Notice and previously requested
through Notices of Annual and Extra Ordinary General Meetings held in previous years, which were appeared
in respective Annual Reports of the Company as well as published in the news papers of Karachi and Lahore
editions and also published through specific notices on several dates, to send urgently valid copy of their CNIC
as mentioned above, to the Company or its Share Registrar in order to comply with the mandatory
requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan issued vide SRO 83(1)/2012 dated July 05,
2012 and SRO 19(1) of 2014 dated January 10, 2014.

A List of such Shareholders along with their Folio numbers, Names and Address whose shares are held in
Physical Form, is available on the Company's Website www.sangharsugarmills.com for reference who have
not yet submitted the valid copy of their CNIC to the Company.

8. Attendance at the Meeting:

A Member holding Physical Shares must bring his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC)
and should mention his/her CNIC and Folio No. and sign on the Attendance Sheet while personally attending
this Meeting. Also Member having deposited his/her shares into Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited must bring his/her Participant's ID No. and Account/Sub-account No. along-with original CNIC and
mention his/her CNIC and CDC Account No. and sign on the Attendance Sheet while personally attending this
Meeting. Representatives of corporate Members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose
as prescribed by the SECP.

9. Change of Address:

Members are advised to promptly notify change in their postal address, if any, to the Company's Share
Registrar. Members having shares in CDC accounts are required to have their address updated with
respective participants.

10. Video Conference Facility:

Members can also avail video conference facility. In this regard, please fill the following form and submit to
registered address of the Company 10 days before holding of the Meeting.

If the Company receives consent from members in aggregate 10 % or more shareholding residing at a
geographical location, to participate in the said meeting through video conference atleast 10 (ten) days prior to
date of meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city, subject to availability of such
facility, in that city.

The Company will intimate to Members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the
date of the Meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

I/We, of , being a
member of Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited, holder of (number of shares)
ordinary share(s) as per Registered Folio/CDC Account No.
hereby opt for video conference facility at

Signature of Member(s)
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11. Unclaimed Dividend:

Members are advised to immediately write us in detail for any outstanding / unclaimed cash dividend issued to
you by the Company in past years. Please give complete details duly signed either to the Share Registrar or the
Secretary of the Company.

12. Dividend Payments through Electronic Mode:

In accordance with the provisions and under section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, shareholders are entitled
to receive their dividends by way of direct credit to their bank account instead of receiving them through
dividend warrants.

Therefore, to receive your future dividends directly in your bank account, please give us complete details and
inform us in writing duly signed along with a copy of your CNIC / NTN to the Share Registrar of the Company
and in case Shares held in CDC then please inform concerned Participant / CDC Investor Account Services.
The formis also available on our Company's website and annexed herewith.

13. Consenttoreceive Hard Copy of Audited Financial Statements:

In supersession / partial modification of notification No. 470(l) dated May 31, 2016 and notification No.
787(1)/2014 dated September 08, 2014, the SECP has issued latest S.R.O. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023
read with Section 223(6) and 223 (7) of the Companies Act, 2017 which states that the Members of the
Company who wish to receive the hard copy of Audited Financial Statements and Reports of the Company
instead of sending the same through email, are requested to provide a “Standard Request Form”, duly filled
and signed in all respects, to communicate the need of hard copy, to the Company Secretary / Share Registrar.
The Standard Request Form is available on the Company's website and also annexed herewith.

The Company will send the complete audited financial statements with relevant documents in hard copy to the
member, at their registered addresses, free of cost, within one week, if a request has been made by the
member on the standard request form.

14. Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account:

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company shall be required to replace its
physical shares with book-entry form. Therefore, the Shareholders having physical shareholding are
encouraged to open CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or investor account directly with CDC to place
their physical shares into scrip less form, this will facilitate you in many ways, including save custody and sale of
shares, any time they want, as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per the existing regulations of
the authorities.

*hkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

For any query and or information, members may contact to the Company or our Share Registrar at the following
address:

Registered Office of the Company:

Office No. 204, 2nd Floor, Clifton Centre,
Block - 5, Clifton, Karachi.

Phone: 021 35371441 to 43 (3 lines)
Fax: 021 35371444.

Website: www.sangharsugarmills.com,
E-mail: info@sangharsugarmills.com

Share Registrar of the Company:

Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Limited,
Karachi Chambers, Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi.
Phone: 021 32424826, Fax: 021 32424835.
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Chairman's Review

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am presenting the audited financials and other information for the year
ended September 30, 2024 and the overall performance of the Board and effectiveness of the role played by
the Board in achieving the Company's Goals, Corporate Objectives and Strategy based on Strategic
Planning which are in line with the Vision and Mission of the Company.

The Pakistan's economy is transitioning into the recovery phase, emphasized by a significant milestone
achieved through the final review of the IMF's Stand-By Arrangement (SBA) program subject to a series of
conditionality. These include increasing energy prices by reducing the cost of subsidies, fiscal reforms, a
market-determined exchange rate policy, broaden tax base, and privatization of state-owned enterprises and
tax compliances.

During the year 2023-24, the Company has faced the main challenge of the rising raw material prices,
depreciating currency, rising cost of doing business and intense competition amongst the mills for sugarcane
procurement which resulted in high sugarcane procurement cost and other cost of production. The selling
price of sugar, in local market was lowered the cost of production during the financial year and export of sugar
through export quota approved by the Government has benefited the Company to some extent which
resulted in alleviate the losses of the Company and enhanced cash-flows to the Company and gives benefits
to the industry and economy of the Country, as a whole.

Your Company was able to crush 515,994.296 M. Tons of sugarcane compared with 406,402.792 M. Tons of
sugarcane in the previous crushing period, average crushing per day has been increased to 5,431.52 M.
Tons per day from 4,781.20 M. Tons per day of the previous crushing period, produced 52,293.500 M. Tons of
sugar at the recovery rate of 10.135% as compared with 41,711.250 M. Tons of sugar produced at the
recovery rate of 10.263% in the previous crushing period. The Company has faced this year, a challenging
business environment and reported a loss before all taxes amounted to Rs. 80,321 thousand as compared
with profit before all taxes amounted to Rs. 132,451 thousand for the previous year.

| am also delighted to report that your Company has achieved the 1st Award in the category of Profit before
Tax for the year 2023 by Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy for Corporate Social Responsibility Activities and
our CSR efforts continued to proudly support a worthy spectrum of reputable not-for-profit causes during the
year.

The Board is knowledgeable about the Company's current business activities including strengths and
weaknesses and has an effective process for tracking activity with performance. The Board has completed
its self evaluation and also assessed the performance of the Chief Executive Officer for the year 2023-24 and
I would like to inform you that the overall evaluation and performance measured on the basis of approved
criteria for the year was satisfactory.

The Board recognizes that well-defined corporate governance processes are vital to enhancing corporate
accountability and is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance to preserve and
maintain stakeholder value. The Board has performed its duties and responsibilities diligently and
contributed effectively in guiding the Company in strategic and governance matters. All Board members,
including independent directors, fully participated in and contributed to the decision making process of the
Board. The Board has established policies that covers all major areas of Board's responsibilities and
operations of the Company.

The Board has afiduciary responsibility for the proper direction and control of the activities of the Company. In
addition, the Board members also undertook the key activities i.e. attended Board meetings to actively
participate in its proceedings, ensured that the Company complies with all the regulatory requirements and
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best practices, ensured appropriate measures were in place for safeguarding of the Company's assets,
ensured that the identification and control of the Company's business risks, the integrity of management
information systems and transparent reporting to shareholders.

The Board is aware that Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) initiatives help the businesses to
attract investors, build customer loyalty, improve financial performance and make operations sustainable.
The Company's ESG strategy adjusts environmental, social and governance practices to increase business
sustainability and conducting business in a way that provides long-term value. The Company's ESG plan
demonstrates our commitment to risk management, cost reduction and care for the environment. The
Company has a strong stance on socio economic issues including customer satisfaction, waste
management, equality, diversity and inclusion. By embedding ESG principles into our core strategy, we are
committed to building a sustainable and equitable future. This focus on ESG will enhance our evaluation
beyond financial performance.

| have strong confidence that the Company will continue to grow and Board will play its strategic role in
assuring sustainable growth of the business and to maximize return for its shareholders. As an Organization,
we firmly believe in upholding our core values, adapting to change and evolving for the better and operating
with integrity and responsibility.

I would like to place on record, my sincere appreciation for devotion of duty, loyalty and hard work of the
executives, officers, staff members, workers and thanks to all the Government functionaries, banking and
non-banking financial institutions, suppliers and shareholders for smooth running of the Company's affairs
and hope that they will continue for enhancement of productivity with great zeal and spirit under the blessings
of Aimighty Allah.

Ghulam Dastagir Rajar
Karachi: December 30, 2024 Chairman
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Directors' Report

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present 39th Annual Report with the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2024.

PRINCIPALACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of sugar and sale of its by-products i.e.
molasses and bagasse. The Company has also installed bagasse fired transmission equipment to sell
surplus electric power, as and when available during season. The manufacturing facilities are located at
Sanghar Sindhri Road, Deh Kehore, District Sanghar in the province of Sindh.

OVERVIEW OF SUGAR INDUSTRY

Pakistan is the 7th largest producer of sugar in the world and sugarcane is the Country's second most
important cash crop after cotton. The next two consecutive seasons will be an increase in the output because
of a somewhat better yield and a significant increase in the crop acreage, coupled with an expected surge in
the cane price, ensuring full and timely payments to the growers.

Like wheat, sugarcane is also a political crop, and the Federal Government is heavily occupied with the sugar
industry. It regulates the commissioning of a factory, trade and prices, thus influencing crop growers'
decisions in one way or another. It also controls the import and export of sugar to maintain prices in the
domestic market ata “reasonable” level.

Owing to the surplus sugar stock, selling prices are currently below the
cost of production, which may lead to losses for the sector

The sugar industry began its crushing season for 2023-24 with a carryover stock of 0.7 Min Tons. The total
sugar production in the year is over 6.84 Min Tons taking the total available stock to over 7.54 MIn Tons. In
view of the projected domestic consumption of 6.1 MIn Tons for the ongoing year, the country will have around
1.5 Min Tons surplus.

The millers petitioned the Government for months to export at least 1 Min Tons of the surplus to earn around
$1.2 billion in foreign exchange. They called for a policy of exporting the surplus sugar in two instalments
without any subsidy so that the exchequer could get the best benefit from the good prices in the international
market.

They argued that India's focus on manufacturing value-added goods rather than exporting sugar created a
demand-supply gap in the international market, and the Government should take advantage of this
opportunity to export surplus sugar. The industry managed only permission to export 0.15 Min Tons up-to
September 30, 2024 and subsequently permission granted up-to 0.64 Min Tons, which became aggregate of
0.790 Min Tons (as of today), as the Government feared the export could lead to price escalation in the
domestic market.

Because of surplus sugar stock, the selling prices are currently below the cost of production. As a result, there
will be massive losses for the industry and bank defaults on working capital loans. Resultantly, sugar mills
might not be able to operate in the forthcoming crushing season and the sugarcane farmers will not get their
deserved prices and timely payments.

Further, major sugar production has consumed industrially, while households mostly use it for tea & sweet
dishes. Approximately 18% Sales Tax and Rs. 15.00 per Kg of Federal Excise Duty are levied on each kilo-
gram of sugar and the Government instead of exempting households from taxes, is controlling sugar prices
for the benefit of industrial consumers, disturbing the whole sugar value chain.
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OPERATING RESULTS & ITS REVIEW

2023-2024 2022-2023
Season started on 12-11-2023 25-11-2022
Season completed on 14-02-2024 17-02-2023
Duration of crushing days 95 85
Sugarcane crushed (Metric Tons) 515,994.296 406,402.792
Average daily crushing (Metric Tons) 5,431.52 4,781.21
Cane sugar produced (Metric Tons) 52,293.50 41,711.25
Sucrose recovery (%) 10.135 10.263

Your Company was able to crush 515,994.296 M. Tons of sugarcane compared with 406,402.792 M. Tons of
sugarcane in the previous crushing period, average crushing per day has been increased to 5,431.52 M.
Tons per day from 4,781.20 M. Tons per day of the previous crushing period, produced 52,293.500 M. Tons of
sugar at the recovery rate of 10.135% as compared with 41,711.250 M. Tons of sugar produced at the
recovery rate of 10.263% in the previous crushing period.

FINANCIAL RESULTS & ITS REVIEW

The key financial figures of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2024 along with the
comparatives for the corresponding year are summarized as under:

2024 2023
(Rupees '000)
(Loss) / Profit before levies & taxation (80,321) 132,451
Levies 79,387 62,529
(Loss) / Profit before taxation (159,708) 69,922
Taxation (20,048) (34,961)
(Loss) / Profit for the year (139,660) 104,883
(Loss) / Earnings per share basic and diluted (Rupees) W T 878

During the year, the Company has incurred loss before levies & taxation amounted to Rs. 80,321 thousand
compared with profit before levies & taxation amounted to Rs. 132,451 thousand mainly due to the noticeable
increase in cost of production and finance cost incurred on borrowings from financial institutions. Sale of by-
products i.e. molasses & baggasse has considerably contributed in lowering the cost of production of the
Company. It is worthwhile to mention here that, this year, the turnover of the Company is highest ever when
compared with previous years and further the sugar sale in terms of value has been increased to 38.07 % as
compared to last year while in terms of quantity, only 7.77 % has been increased and simultaneously the only
average cost of production has been increased to 38.30 % which coupled with other expenses, overheads
and others resulted a loss at the end of the financial year. However, the export of some sugar has give benefit
to compensate the losses incurred to some extent.

The Government has continued the long debated ‘mismatch’ in the policy while fixing the minimum price of
sugarcane whereas adopting a free market policy with regard to price of sugar. This is evident from the fact
that though prices of sugar was not so high, the Government of Sindh enhanced the price of sugarcane very
significantly and has announced the minimum price of cane at Rs. 425 per 40 k.g. which was high by Rs. 123
per 40k.g. (as compared to previous season) and greatly affect the cost of production. The Government
exercises control over the price of sugarcane to protect the interest of the growers, but similar practice is not
exercised over the price of sugar to have a win-win position for all the stakeholders.
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COMMENTS ONAUDITORS' REPORT

The statutory auditors of the Company emphasizing the matter in their report regarding non-provision of
Rs. 22 per maund for the season 2017-18, in this regards, we would like to inform you that your financials are
prepared by taking sugar cane purchased at Rs. 160 per 40 k.g. in the light of the interim order passed by the
Honourable High Court of Sindh with the consent of all the stakeholders, we hope that considering the
continued depressed economic condition of the sugar industry, the final decision by the Honourable Courts
are likely to be in line with the consent order.

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Board of Directors and the Company remain committed to the principles of good corporate management
practice with emphasis on transparency and disclosures. The Board and management are cognizant of their
responsibilities and monitor the operations and performance to enhance the accuracy, comprehensiveness
and transparency of financial and non-financial information.

The Company is fully compliant with the Code of Corporate Governance and as per the requirements of the
listing regulations, following specific statements are being given hereunder:

o The Financial Statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

o  Properbooks of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

o  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied, other than disclosed in note 2.4.1 and
note 33.1 of the annexed financial statements, in preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

o International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of Financial Statements and there is no departure there from.

o Thesystemofinternal controlis sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
o0 There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as going concern.

o There has been no material departure from the best practices of the Corporate Governance as detailed
in the Regulations.

o0 TheKey Operating and Financial Data for last ten years in summarized form are annexed.

o0 There are no statutory over dues otherwise than those disclosed in the financial statements and
statutory payments due on account of taxes duties, levies and charges are being made in the normal
course of business.

o  Anunfunded Gratuity Scheme is in operation for all permanent eligible employees and also the Leave
Encashment Scheme for eligible employees to be paid at the time of retirement or leaving the Company.
Provision are made annually to cover the obligation on the basis of actuarial valuation, related details of
which are mentioned in the notes to the Financial Statements.

o  ThePattern of Shareholdingis annexed.

o} In terms of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the
Regulations), the Company shall ensure that all the directors on their Board have acquired the
prescribed certification under Director Training Program. As at the year end, the four Directors on the
Board are Certified Directors and Haji Khuda Bux Rajar has the prescribed education and required
experience for exemption under the said Regulations, accordingly he is exempted from attending
Directors' Training Program. Subsequent to the year end, the directors namely: Mr. Mehmood Alam
and Ms. Misbah have attended and completed Directors' Training Course conducted by institute
authorized by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

o The Board strives to continuously improve its and Board Committees' effectiveness. Board has
developed a mechanism as required under the Code of Corporate Governance to undertake annual
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evaluation to assess Board's and its Committees' performance. The Board also reviews developments
in corporate governance to ensure that the Company always remains aligned with best practices.

o} Other than disclosed in the Pattern of Shareholding, to the best of our knowledge, the Directors,
Executives and their spouses and their minor children have not undertaken any other trading of
Company's shares during the year.

o} Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 for the yearis annexed with the Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & ADHERENCE TO BEST PRACTICES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has a long history of adherence to high standards of ethical practices, and it continues to
uphold these standards going forward. The Board defines a path of continuous improvement by constantly
challenging existing processes and the Board has fiduciary responsibility for the proper direction and control
of the activities of the Company. This responsibility includes such areas of stewardship as the identification
and control of the Company's business risks, the integrity of management information systems and
transparent reporting to shareholders.

The Corporate Governance structure of the Company is based on the Articles of Association as well as
statutory, regulatory and other compliance requirements applicable to companies listed on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange and the same is complemented by several internal procedures including a risk assessment
and control system, as well as system of assurance on compliance with the applicable laws, regulations and
the Company's Code of Conduct.

COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

The Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 requires that the Board of
Directors develop a formal Code of Conduct for its directors, senior management and other employees to
articulate expected behavior, promote ethical culture in the Company and prevent conflict of interest in their
capacity as member of the Board and senior management.

In this regards, the Company aims at maintaining the Organizational Culture that Promotes Transparency
and Accountability through honesty, integrity and diligence in dealing with employees, customers, financial
market, government, regulatory authorities and other stakeholders. The Board of Directors has approved the
“Code of Conduct” which is annexed in the Annual Report and also available on website of the Company.

NUMBER OF DIRECTORS

The total number of Directors are as follows:

a) Male: Six

b) Female: One
COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
After Election of Directors as at November 02, 2023, the composition of Board is as follows:

Name of Directors Status Category

1) Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar ~ Chairman Non-Executive Director
2)  Mr. Ghulam Hyder Chief Executive Executive Director
3) Haji Khuda Bux Rajar Executive Director Executive Director
4)  Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Independent Director Non-Executive Director
5)  Mr. Mehmood Alam Independent Director Non-Executive Director
6) Mr. Muhammad Qasim Director Non-Executive Director
7) Ms. Misbah Director Non-Executive Director-Female

29



SANGHAR SUGAR MILLS LIMITED Annual Report 2024

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has formed their Committees. During the year, the composition and their details are as follows:

Audit Committee

Name of Members Status Category
1) Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Chairman Independent Director
2)  Mr. Mehmood Alam Member Independent Director
3)  Mr. Muhammad Qasim Member Non-Executive Director

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Name of Members Status Category
1)  Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Chairman Independent Director
2)  Mr. Ghulam Hyder Member Executive Director
3) Ms. Misbah Member Non-Executive Director-Female

Information Technology & Steering Committee

Name of Members Status Category
1)  Mr. Ghulam Hyder Chairman Executive Director
2) Syed Rehan Ahmad Hashmi Member Chief Financial Officer
3)  Mr. Sheraz Khan Member Manager Management Information System

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Name of Members Status Category
1)  Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Chairman Non-Executive Director
2)  Mr. Muhammad Qasim Member Non-Executive Director
3) Ms. Misbah Member Non-Executive Director-Female
4)  Syed Rehan Ahmad Hashmi Member Chief Financial Officer

- Representing Management

Risk Management Committee

Name of Members Status Category
1)  Mr. Mehmood Alam Chairman Independent Director
2)  HajiKhuda Bux Member Executive Director
3)  Mr. M.Abdul Jabbar Member Independent Director

ATTENDANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES
Attendance of the Board of Directors in Board Meeting

Five Board meetings were held during the year. Leave of absence were granted to the Directors unable to
attend the meetings. Attendance by each Director was as mentioned below:
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S. No.Name of Directors Status No. of Meetings Attended /
Total Meetings held
1) Mr. Ghulam DastagirRajar ~ Chairman 5/5
2) Mr. Ghulam Hyder Chief Executive 5/5
3) Haji Khuda Bux Rajar Director 5/5
4) Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Director 4/5
5) Mr. Muhammad Qasim Director 5/5
6) Mr. Mehmood Alam Director 4/5
7) Ms. Misbah Director 5/5

Attendance of Members in Meetings of Audit Committee

Five meetings of Audit Committee were held during the year. Leave of absence was granted to Members
unable to attend the meeting. Attendance by each Member was as mentioned below:

S. No.Name of Members Status No. of Meetings Attended /
Total Meetings held

1) Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Chairman 4/5

2) Mr. Mehmood Alam Member 4/5

3) Mr. Muhammad Qasim Member 5/5

Attendance of Members in Meetings of Human Resource & Remuneration (H. R. & R.) Committee

Two meetings of H. R. & R. Committee were held during the year. Attendance by each Member was as
mentioned below:

S. No.Name of Members Status No. of Meetings Attended
Total Meetings held

1) Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Chairman 2/2

2) Mr. Ghulam Hyder Member 2/2

3) Ms. Misbah Member 2/2

Attendance of Members in Meetings of Information Technology Committee

Two meetings of Information Technology Committee were held during the year. Attendance by each Member
was as mentioned below:

S. No. Name of Members Status No. of Meetings Attended
Total Meetings held

1) Mr. Ghulam Hyder Chairman 2/2

2) Syed Rehan Ahmad Hashmi Member 2/2

3) Mr. Sheraz Khan Member 2/2

Attendance of Members in Meetings of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

Two meetings of CSR Committee were held during the year. Attendance by each Member was as mentioned
below:

S. No. Name of Members Status No. of Meetings Attended
Total Meetings held

1) Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar ~ Chairman 2/2

2) Mr. Muhammad Qasim Member 2/2

3) Ms. Misbah Member 2/2

4) Syed Rehan Ahmad Hashmi Member 2/2

Attendance of Members in Meetings of Risk Management Committee

Two meetings of Risk Management Committee were held during the year. Leave of absence was granted to
Member unable to attend the meeting. Attendance by each Member was as mentioned below:
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S. No. Name of Members Status No. of Meetings Attended /
Total Meetings held

1) Mr. Mehmood Alam Chairman 1/2

2) Haji Khuda Bux Rajar Member 2/2

3) Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Member 2/2

BOARD EVALUATION

Complying with the Code of Corporate Governance, currently the Board approved "Self-Evaluation
Mechanism" for evaluation of performance of the Board, its directors and committees through discussion and
questions focusing on the Board's scope, objectives, functions, responsibilities, Company's performance
and monitoring. The purpose of the evaluation is to ensure that the Board's performance is measured with
reference to overall corporate objectives, governance structure of the Company, statutory & regulatory
compliance, communication and information, risk management, strategic planning, implementation of
policies and relationship with stakeholders.

As per the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 it is
encouraged to have regular independent evaluation of the Board's performance at least every three years by
an external body in accordance with the guidelines provided by the Commission. In this regards, the Board
Members are willing to conduct their performance evaluation based on the guidelines of the Commission (as
and when issued).

DIRECTOR'S TRAINING

The Company is fully aware of the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance. Aformal program has
been conducted which primarily includes amongst other things giving briefings relating to the Company's
Vision and Strategies, organizational structure, role and responsibilities and powers of the Directors as per
the Companies Act including the Code of Corporate Governance and any other regulatory laws applicable in
Pakistan.

As at the year end, the following are the details of Directors who are duly Certified, Exempted and completed
Directors' Training Program after year-end:

At the time of Election of Directors on November 02, 2023:

1. Mr. Ghulam Dastagir - Certified
2. Mr. Ghulam Hyder - Certified
3. Mr. Muhammad Qasim - Certified
4. Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar - Certified
5. Haji Khuda Bux Rajar - Exempted
Subsequent to the year ended September 30, 2024:

6. Mr. Mehmood Alam - Certified
7. Ms. Misbah - Certified

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S (CEO) PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Each year the Board establishes a list of goals and strategies aligned to achieve the mission of the Company.
This helps in assessing how each objective is contributing towards the growth of the Company. The factors to
be evaluated are adherence to the mission, long and short term objectives, ensuring long term profitability,
increasing shareholder's value and ensuring good governance and statutory reporting. In addition, a
separate evaluation questionnaire for Chief Executive Officer has also been developed for his performance.
The performance evaluation of the CEQ is carried out by all the Directors.

ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)

The role of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated and they have distinct
responsibilities and has been informed at the time of appointments.
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Chairman acts as custodian of the Company on behalf of the Board and Stakeholders. He heads the Board of
Directors and is responsible for ensuring the Board's effectiveness. The Chairman ensures the development
of business and protection of goodwill of the Company. The Chairman also controls all meeting procedures
and processes, guiding discussion and decision making along with enhancing relations with members and
staff.

CEO has the prime responsibility of driving for achievement of the Company's vision, mission and its long
term goals. He acts as a link between the Board and management of the Company and communicates with
the Board on behalf of the management. The CEO is responsible for the day to day management of the
Company's affairs and execution of long term strategy and plans. CEO also represents the Company to the
shareholders, government authorities and the public. He is the leader and the decision maker to achieve
targets.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of adequate
internal controls and procedures. The Company has developed a sound mechanism for identification of risks,
assigning levels and devising effective mitigating measures where required while ensuring their
implementation by the Management across all functions.

The Board assumes the overall responsibility of overseeing the internal control process, including its
effectiveness. These controls are documented, responsibility is assigned and are monitored. The Internal
Audit function also assists the Management to achieve reasonable assurance in terms of reliability and
integrity of the Company's financial and operational information, effectiveness in Company's operation to
achieve desired results, safeguarding of Company's assets and Compliance of Company's actions with the
relevantlaws and regulations.

Further, the Directors confirm that the compliance with highest standard of Corporate Governance and
comprehensive policies and procedures on internal financial controls has been approved by the Board and
are in place and have been effectively implemented and monitored.

THRESHOLD FORDETERMINING EXECUTIVE

Pursuant to the requirement of Clause 5.6.4 of the Listing Regulations (Rule Book) of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange, the Board has set out a Threshold for determining an 'Executive' in respect of trading of
Company's shares. The person whose annual basic salary exceeds Rs. 2,700 thousand during the year is
treated as "Executive".

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Code of Corporate Governance requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board for consideration and approval. The
Company has duly ensured compliance of this requirement and all the Related party transactions were
placed before the Audit Committee and upon recommendation, approved by the Board. These transactions
were in-line with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Companies
Act, 2017. The Company maintains a thorough and complete record of all such transactions.

Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

The remuneration of the Board Members are approved by the Board itself. However, in accordance with the
Code of Corporate Governance, it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own remuneration.
The aggregate amount charged during the year for remuneration, including all benefits to the Chief
Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company are disclosed in notes to the Financial Statements.
Policy for Director's remuneration and meeting fee are annexed with this report.

Other Transactions

The Company in the normal course of business carried out transactions with Key Management Personnel
(KMP) / related parties. The transactions reflect economic substance and are executed in the normal course
of business and are disclosed in notes to the Financial Statements.
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KMP are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the entity directly or indirectly.

Name of Related parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions or had agreements and
arrangements in place during the financial year along with the basis of relationship are also disclosed in
respective notes to the financial statements. Contract or arrangements with related parties were in the
ordinary course of business and were atarm's length basis.

MATERIALITY APPROACH

The Board has given authority and powers to the Company's management for taking day to day decisions. The
management, however, observes the approach of materiality in applying power and authority. Determining
materiality levels is subjective and varied between organizations. Authorizations for transactions and
delegation of powers have been define clearly and carried out through formalized process in the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT & SUCCESSION PLANNING

Human resource planning and management is one of the most important considerations with the senior
management. The Board has established a Committee which is involved in the selection, evaluation,
compensation and succession planning of key management personnel. It is also involved in recommending
improvements in the human resource policies and procedures and their periodic review.

The Company is committed to build the better organizational culture that is shaped by empowered
employees who demonstrate a deep belief in the Company's Vision and Values. H.R. Management Policy is
integral part of the Company's business strategy. The Company fosters leadership, individual accountability
and team work.

The Company believes that employees are assets of the Company and have been instrumental in driving the
Company's performance year on year. Their passion, commitment, sense of ownership and team work has
enabled the Company to maintain its leadership position in the challenging market scenario. The Company
has always striven to offer a positive, supportive, open and high performance work culture where innovation
and risk taking is encouraged, performance is recognized and employees are motivated to realize their true
potential.

The Company also believes in pro-active approach towards Succession Planning. The Company recruits
employees, develops their knowledge, skills, and abilities and prepares them for advancement and
promotion into more challenging roles. Succession Planning ensures that employees are constantly
developed to fill each needed role. The Company looks for people who exemplify continuous improvement
wheniitis spotting Successors for future.

Recruitment and Selection

The Company believe in hiring and retaining capable, qualified and potentially useful employees who are
willing to contribute their best to accomplish the objectives of the Company. Appointments of jobs in the
permanent cadre are made by promotions or through direct recruitment by the concerned appointing
authority through the HR department.

Development and Training

Employees' development and capability building across functions and levels remained a key focus area to
build a strong talent pipeline. The Company is committed to invest in enhancing its human capital through
building technical skills and competencies of its employees. With the use of performance management
processes, the Company aims to ensure that all employees know what is expected of them and possess the
necessary skills, knowledge, values and experience to achieve the highest level of performance to their true
potential.

Reward and Motivation

Itis our policy to reward the employees with fair and competitive salaries and perks along with an opportunity
to share in the success of the business in terms of promotions and personal growth. All the elements of the
reward system are designed to support the achievement of the desired behavior, values and standards as
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well as high performance and continuous improvement/ development.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

Our employment policies are based on the principles of equality and diversity. We believe that the elimination
of unfair discrimination in the workplace contributes to productivity and performance as it allows employees'
talents to be most effectively realized. We are committed to diversity, equity and inclusion at work and fair
treatment of all colleagues. The Human Resource Department is accountable for ensuring that these
principles are followed and for establishing appropriate action plans.

The Company is focused on increasing Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DE&I) in the organization and does
not discriminate in its hiring and human resource management processes in terms of religion, race, gender
and physical ability. Policies have been implemented to develop an environment and culture to attract female
employees.

Succession Plan

A succession plan is a component of good HR planning and management. Succession planning
acknowledges that the staff will not be with an organization indefinitely and it provides a plan and process for
addressing the changes that will occur when they leave. Keeping in view the need and importance of
succession planning, the Company has formulated a comprehensive succession plan by focusing on all the
key positions within the Company. The key positions can be defined as those positions that are crucial for the
operations of the organization and which are hard to be replaced because of skill, seniority and or experience
requirements.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The management of Company has the policy for actual and perceived conflicts of interest and measures are
adopted to avoid, identify the existence and to disclose the existence of conflict of interest. No employee will
perform any kind of work (directly or indirectly) for a third party without proper approval. Employees must
notify their any actual or potential conflict of interest situation and obtain an advice or ruling as the case may
be. The primary goal of Company is to manage conflicts of interest to ensure that decisions are made and are
seen to be made on proper grounds, for legitimate reasons and without bias. The Company has set the
procedures to manage and monitor the conflict of interest.

Every Director is required to provide to the Board complete details regarding any material transaction which
may bring conflict of interest with the Company for prior approval of the Board. The interested director(s) do
not participate in the discussion neither they vote on such matters. The Director shall promptly notify or
disclose to the Board any personal or outside interest, relationship or responsibility held by the director with
respect to any potential or actual transaction, agreement or other matter which is or may be presented to the
Board for consideration. The transactions with all the related parties are made on arms length basis and
complete details are provided to the Board for their approval. Further, all the transactions with the related
parties are fully disclosed in the financial statements of the Company.

IMPACT OF COMPANY'S BUSINESS ON ENVIRONMENT

Itis the responsibility of the Company to make the environment healthy and clean. Therefore, the Company
has made serious efforts and are installing equipment to reduce the pollution and making a good impact of
Company's business on Environment. The Company has installed collection units to retrieve oil / grease
e.t.c. from the waste water and ash collectors are also installed at the chimneys to absorb the ash. The
Effluent Treatment Plant has been completed and has also conducted all environmental examination and is
working to reduce the consumption of water by increase in imbibition water temperature at Mill House,
reactivation of cooling tower for vertical crystallizer, by this we are re-cycling water use for crystallizer cooling
purposes. Intake of fresh water is minimized only to make up water loss due to evaporation. Process
chemicals are prepared with condensate water in place of raw water.

Further, our Reverse Osmosis (RO) Plants helps meet our water requirements at the factory premises while
reducing reliance on municipal water systems, thereby assisting in the reduction of water scarcity in
Pakistan. The Company is considerable lighting load, initially all lights were high pressure sodium bulbs, we
have started to replace bulbs with Light Emitting Diode (LED) helping us in energy savings. Variable
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Frequency Drives (VFDs) has been installed on various machines to reduce power consumption.
SOCIALAND ENVIRONMENT RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance, including
adherence to Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) principles. We are implementing policies and
practices to ensure our compliance with all applicable ESG Regulations, as required by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Our environmental initiatives focus on reducing our carbon footprint, optimizing resource usage, and
managing waste responsibly. Socially, we prioritize employee welfare, diversity, and community engagement,
while our governance framework is designed to uphold transparency, accountability, and ethical business
conduct. We continually review and enhance our ESG strategies to align with international best practices and
stakeholder expectations.

Our strategic move aligns closely with the Sustainable Development Goals as they guide our efforts to create
positive, lasting impacts on society and the environment. Reaching environmental excellence is a main
objective. We dedicate significant efforts to address key sustainability-related issues, from biodiversity and
conservation to renewable energy, climate change and emissions monitoring. Managing our environmental
footprint is an integral part of our business philosophy. We are fully committed to carrying out our business
activities in an environmentally responsible and sustainable manner and to minimize the environmental
implications of our activities.

To meet this, we:
o] Actively pursue a policy of pollution prevention.

o] Comply with policies and procedures and all applicable local laws and regulations. Make strategic
efforts to maximize our energy and resource efficiency, lower our carbon intensity and reduce
emissions by managing our usage of energy, water consumption and waste generation.

o] Responsibly manage the land within our operations to protect ecosystems and biodiversity and to
maximize our contribution to nature conservation. Maintain open and effective communication
channels with our employees, contractors, customers, the community and all those who work with us.

o] Provide the necessary resources for instruction, training and supervision to appropriately manage the
environmental aspects of our operations.

o] Plan, review and assess our environmental performance against measurable targets and industry best
practices to drive continuous improvement.

Investigate, monitor and openly report our environmental performance.

Set corporate requirements to assess the sustainability attributes of our suppliers and subcontractors.
Everyone who works for the Company is responsible for demonstrating correct environmental
behaviors and reporting potential environmental risks, including among others employees, suppliers,
contractors and third parties. Managers are accountable for clearly defining environmental roles and
responsibilities.

We comply through following plan of actions:

Indicators and standard protocols follow up
Emissions monitoring and reporting

Waste and water management

Regulation updates, trends and new technologies
Promotion of best practices throughout our operations
INVESTOR GRIEVANCE AND COMPLAINTS

The Company allows full access to all shareholders including potential investors, to call for relevant
information or details on Company's operations and their own shareholding. The required information is
provided immediately or a query / grievance is resolved promptly in accordance with the regulatory
guidelines.

O O O O O
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SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Directors have delighted to report that your Company has achieved the 1st Award in the
category of Profit before Tax for the year 2023 by Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy for Corporate Social
Responsibility Activities and our CSR efforts continued to proudly support a worthy spectrum of reputable
not-for-profit causes during the year.

Report of Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility is annexed with this report.
RISK MANAGEMENT & STRATEGY

The Company's overall risk management program focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's operations. The Company's risk management
policies are established to identify and analyze the risk faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits
and control, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible
for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Company considers the following material risk:
Operational Risk

Operational risk results in disruption of operations due to scarcity of material, energy outrages and dearth of
skilled human resources. To mitigate the operational risks, necessary strategies have been developed and
substantial investments are continuously being made to ensure the reliability of operating plant. The
Company has carried out necessary repairs & maintenance as required.

Market Risk

The Company is not materially exposed to the prices of raw material due to the fixation of prices by the
Government. Strategies has been planned and implemented to overcome the huge cost of raw material.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company is not directly exposed to the risk of exchange rate fluctuation as at the year-end and the
Company was directly exposed during the year due to export of sugar.

Credit Risk

Credit risk relates to the risk that a Company may encounter as a result of failure of the counter parties to
satisfy their debts or obligation in accordance with the agreed terms of credit. To manage exposure to credit
risk in respect of trade receivables, management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's
financial position, past experience and other factors. The Company manages credit risk interalia by setting
out credit limits in relation to individual customers and / or by obtaining advance against the sales and / or
through letter of credits and / or by providing adequate allowance for doubtful debts. The Company believes
thatitis not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Company has insufficient ready cash and encounters difficulty in meeting its
financial obligation. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and ensuring the fund
availability through adequate credit facilities. As at the year-end, the Company has available un-availed short

term borrowing facilities and also has cash & bank balances. The management believes that the Company is
not significantly exposed to the liquidity risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises due to fluctuation in interest rates resulting in adverse future cash flows. Company's
exposure to interest rate is mainly associated with the short term borrowings. The Company monitors interest
rate fluctuation and encounters interest rate risk by utilizing optimal mix of different types of borrowing
arrangements.

CAPITAL RESERVE

Revaluation surplus on property, plant & equipment is presented in the statement of financial position as part
of equity and in the statement of changes in equity as a capital reserve being the part of equity. This surplus is
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a capital reserve and is not available for distribution to shareholders of the Company in accordance with the
Section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION

Due to the loss incurred for the year and minimum cash flows, the Board of Directors of the Company in its
meeting does notrecommend any dividend and or appropriation for the year ended September 30, 2024.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

The Company is contributing to the National growth by sharing its revenue with the nation in the form of taxes,
rates and duties. The Company has accounted for in respect of contribution to National Exchequer in the form
income taxes, sales tax and other levies amounting to Rs. 1,069,222 thousand during the year as compared
with Rs. 666,112 thousand during the last year.

RE-CONSTITUTED BOARD OF DIRECTORS AFTER ELECTION

The Shareholders of the Company in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on
November 02, 2023 elected the Seven Directors for the tenure of three years commencing from November
04, 2023, namely (1) Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar (2) Haji Khuda Bux Rajar (3) Mr. Ghulam Hyder (4) Mr.
Mohammad Qasim (5) Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar (6) Mr. Mehmood Alam (7) Ms. Misbah.

The Board in this meeting elected Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar as the Chairman of the Board. The Board also
appointed Mr. Ghulam Hyder as the Chief Executive of the Company and appointed Haji Khuda Bux Rajar as
Working Director for next term of three years effective from November 04, 2023 as authorized by the Articles
of Association of the Company on the remuneration, terms and conditions, as approved by the Board.
Accordingly, the re-constituted Board of Directors from November 04, 2023 was the following composition:

Name of Directors Status Category

1) Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar Chairman Non-Executive Director

2) Mr. Ghulam Hyder Chief Executive Executive Director

3) Haiji Khuda Bux Rajar Executive Director Executive Director

4) Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Independent Director Non-Executive Director

5) Mr. Mehmood Alam Independent Director Non-Executive Director

6) Mr. Muhammad Qasim Director Non-Executive Director

7) Ms. Misbah Director Non-Executive Director-Female

Re-constituted Audit Committee

The Board after election of Directors has re-constituted the Audit Committee effective from November 04, 2023
for the tenure of three years in order to comply with the provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance.
Accordingly, the Board appointed three members of the Audit Committee having the following composition:-

Name of Members Status Category
1) Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Chairman Independent Director
2) Mr. Mehmood Alam Member Independent Director
3) Mr. Muhammad Qasim Member Non-Executive Director

Re-constituted Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

The Board after election of Directors has reconstituted the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
(H.R. & R.) effective from November 04, 2023 for the tenure of three years in order to comply with the
provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance. Accordingly, the Board appointed three members of the
H.R. & R. Committee having the following composition:-

Name of Members Status Category
1) Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Chairman Independent Director
2) Mr. Ghulam Hyder Member Executive Director
3) Ms. Misbah Member Non-Executive Director-Female
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Re-constituted Information Technology & Steering Committee

The Board after election of Directors has re-constituted the Information Technology & Steering (IT & S)
Committee effective from November 04, 2023 for the tenure of three years in order to comply with the
provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance. Accordingly, the Board appointed three members of the IT
& S Committee having the following composition:-

Names of Members Status Category
1) Mr. Ghulam Hyder Chairman Executive Director
2) Syed Rehan Ahmad Hashmi Member Chief Financial Officer
3) Mr. Sheraz Khan Member Manager-Management

Information System
Re-constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Board after election of Directors has re-constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee effective from November 04, 2023 for the tenure of three years in order to comply with the
provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance. Accordingly, the Board appointed four members of the
CSR Committee having the following composition:-

Name of Members Status Category
1) Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar Chairman Non-Executive Director
2) Mr. Muhammad Qasim Member Non-Executive Director
3) Ms. Misbah Member Non-Executive Director-Female
4) Syed Rehan Ahmad Hashmi Member Chief Financial Officer

- Representing Management
Re-constituted Risk Management (RM) Committee

The Board after election of Directors has re-constituted the Risk Management (RM) Committee effective
from November 04, 2023 for the tenure of three years in order to comply with the provisions of the Code of
Corporate Governance. Accordingly, the Board appointed three members of the RM Committee having the
following composition:-

Name of Members Status Category
1) Mr. Mehmood Alam Chairman Independent Director
2) Haji Khuda Bux Rajar Member Executive Director
3) Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Member Independent Director
FUTURE PROSPECTS

Due to excess production of sugar as compared to the Country's demand, your management see a stable
selling price of sugar subject to the export of sugar which has been currently allowed to the certain limit for the
Country. Your Company has fully availed the opportunity and exported the sugar, as per quota allotted by the
Regulatory Authority. The export of sugar gave benefits to the Company's financials and availed relief in
Sales Tax/FED and earned cash-flows.

Currently, the prices of local market are at lower side while compared with the cost of cane, other inflated
overhead expenses, surplus production of sugar in the country and other unpredictable circumstances
prevailing in the sugar industry which might affect the profitability of the Company.

In the Finance Act 2024-25, a Federal Excise Duty of Rs. 15 per Kg has been introduced on sales to
manufacturers, alongside an increase in the withholding tax rate for non-filers from 0.2% to 2%. These
adjustments are anticipated to significantly impact the Company's profitability. We urge the Government to
reconsider these tax regime changes to ensure the continued sustainability of ourindustry.
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As reported previously, the matter related to the subsidy receivable from the Provincial Government, the
Honorable High Court of Sindh passed the judgment/order in favor of the Company and the petitions stand
disposed off with the directions to the Finance Department, Government of Sindh to re-allocate funds in the
previous year's budget and make payment to Sugar Mills within the first quarter of previous financial year and
this decision will give benefit of positive cash flows to the Company but the implementation on the
Honourable Court's Order is still awaited.

Strategies are in place and are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Company stays on the path of growth
and progress. The focus is on stringent controls on the cost of production mainly through modernizing and
replacement of old machines, lesser interruptions, abnormal wastages, process improvements, energy
savings and high savings in Baggasse consumption through availing and implementing various options and
installing machineries.

Adhering to the guidelines and SOPs necessary to ensure the health and safety of human resources, we are
optimistic that the Company's performance will sustain and further improve in terms of revenue, profits and
liquidity positions.

AUDITORS

The present Auditors M/s. Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire at the conclusion of
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. As

suggested by the Audit Committee in terms of the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors has
recommended their appointment as Auditors of the Company for the year ending September 30, 2025.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors appreciate and wish to place on record their appreciation for devotion of duty, loyalty and hard
work of the executives, officers, staff members and workers for smooth running of the Company's affair and
hope that they will continue for enhancement of productivity with great zeal and spirit under the blessings of
Almighty Allah.

The Directors would like to thank all the Government functionaries, banking and non-banking financial
institutions, suppliers and shareholders for their continued support and cooperation for the betterment and
prosperity of the Company.

For & on Behalf of the Board

Ghulam Dastagir Rajar Ghulam Hyder
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Karachi: December 30, 2024
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Sanghar Sugar Mills Ltd

lST

PLC BY PROFIT BEFORE TAX (PBT)

"The Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited has achieved the 1st Award in the
category of Profit before Tax for the year 2023 by Pakistan Centre for
Philanthropy for Corporate Social Responsibility Activities"
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Report on Corporate Social Responsibility
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Dear Members,

Being the Country's responsible corporate entity, Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) gives back to society
to help and build a sustainable tomorrow. As per Code of Conduct which confirm its commitment to respecting its
fundamental human rights and treating employees, customers and all internal & external stakeholders with
fairness, equality and respect in order to foster an open, transparent and trusting environment which is free from
prejudice, discrimination, bias, harassment & violation.

With the aim to contribute to societal goals of a philanthropic, or charitable nature by engaging in or supporting
volunteering or ethically oriented practices, contributed meaningfully to the society, environment and national
causes by creating opportunities for its employees to participate in socially responsible initiatives, allocating a
budget approved by the Board, establishing an implementation & monitoring mechanism for CSR initiatives.
Undertake activities in a manner that exhibits responsibility towards the environment & society which complements
core business strategy and corporate values. The Company is committed to manage the social, environmental and
economic effects of its operations responsibly and in line with public expectations.

The Company is playing an active role in supporting sustainable community and social development of Pakistan
and its people. The Company believes in the creation of shared economic and social value across the country. This
following Report updates the stakeholders about the steps taken by the Company to ensure compliance:

Education:

Sustainable Development Goal:
- Gender Equality
-Decent Work & Economic Growth
- Quality Education

The Company ensures that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary
education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes and also ensure that all girls and boys have access
to quality early childhood development, care and pre-primary education so that they are ready for primary
education.

With the aim of paving the way for a brighter future and to alleviate illiteracy in the rural areas of the Country, the
Company has launched education program through Al-Qalam Education Systems, Sanghar established in 2008
and is providing education facilities at the premises adjacent to the Mills' Employees' Colony by upgrading
education facilities and provide safe, non-violent, inclusive and effective learning environments for all by the
qualified staff on concessional basis to the children of the factory employees and persons living nearby in rural
areas.

The Education started from a single class room of Kindergarten with admission of 10 students. Now, grows up-to
class 8th having total strength of 266 students, which includes 160 male and 106 female students and having
strength of 15 teachers and staff appointed for the purpose of education in which 03 are male and 12 are female.
Students belongs to the Employee's families and also families living nearby areas. The premises of education is
having beautiful infrastructure, neat and clean environment with availability of all basic facilities within covered
premises viz large size ventilated class rooms, computer lab, laboratory, playground, tuck shop and uninterrupted
power supply. Main emphasis to run the school is to help poor people of the area, to encourage girl's education, to
inspire students to internalize Islamic education in their social growth, attaining self-actualization. Education in
remote areas is a big challenges specially those who are not able to afford the expenses of such a qualitative,
modern education nearer to their door step. In addition to above, various events are being organized like Annual
Sports Day, Parent's Day etc. This year, School management has requested the Company's management to
arrange picnic for students, the Company shares a contribution and arranged facilities to visit Hyderabad and
surrounding areas.
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Medical & Health Care:
Sustainable Development Goal:
-Good Health & Well Being

The Company has made a significant contribution in Medical & Health Care. In this regards, physical along-with
financial support was extended towards the treatment of eye diseases and treatment of blood diseases etc.

Employees' physical and emotional health are also prioritized. Employees also participated from different
departments in Firefighting & First-Aid training.

Employees and their families enjoy play area facility. The Company has arranged sports / recreational activities to
improve the overall health of employees, which allows to interact with each other, developing a positive corporate
culture, wellbeing advantages, enhance self-esteemed and marking work more Entertaining Medical examinations
are usually conducted for early detection of work-related medical ilinesses, so measures can be taken to prevent
serious disability or other health hazard.

The Company is responsive to make efforts to minimize the accidental risks, have necessary medical facilities and
continuously shrine to improve greenery and maintain clean and safe environment around the Mills, better
housekeeping, safeguarding the health of employees and application of the principles of safety in its operations,
the consumers and public at large by following the rules and regulations in this regard. The Company is running
dispensary through a qualified and experienced doctors for its employees and for persons living in adjoining areas.
Adoctor and paramedical assistant are available at the factory.

The Company is contributing through financial donations to the "Kidney Dialysis Centre - Sanghar" as and when
seems necessary.

Purified Drinking Water & Waste Water:

Sustainable Development Goal:
-Clean Water & Sanitation
-Good Health & Well Being

The Company continues to engage in supporting initiatives for water and environmental sustainability, both at
business and at community level. The Company endeavors to continuously improve its processes and systems to
reduce its water usage and also engages with the community and external institutions to support water and
environmental initiatives. The Company focuses on water and environmental sustainability with;

a) Continuous improvementin our processes and systems to reduce our water usage - each year has to be better
than the previous.

b) Community clean water supply schemes - Water filtration plants for communities living around us.

The Company has achieved universal and equitable access to safe and affordable drinking water for all, ensures
supply of freshwater to address water scarcity and substantially reduce the number of people suffering from water
scarcity and strengthen the participation of local communities in improving water and sanitation management.

Therefore, the Company have made arrangement for the Reverse Osmosis Plant having capacity of 5000 Gallons
per day for Mills and surrounding area residents to provide clean and purified drinking water.

Community & Social Development:
Sustainable Development Goal:

-Zero Hunger

-No Poverty

The Company's efforts have primarily on improving the social conditions of the Communities and employees
related to the Company by establishing fair working conditions, ensuring occupational safety, setting social
standard, establishing minimum wages, zero tolerance on child labor and forced labor etc.
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Support the sugarcane growers of the area and provide better quality seeds and fertilizers to achieve improvement
in quality of sugarcane and enhance its quantity and productivity in order to have regular, constant and better
supply in future the major basic raw material for sugar mills.

The management prefers to hire from local communities in the surrounding areas in order to generate / upgrade
livelihoods and the major focus is on education, health and welfare for the underprivileged particularly in that areas.

Tree Plantation:

Sustainable Development Goal:
- Sustainable Cities and Communities
-Life on Land
-Climate Change

Tree plantation is part of our main project of CSR activities. The Company has established green house at the
premises of Factory where we have facilities to grow the plants and research on them based on the local
atmosphere of Sanghar. We have planted several trees in the premises of Factory and nearby areas and distribute
amongst the staff to plantthem, at their living areas to make environment clean and green.

The Company's Goal is to plant 10,000 trees in 2025-26 and over 4,000 plants have been planted in and out areas
of Factory.

Human Resource Management:

Sustainable Development Goal:
-Decent Work & Economic Growth
-Reduced Inequalities
- Gender Equality

a. Employees:

There are policies and procedures which demonstrate the Human Resource department, a philosophy of fair
and transparent appointments on the basis of merit and give objective of performance evaluation, which
ultimately results in the increments, promotions, bonuses and cash awards. Being social responsible, the
Company gives importance on providing an opportunity with dignity to people with special needs who are
trained to serve the Company as a valuable human capital. The Company treats all employees fairly and
compensates them according to the industry practice. The Company provides the benefits such as
perquisites, annual leaves, pick and drop, facility of mess, safe and healthy working conditions etc along-with
group insurance, making payments to Employees Old Age Benefits Institution, Sindh Employees Social
Security Institution. The Company is committed to maintaining the principles of integrity and trust with respect
to privacy of the employees of the Company.

An apprentice training program is in place to provide vocational training to deserving individuals. The program
enables youths to develop skills and knowledge of manufacturing processes.

b. Specially-Abled Persons:

The management of the Company encourages employment of workforce i.e. special person employees living
in the rural areas in order to yield significant gain and uplift their living standard. Currently, the management
has appointed 16 specially-abled persons as an employee of the Company which have disability like
stammered, deaf & dumb, limp (accident), artificial foot, damage eye and polio cases.

c. Women Empowerment:

The Company is in the process to strengthen our policies and enforceable legislation for the promotion of
gender equality and the empowerment of all women and girls at all level and ensure women's full and effective
participation and equal opportunities for leadership at all levels of decision making in political, economic and
public life. Currently, at the top position, one female has been appointed as Non-Executive Director and
became the part of the Board.
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Contribution Towards Economy & Government:

Sustainable Development Goal:
-Industry Innovation & Infrastructure
-Affordable & Clean Energy

The Company is contributing to the National growth by sharing its revenue with the nation in the form of taxes,
rates, duties and other levies.

Pakistan is facing severe energy crises, this is resulting in load-shedding and power shutdowns in all sectors,
whether industrial or residential. Considering the importance of energy, the Company has been heavily investing in
power generation, which includes installation of equipment & machinery, with our manufacturing area for our in-
house consumption.

Assistance To Families:
Sustainable Development Goal:
-No Poverty
-Zero Hunger

The Company has always been active in supporting and providing humanitarian assistance to communities by
providing food, where staff also participates as volunteers in delivering the goods. These packages are donated
directly by the team's of the Company.

Environment Protection:

Sustainable Development Goal:
-Industry Innovation & Infrastructure
-Responsible Consumption & Production
-LifeonLand

The Company has developed water and sanitation related activities and programmes, including water harvesting,
desalination, water efficiency, waste water treatment, recycling and reuse technologies, therefore, the Company
has finalized arrangement for the treatment of waste-water, through Activated Sludge Process (Chemical +
Biology) process at Mills to meet the SEQs requirements of Sindh Environmental Protection Agency.

Final discharge to Effluent water is treated and closely monitored and periodically tested to ensure fully compliance
with SEQS. Overall water consumption has been decreased from previous year. Up-gradation of waste water
recycling plant has been made to enhance recycling process. Liquid effluent is treated in an Effluent Treatment
Plant (ETP) thatis operated through Standard Operating Procedures. Both in-house and external testing are being
carried out to comply with the National Standards. The final environmental hazardous properties of effluents are
controlled periodically and ensured to comply with SEQS before final discharge.

Solar Power Generation:

Sustainable Development Goal:
-Responsible Consumption
-Industry Innovation & Infrastructure
-Affordable & Clean Energy

During the year, the Company has installed 10 KW Solar System for offices of Accounts, Admin, Information
Technology and Cane Departments. Small individual solar systems have also been installed at the Mess Area,
Ware House and 20 Family Quarters of Mill Employees having total capacity of 5 KW.

We have also installed 50 KW Solar Power Generation System for the main factory area and workshop to smoothly
run the repair & maintenance during off-season with-out interruption and to curtail usage of diesel generators as
well as to reduce purchase of electricity from WAPDA.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Plans:

Sustainable Development Goal:

-Responsible Consumption
-Industry Innovation & Infrastructure
-Affordable & Clean Energy

-Good Health

The Company has plan to conduct a two days free eye camp in the month of February 2025 for employees and
persons living nearby.

The Company has planned to install the Solar Power throughout the Mills premises for own consumption, in
different phases and our plan is to install 250 KW Solar Power Generation System, in phases, for the main factory
area and workshop to smoothly run the repair & maintenance during off-season with-out interruption and to curtail
usage of diesel generators. Currently we have installed the solar powers at some areas of Offices, Hostel, Messes
and Employees Colony.

During season the Company's power appliances and plant & machinery are running on own power generation and
the power generation through solar will be transferred to Hyderabad Electric Supply Corporation with the
permission of National Electric Power Regulatory Authority through Net Metering and this will give benefit during off
season through adjustment in HESCO bills, the matter of approvals from authorities are in process and will be
completed soon.

The Company has plan and the work is in process regarding the implementation of the “Digital Transformation”
which is the process of using digital technologies to create new or modify existing business processes, culture, and
customer experiences to meet changing business and market requirements. This reimagining of business in the
digital age is digital transformation. Saving time, cost and empowers team members by automating manual tasks
and integrating data and creating a paperless environment. Digital Transformation can integrate applications,
databases, and software into a central repository for business intelligence. Digital Transformation is not only a
functional unit of the IT Department, it may encompass every department of the Company and can lead to process
reengineering, innovation and efficiency across the organization.

Various initiatives have been taken to up-grade infrastructure which broadly covers:

To increase energy mix from a more reliable and cost-effective source of Energy and green energy. Enhance raw
water availability. Improve product quality via increasing control on factors impacting the quality. Expansion in
material storage capacity to avoid interruptions while minimizing in variations of cost of material.

Expenditures Incurred:

The expenditures incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility activities are disclosed in notes to the financial
statements under the heading of “Other Operating Cost”.

Ghulam Dastagir Rajar
Chairman
Karachi : December 30, 2024 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
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Report on the Company's Environmental,

Social & Governance

INTRODUCTION

“ESG” refers to Environmental, Social and Governance factors that can impact Company's Value and investor
decision-making:

Environmental factors include financially material risks and opportunities such as climate change,
E water, land, air use.

S Social factors relate to society, the rights of individuals and the well-being of the communities within
which a Company operates, such as human capital management, diversity, health and safety.

Governance factors include Board quality, independence and accountability; Board oversight of
G executive performance and compensation; and the Board's oversight of Company strategy, risk
management, performance and disclosure, including disclosure of E & S factors.

The ESG considerations have become increasingly important for companies in recent years as awareness
among investors and stakeholders have been on the rise owing to the significantimpact of ESG factors on the
climate, society and corporate governance.

BACKGROUND & OVERVIEW

Industrialization is a common factor for development of a nation in the modern world but along with its
positive effects on the economy of the country, it has negative impacts on the surrounding environment as
well. These industrial units were established in the residential area without observing the national as well
international best practices to safeguard. The environmental issues have gained great importance world-
wide in recent past and remained the focus of discussions at different forums both at national and
international levels. The environmental problems affects the economic and social life of common man, thus
the Governments try to address them by making appropriate policies and enacting environmental
legislation torespond to international institutions and treaties agreed upon as global partners.

Many developed countries have experienced growth and industrialization side by side, while some countries
have prioritized social indicators over industrialization before moving towards higher growth. Both these
kinds of countries have faced environmental issues during industrial growth but countries with prioritized
social indicators were better prepared to deal with such issues. Pakistan is struggling hard to keep balance
between industrialization and coping with environmental issues through prioritizing consistency in policies
and better coordination among all stakeholders.
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The Kyoto Protocol is an International treaty to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, known to be causing
global warming. The Kyoto Protocol was adopted by UN member countries in Kyoto, Japan, on
December 11, 1997 and entered into force on February 16, 2005. The main goal of the Kyoto Protocol is to
control greenhouse gases (GHGs). Pakistan is a signatory of the Kyoto Protocol. The Government of
Pakistan is in the process of taking steps which are required to be taken to protect the environment at local
level in order to contribute to global environmental protection measures. One important step of protecting the
environment is to limit emissions that contribute to pollution and consequently to global warming. It is under
such international protocols that Pakistan Environmental Protection Agency (Pak-EPA) was established.
Pak-EPA is mandated to prepare or revise, and establish the National Environmental Quality Standards
(NEQS) with approval of Pakistan Environmental Protection Council (PEPC); take measures to promote
research and the development of science and technology which may contribute to the prevention of pollution,
protection of the environment, and sustainable development and guidance to the public on environmental
protection affairs.

ABOUTE.S.G.

The Company is committed to operating responsibly and sustainably, recognizing the vital role that
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) principles play in our long-term success. Our ESG strategy is
designed to create value for all our stakeholders, customers, employees, investors, and communities while
ensuring that our business practices contribute to a more sustainable and equitable world.

Environmental Stewardship

As an industry, we recognize our environmental impact and are committed to minimizing it. Our
environmental strategy focuses on reducing our carbon footprint, enhancing resource efficiency, and
promoting sustainable practices throughout our operations.

» Carbon Emissions Reduction: We are actively working to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions
through investments in energy-efficient technologies and the adoption of renewable energy sources. Our
goalis to achieve reduction in carbon emissions, aligning with global climate targets.

» Waste Management and Recycling: Committed to reducing waste and promoting recycling across our
operations. We have implemented robust waste management programs to ensure that waste materials
are minimized, and we actively recycle scrap materials to reduce our environmental footprint.

» Water Conservation: Recognizing water as a critical resource, we have initiated water conservation
projects to reduce usage and improve efficiency. We are exploring water recycling technologies and aim
to reduce our water consumption over the nextfive years.

Social Responsibility

Social compliance refers to a set of ethical and moral standards that companies must follow in order to ensure
that their products are produced in a manner thatis responsible, sustainable, and safe for workers, consumers,
and the environment. This includes standards related to labor rights, human rights, environmental sustain-
ability, and other critical issues.

» Protecting workers' rights: Ensure that workers are treated fairly and with dignity. This includes fair
wages, safe working conditions, and freedom from exploitation or discrimination.

» Promoting ethical business practices: Help companies avoid unethical business practices that can
harm their reputation and lead to consumer backlash.

» Ensuring environmental sustainability: Company must adhere to environmental regulations and
take steps to minimize their impact on the environment. This helps to ensure that future generations
have a healthy planettolive on.

» Fostering transparency and accountability: Company must be transparent about their operations
and hold themselves accountable for their actions. This helps to build trust with consumers and other
stakeholders.
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» Supporting economic development: Company can help to promote economic development and
improve the standard of living for people in the communities where they operate.

Governance & Conduct

Governance is an integral part of the control framework and is built into all control activities. Governance, is
demonstrated formal executive involvement and support for Controls and Control activities. The control
policies assist in establishing governance and the policies of the Company are further qualified by internal
factors such as policy, directives and mandates. Strong governance is the foundation of our business,
guiding us to operate with integrity, transparency and accountability.

» Board Oversight and Independence: Our Board of Directors is committed to maintaining high
standards of governance and oversight. We have implemented robust policies to ensure Board
independence and diversity, reflecting a range of perspectives and expertise to guide our strategic
direction.

» Ethical Business Practices: We adhere to the highest ethical standards in all aspects of our business.
Our Code of Conduct and Ethics sets clear expectations for employees, partners and suppliers,
ensuring that we operate with integrity and in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

» Risk Management and Compliance: We have a comprehensive risk management framework in place
to identify, assess and mitigate risks across our operations. This framework includes rigorous
compliance measures to ensure that we meet all legal and regulatory requirements and uphold our
commitments to stakeholders.

COMPANY'S OVERVIEW

Building on our commitment to sustainability, we recognize that the transition to a low-carbon economy,
coupled with economic uncertainty and market volatility, demands bold decisions and we are closely
monitoring these developments and exploring new opportunities to align with the global energy transition. As
a Company operating in a developing country, we face the challenge of transitioning to a low-carbon
economy while ensuring food security. To address this, our strategy focuses on boosting the production
resources, thereby supporting the economy and promoting social equity in our region. By increasing the
Country's self-sufficiency, we aim to reinforcing our commitment to sustainable development and national
Prosperity.

We are actively developing strategies and exploring technologies to reduce emissions by using
technologies, exploring opportunities for green hydrogen and process efficiency to minimize the impact of
GHG emissions. Health and safety remain top priorities in our industry, given the challenging work
environment and security risks.

Our programs for social development in our communities and the well-being of our employees reflect our
vision and commitment to mutual prosperity. We are dedicated to promoting workplace diversity and
inclusion, supporting local initiatives, and nurturing a culture of safety and respect. Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) is embedded in Company's ethos, which re-affirms its commitment towards bringing
lasting impact in the lives of unserved and under-served communities.

We believe in building a strong governance and transparency culture to build foundations for a strong
Company. We are fully dedicated to transparency, ethical practices and accountability in all our actions.

BUSINESS INVOLVEMENT

As we move forward, our journey is far from over. There is still much to achieve and we are fully committed to
advancing our efforts with unwavering dedication. We pledge to steadfastly pursue this path, driving positive
change for a sustainable future. To operate successfully and sustainably, we have established numerous
protocols and procedures to ensure safety and security at our premises.
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Input

Value Adding
Business Activities

Output

Financial Capital

Strong capital base and financial
resources having equity and
long-term financings.

Human Capital

Workforce, culture and
investment in skills development
employees and spent on training

and development

Manufacture Capital

Our production plant, with
technology and equipment and
operational offices

Intellectual Capital

Intangible assets, IT
infrastructure, reputation and
knowledge or work-force and

research

Social and Relationship
Capital

Strong relationships with local
communities, suppliers and other
stakeholders

Natural Capital

Natural resources and
ecosystem services. 96.120
Million Gallons water and approx.
138,068 MT of Baggasse
283.080 MW by WAPDA & 35.65

Climate change poses significant
risks and opportunities for our
business model in the medium to
long term. It directly impacts our
raw material i.e sugar cane and
increasing costs. However, it also
creates investment opportunities
in green technologies and low-
carbon ventures.

External risks impact our
business activities and
objectives, while our activities
impact the economy,
environment, and people,
including their human rights.
Focusing on the most significant
risks and impacts is essential to
managing them and creating
value for stakeholders.

Financial Capital

Rs. 6,111,218 thousand net sales.
Rs. 80,321 thousand loss before
all taxes and ROCE by 8.96 %

Human Capital

41 new hires, several training
hours and Rs. 350,790 thousand
paid as Remuneration and Benefits
to Employees

Manufacture Capital

52,293.50 M. Tons Sugar
Produced 24,650 M. Tons
Molasses Produced and 138,068
M. Tons Bagasse Produced

Intellectual Capital

Learning and development.
Improved productivity and
competitiveness. Exploring
diversification and Transition to low
carbon

Social and Relationship Capital

Rs. 5,603 thousand CSR spending
and also spent on procurement of
goods and services. Increased
reputation among stakeholders.

Natural Capital

Y Cusec water discharge, 14.49
GHG / MT emissions of sugar
produced and waste generated.

MW by Solar Power energy Impact on biodiversity and
used. environmental conditions through
emission and Effluents.
SYNOPSIS OF ESG POLICY

As Company, we are committed to deliver strong Environmental, Social & Governance (ESG) performance
that fosters long-term shared value for all stakeholders by integrating ESG factors in the entire business. We
recognize that relevant material ESG issues can meaningfully affect investments and these factors are
critical components to ensure business sustainability, lead integrated research analysis, effective decision
making, efficient stakeholder management and profound engagement with communities & employees to

manage business excellence.

We also acknowledge that being a responsible business, our role extends beyond sustaining business
operations to protect planet and develop people. Therefore, our ESG focus goes beyond applying mitigation
measures, setting forth an ambitious mission in alignment with SDGs and seeking continuous improvement
to contribute towards achieving Net Zero, Sustainable Development and an Inclusive Society.
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RELEVANCE OF MATERIAL TOPICS

We are committed to reduce
emissions from our business
activities.

Opportunities in Clean
Technologies

We shall explore and implement
environmental clean technologies
such as renewable energy as a
replacement to fuel where
applicable to reduce GHG
footprints. We strive for
implementing green building
practices and improving energy
efficiency.

Pollution & Waste Management

Our focus is to implement a
systematic, comprehensive, &
ecologically safe waste
management program that protects
public health & environment, while
fulfilling the regulatory
requirements.

Natural Resource & Energy
Management

We are committed for sustainable
use of natural resources including
conservation of water & other
natural resources, promoting
afforestation and practicing
responsible land utilization.

Biodiversity

Our goal is to have a positive
influence by restoring, maintaining,
& enhancing biodiversity where we

work.

We promote health and safety
culture for entire work force
engaged with our business to
improve and sustain safety
performance while maintaining our
safety targets. To ensure consistent
and safe work practices, we apply
a corporate safety policy through a
comprehensive management
system.

Human Capital

Our integrated theme is linked with
wellbeing of our employees,
culture, diversity, equity & inclusion,
employee experience and
capability to ensure efficient
business delivery. We focus on
hiring top skill, competency
development, reward & benefits
that fosters long term value in
terms of employees' engagement,
generating productivity.

Community Engagement

We take community engagement
as a strategic process with and
through identified groups of people
to create and maintain an enabling
environment where business,
nature and people can exist in
productive harmony to ensure long
term business success.

Social Investments & CSR

We employ the concept of triple
bottom line through our diversified
CSR and Social Investment
Programs to create an impact, to
contribute towards sustainable
development and to create shared
value while addressing the most
pressing social, economic and
environmental issues.

Responsible Supply Chain

We adopt best practices in our
Supply Chain domain, while
focusing on transparency, agility
and sustainability. We align our
service providers and contractors
to adopt best practices that comply
with our business and HSE
framework.

ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL GOVERNANCE
Climate Change Health, Safety & Quality Corporate Governance
Management

Our strong focus is to conduct our
business while complying with all
applicable laws, regulations, policies
and procedures. We have a strong
Governance structure including a
Board of Directors having diversified
experience to provide strategic
direction.

Ethics & Transparency

We conduct our business in an
ethical and transparent manner while
promoting accountability and
responsible decision making. We
have a Whistle Blowing Policy for
ensuring highest ethical and moral
standards.

Protection of Human Rights &
Child Labor

We comply all regulatory
requirements for protection of human
rights while ensuring compliance with

labor laws and child labor.

Financial Performance &
Reporting

We are adopting transparent
accounting and taxation system by
ensuring all applicable regulations

are fulfilled. Our reporting is focused
on the material issues that matter to
our stakeholders.

Stakeholder Management

We pursue strong collaboration with
employees, communities,
shareholders, supply chain partners,
and regulators, ensuring that
practically every layer of society is
involved.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL GOVERNANCE
Water and Effluents Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Economic Performance
In a water-scarce environment like Non-Discrimination Commitment to value creation is
Pakistan, responsible water The contributions of diverse deeply rooted in its vision and
management is vital. Water usage workforce and is committed to values. Economic performance is a
and the importance of sustainable fostering an inclusive environment. | cornerstone of this commitment. The
practices in mitigating water The Company's efforts to promote Company's success in cultivating
scarcity. Effective management of diversity, equity, inclusion and growth for its stakeholders can be
water resources is essential to the aligning with its core values. quantified and assessed through its
Company's operations and its Ensuring fair and equal treatment audited financial statements. which
commitment to environmental for all employees is a key priority. are included in this repc;rt
sustainability. The Company's commitment to Underscores the importancé of
non-discrimination, driven by its ) . -
core values and Code of Conduct, financial f’.ta}t:j'“.ty ar|1d grct)wth as
ensuring a workplace free of bias. essential driver long term
sustainability and strategic
objectives.

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

The Company envisions sustainability as a commitment to managing the sustainability impacts of its
operations, risks, and opportunities posed by the external environment while creating value for the Company
and its stakeholders through responsible business operations and best practices. In response to the
evolving sustainability landscape and the global and national challenges faced by the industry, the Company
has developed a comprehensive sustainability framework. This framework is designed to effectively
manage environmental impacts and risks while capitalizing on opportunities to deliver value.

Our sustainability policy is built upon three main pillars: Environmental, Social, and Governance. This
framework is designed to guide all our sustainability initiatives and our overall ESG. We recognize the
significant challenges our industry faces, such as climate change, the transition to low-carbon energy
solutions and our commitment to achieving Net Zero.

In developing our sustainability strategy and interventions, we evaluate sustainability-related risks,
considering their time horizons and potential impacts on our business. We currently do not have a
mechanism to determine the financial effects of all risks and opportunities except the amount spent to tackle
related risks during the year. We plan to conduct a scenario analysis to assess the resilience of our business
model in the evolving low carbon economy. This will also lead to developing appropriate strategies to ensure
that our approach is adaptable to external changes, including market fluctuations, and aligns with the
transition to low-carbon.

We strive to foster positive relationships with our investors, employees, suppliers, communities, and other
stakeholders while addressing the social, environmental, and economic impacts of transitioning to an
environmentally sustainable economy.

Our ESG Policy serves as a cornerstone for guiding our strategy and business decisions, committed to
preventing and mitigating the negative impacts of our operations and activities. We are dedicated not only to
applying mitigation measures but also to pursuing continuous improvement in alignment with the UN
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). Our ambitious mission includes striving towards Net Zero
emissions, sustainable development, and fostering an inclusive society.

Achieving these goals requires the availability and affordability of new technologies, particularly in
developing countries like Pakistan. This involves addressing energy availability, food security, and
substantial investments in research, development, and capital allocation. Despite these challenges, we
have set targets in key sustainability areas to better manage our impacts and demonstrate our commitment
to responsible business practices.
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Topics

Sub-Topics

Risk & Opportunities

Value Chain

Time Horizon

GHG and
Air
Emissions

GHG Emission
and Air
Emissions

Evolving pressure to de-carbonize, set
science-based targets and net-zero policies
may prompt the Company to expedite the
reduction of production, necessitating it to
bear the transitional costs.

Failing to adapt to technology and market
changes may lead to a trust deficit, missed
opportunities, and reduced prospects for
potentially impacting company value.

Strive to reduce operational impact while
exploring investments in climate friendly
technologies and products. Climate change
poses physical and transitional risks for our
business through rising temperatures,
changing weather patterns, devastating
floods, technological advancements, policy
and legal risks, and market and reputational
risks. Technological investments at plants
and active support through services are vital
to reducing environmental impact and
increasing productivity, directly impacting
financial performance, food security and
farmers' income. The climate related
opportunities include research and
development for climate friendly production.

Own operations,
Down—stream

Own operations

Long-term

Medium-term

Climate
Adaptation,
Resilience
and
Transition

Failing to adapt to climate changes (heat
waves and increased temperatures, water
scarcity, floods) and building climate
resilience and transition may lead to
increased costs impacting current and future
income, cash flows, and asset impairment.
Maintained energy usage and resultant
emissions in line with targets through
effective resource management, regular
plant upgrades and efficiency enhancement
efforts.

Own operations

Medium-term

Biodiversity

Biodiversity and
Rehabilitation

Failure to align with biodiversity protocols
and effectively manage the impacts of
operations on biodiversity, and rehabilitation
to achieve a net positive may put at risk
future business opportunities the imposition
of fines and penalties, and a trust deficit
among stakeholders.

Own operations

Short-term to
medium-term

Waste

Failure to effectively manage and dispose of
waste produced in operations and site
closures can impact biodiversity, water, and
soil vital to the community. This may put at
risk future business opportunities, the
imposition of fines and penalties, and a trust
deficit among stakeholders.

Own operations
Upstream

Short-term to
medium-term

Water and
Effluents

Failure to optimize water use, effectively
treat, and dispose of used water can result
in increased water usage costs, operational

disruptions due to the non-availability of
fresh water, and strained relations with local

communities.

Own operations,
Upstream

Short-term to
medium-term

80




SANGHAR SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

Annual Report 2024

Topics | Sub-Topics Risk & Opportunities Value Chain Time Horizon
Health and Occupational High rates of safety incidents or fatalities Own operations Short-term
Safety Health and could result in financial loss, increased costs,
Safety and Asset | legal liabilities, and damage to reputation.
Integrity and Our work on SDGs, aligning our strategy to
Critical Incident support SDGs and promotion of SDGs
Management ~|@mong corporate Pakistan contribute towards
solving social issues. Offering products to
overcome malnutrition. Partnership with
NGOs to create livelihood opportunities, and
interventions for the provision of healthcare,
education, and skill development.
Employment| Employment Failure to attract and develop talent, lack Own operations Short-term to
Practices Practices of organizational agility, diversity, medium-term
entrepreneurial culture, and the skills
As':sr:c?:t(i)g gfn d required for a Qigitally enabled, I.ow-.carbon
Collective future may impede the organization's
ability to achieve its strategic goals and
Bargaining pursue new opportunities.
Diversity & Investing in employee skills, diversity, and
Inclusion and inclusion for engaged and talented
Work-life workforce to ensure value creation ability.
Balance
Local — Failing to manage pollutants and respect Own operations Short-term to
Commu- human rights at operational locations could medium-term
nities lead to regulatory penalties, public health
concerns, and human rights violations. Failing
to share benefits with local communities
create sense of deprivation among them
which can create social distress resulting into
internal security situation, thus hampering
smooth business operations as well as
reputational risk to organization.
Spent on CSR activities in defined areas to
provide relief to underprivileged communities,
pursuing education and livelihood
Human Non- Failing to respect human and labor rights Own operations Short-term to
Rights discrimination may lead to regulatory penalties, human medium-term
and Equal rights violations, reputational damage, and
Opportunity, operational disruption in conflict areas.
Forced Labor Our work on SDGs, aligning our strategy to
and Modern support SDGs, and promotion of SDGs
Slavery, Child among corporate Pakistan contribute
Labor, Land and towards solving social issues. Offering
Resource Rights, products to overcome malnutrition.
Conflict and Partnership with NGOs to create livelihood
Security opportunities, and interventions for the
provision of healthcare, education, and skill
development.
Spent on CSR activities in defined areas to
provide relief to underprivileged
communities, pursuing education and
livelihood opportunities.
Economic — Failure to create increased economic Own operations Short-term
Impacts impacts hinders transitioning and

diversification, the ability to attract talent
pool, and the achievement of strategic
objectives.

Exploring diversification strategies to provide
sustained healthy returns to investors and
shareholders in complex political and
macroeconomic environments.
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Topics | Sub-Topics Risk & Opportunities Value Chain Time Horizon
Ethics and | Anti-competitive | Failure to comply with ethical practices leads Own operations Short-term
Transpa- Behavior Anti- to regulatory penalties and reputational
rency corruption damage.
g:ggﬁ::::?s Safeguarding the value creation ability
. . taking into account risks. Early adoption of
Public Policy . h
regulations and best practices to
strengthening governance.
Supply — Failure to promote sustainable practices in Own operations, Medium-term
Chain the supply chain may hinder climate Upstream
Impacts mitigation, adaptation, and resilience and
lead to regulatory penalties, human rights
violations, and reputational damage.
Working with supply chain partners for
embracing best practices to manage supply
chain impacts. Sustainability criteria to
include in supplier selection procedures.
Digitization — A major cyber security breach could pose a Own operations Short-term
and significant threat to Company's financial
Cyber position and reputation.
Security Advanced IT controls and firewalls to protect
confidential information. Regular system
updates, audits, and trainings to be
conducted to ensure security.

Emissions & Energy - Climate change

Itis a critical global issue that severely threatens agricultural and economic productivity in many parts of the
world. There is a growing demand to reduce emissions from operations and the agriculture food chain. As a
responsible entity, we have a twofold approach to this issue. Firstly, we aim to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions from our operations. Secondly, we are exploring new solutions for the farming community to
reduce product use emissions. We aim to drive and influence climate action within and outside our
organization.

Our priority is to reduce GHG emissions from our production processes, as this is where our significant direct
GHG emissions occur. The emissions from our plants are subject to control limits set by the Environmental
Protection Agency. We ensure compliance with these limits and strive to reduce emissions further as much
as possible. We regularly determine the total emissions for each plant site and conduct checks to control any
variations. The amount of greenhouse gases is constantly measured and added to determine the total
amount.

The Analytical Test Report 2024 of the Gaseous Emission Monitoring Report (Boiler) is as follows:

Test Parameters Result Remarks
1. Sulfur Dioxides (SO,) 22.00 Within Limit
2. Combine Oxides of Nitrogen as NO% 253.3 Within Limit
3. Carbon Monoxide (CO) 682.0 Within Limit
4. Particulate Matter (PM) 205.4 Within Limit
5. Flue Gases Temperature 155.6 No Guide Limits Available
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The Analytical Test Report 2024 of the Air Quality is as follows:

Test Parameters ~  —seeeee Results -=----- Remarks
at ETP at Boiler

1. Ambient Temperature 27.00 23.90 No Guide Limits Available
2. Humidity 49.00 58.00 No Guide Limits Available
3. Particulate Matter (PM 10) 136.0 108.00 Within Limit
4.  Particulate Matter (PM 2.5) 62.00 46.00 Within Limit
5.  Formaldehyde (HCHO) 0.02 0.01 No Guide Limits Available
6.  Volatile Organic Compounds  0.003 5.90 No Guide Limits Available
The Analytical Test Report 2024 of the Noise Report is as follows:

Test Parameters Avg. Results Remarks
1.  ETP Plant 63.60 Within Limit
2. Milling Area 69.90 Within Limit
3. Near Technical Office 70.70 Within Limit
4.  Near Boiler 80.80 Within Limit
5. Back Side Boiler 68.80 Within Limit
6. Godown 66.70 Within Limit

Energy Consumption

The Company uses Baggasse to produce Steam through Boilers and produced Electricity through turbines
by using steam. We strives to optimize its plants' energy efficiency and intensity to reduce overall energy
consumption and related greenhouse gas emissions. Plant has specific energy efficiency and reduction
targets, and their performance is regularly benchmarked. Company is exploring renewable energy options
at different plant locations to reduce non-production-related energy impacts. While solar panels are installed
in mills area to harness renewable energy, their contribution to the total energy mix is currently insignificant.
The Company aims to explore and implement options to increase the share of renewable energy in its
energy mix.

The Management of the Company dedicated significant efforts to optimizing various plant operational
parameters to pursue sustainable and energy-efficient operations. This comprehensive approach aimed to
enhance energy efficiency and resulted in several successful initiatives. Some of these measures included
the changeover of the Boiler FD Turbine with Motor and the stoppage of Steam Section, which collectively
reduced the overall steam load.

Resources Consumption

Sugarcane is the primary raw material for the production of Sugar. Lubricants and chemicals are used in the
manufacturing process. Packing material in polypropylene bags is used for packing sugar bags.

Water Consumption

Water stress poses a significant global challenge, impacting the environment, health and economy. The
frequency of weather events such as droughts and floods are increasing, affecting the availability of fresh
and clean water. Water is a critical resource for our operations and farmers, as without it they cannot cultivate
and grow crops. We understand the impact water scarcity can have on our business and our water use in the
communities and thus, we are improving our practices and working closely with the farming community to
promote efficient water usage now and in the future.
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We use water primarily for cooling and producing steam and meet most of our water requirements through
canal water. Canal water are cleaned by using various filter systems before they are used in the processes.
Plant has a water intake from a canal managed by the irrigation department. The Company has an
agreement with the department and the meters they installed measure the water inflow. We regularly
evaluate our plant to assess potential water-related risks and keep track of water withdrawal, consumption,
and discharges. We conduct frequent studies to identify opportunities for minimizing freshwater
consumption and increasing recycling. We fully complied with the water withdrawal permit during the year
without any incidents of non-compliance. The Management also work with local communities and other
stakeholders to discuss water availability and quality-related issues. The plant has also installed access
points for filtered fresh water to ensure clean water is available to the communities.

During production, the water becomes partially polluted and must be treated before it can be used or
discharged. This treatment ensures that pollutants are reduced to acceptable limits, as the National
Environmental Quality Standards (NEQS) prescribes. To treat the wastewater, we use Activated Sludge
Process (Chemical + Biology) process at Mills. We also use the wastewater for horticulture purposes at the
plant. The wastewater discharged is largely cleaned and therefore, does not burden the environment.
Furthermore, there was no noncompliance with water disposal regulations throughout the year.

The Analytical Test Report 2024 of the Waste Water is as follows:

Parameter Results Remarks

1. Temperature 18.00 Within Limit
2. PH 6.90 Within Limit
3. Biochemical Oxygen Demand 168.4 Out of Limit
4. Chemical Oxygen Demand 580 Out of Limit
5. Total Suspended Solids 102 Within Limit
6. Total Dissolved Solids 1420.8 Within Limit
7. Grease &Oill 25.3 Outof Limit
Health & Safety

At Mills, the safety and well-being of our employees, contractors, and the communities surrounding our
operations are of utmost importance to us. We firmly believe that any accidents or incidents can be
prevented. That's why we have put in place a robust HSE system and processes that not only help us
achieve our targets but also ensure compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.

The H&S system is derived from Industry Best Practices and International Standards and ensures workers'
health, safety and wellbeing through risk assessment, avoiding incidents and embedding continuous
improvement in the organization. It complies with several regulations, including the Environmental
Protection Act (EPA), Industrial Relations Act (IRA), National Environmental Quality Standard (NEQS), as
well as OHSA Guidelines for Noise in the air. It defines responsibilities and expectations from managers,
supervisors, employees, and business partners. Health and safety practices are monitored and reviewed
regularly at corporate and manufacturing locations. The GM governs the operational aspect of these
practices. HR head at the plant site implements fair labor practices, policies concerning regulations and
laws, as well as other activities for the benefit of the employees. All workers, including contract workers while
working on premises, activities, and workplaces, are covered by the management system. H&S systems are
continuously reviewed for improvement, and new industrial safety standards are adopted to eliminate or
minimize potential harm. Workers' participation is ensured through various programs such as hearing
conservation, heat stress prevention, health and hygiene, ergonomics programs, workplace lighting and
prevention from exposure to chemicals. The formal agreements between our Company and CBA include
provisions related to health and safety. These agreements cover almost all health and safety topics.
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KEY ESG PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Category Metric Measurement Annual, unless specified Response
GHG Emissions | Total amount of Carbon and Green House Gas emissions in metric 757,993 GHG
tons.
Total amount, in CO, equivalents, for Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 (if NIL

ENVIRONMENT

applicable).

Emissions
Intensity

Total GHG emissions per output scaling factor (Sugar Produced).
Total Non-GHG emissions per output scaling factor.

14.49 GHG / MT
14.49 GHG / MT

Energy Usage

Total amount of energy directly consumed.

138,068 MT of

Baggasse
Total amount of energy indirectly consumed. 283.080 MW by
WAPDA & 35.65
MW by Solar
Power
Energy Intensity | Total direct energy usage per output scaling factor. 2.640 / MT
Energy Mix Percentage: Energy usage by generation type.
Self-generation through Turbines 96.093 %
WAPDA 3.47%
Solar Power 0.437%
Disclose the energy consumption from renewable sources as a 0.437%
percentage of total energy consumption.
Water Usage | Total amount of water consumed. 2 Cusec
(Commercial and Non-Commercial use) (96.120 Million
Gallons)
Total amount of water reclaimed. s Cusec
Environmental |Does your company follow a formal Environmental Policy? Yes
Operations Does your company follow specific waste, water, energy, and/or Yes
recycling polices?
Specify the quantity of waste recycled or re-used as a percentage of 100%
total waste for the current and comparative period.
Does your company use a recognized energy management system Yes
Environmental |Does your Board/Management Team oversee and/or manage climate- Yes
Oversight related risks?
Environmental |Does your Board/Management Team oversee and/or manage other Yes
Oversight sustainability issues?
Sustainable Does your company have policies and procedures in place for No
Sourcing sustainable sourcing?
Climate Risk | Climate related transition and physical risks, climate related No
Mitigation opportunities, capital deployment, internal carbon prices.

And adaptation
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Category Metric Measurement Annual, unless specified Response
CEO Pay Ratio | CEO total compensation to median Full-time Equivalent (FTE) total —
compensation.
Does your company report this metric in regulatory filings? Yes
Gender Pay Ratio: Median male compensation to median female compensation 1:0
Ratio
Employee Percentage: Year-over-year change for full-time employees 3.2%
Turnover . .
Percentage: Year-over-year change for part-time employees 1.15%
Percentage: Year-over-year change for contractors and/ or consultants 6.81%
Gender Diversity | Percentage: Total enterprise headcount held by men and women 100% Men
Percentage: Entry- and mid-level positions held by men and women 100% Men
Percentage: Senior and executive level positions held by men and 100% Men
women
Temporary Percentage: Total enterprise headcount held by part-time employees 38.21%
Worker Ratio | Percentage: Total enterprise headcount held by contractors and/or 9.87%
consultants
Non- Does your company have a sexual harassment and/or non- Yes
Discrimination | discrimination, diversity, inclusion policy?
Is there a confidential grievance, resolution, reporting and non- Yes

SOCIAL

retaliation mechanism and procedure to address and respond to
incidence of harassment and violence?

3.36% Men and

Percentage: differently abled women and men in the workforce Nil Women
Global Health & [ Does your company follow an occupational health and/or global health & Yes
Safety safety policy?
Child & Forced [ Does your company follow a child and/or forced labor policy? Yes
Labor If yes, does your child and/or forced labor policy also cover suppliers and No

vendors?

Corporate Social

Please share a list of CSR activities undertaken along with total time

Refer to CSR

Responsibility | spenton these and amounts allocated to these. Report
Employee Number of training sessions held on the following. Please also On different
training and mention the Number of employees and workers trained on these: aspects it's a
Succession -Skill Up-gradation routine matter
Planning -Soft Skills
- Health and Safety Measures
Percentage: Women and men promoted during the year 4.28% Men
Human Rights | Does your company follow a human rights policy? Yes
If yes, does your human rights policy also cover suppliers and vendors? No

Working Number of complaints made by employees regarding working | No Complaints
Conditions conditions during the reporting period. )
No Complaints
Number of complaints regarding working conditions resolved.
Injury Rate Percentage: Frequency of injury events relative to total workforce time. Minor Injuries
Number of safety-related incidents during the reporting year and
Number of lost production hours as a result. Nil
Disclose the percentage of employees/workers covered with Health and
Safety Insurance. 100%
Marketing Do you have a responsible gender-sensitive marketing communication Not Applicable

policy oracommitmentembedded in larger corporate policy?

86




SANGHAR SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

Annual Report 2024

Category Metric Measurement Annual, unless specified Response
Board Diversity |Percentage: Total board seats occupied by men and women 6 Men /1
Women
Percentage: Committee chairs occupied by men and women All Men
Board Does company prohibit CEO from serving as board chair? Yes
Independence . . . o
Percentage: Total board seats occupied by independents 28.57 %
Board Percentage of ESG-certified board members. Nil
Competence
LIJ Incentivized Pay | Are executives formally incentivized to perform on sustainability? No
O Collective Percentage: Total enterprise headcount covered by collective 8% - 10%
Z Bargaining bargaining agreement(s)
Supplier Code of | Are your vendors or suppliers required to follow a Code of Conduct? Yes
< Conduct . e .
If yes, what percentage of your suppliers have formally certified their In process
compliance with the code?
Ethics & Anti- Does your company follow an Ethics and/or Anti-Corruption policy? Yes
m Corruption If yes, what percentage of your workforce has formally certified its 100%
compliance with the policy?
LIJ Data Privacy | Does your company follow a Data Privacy policy? Yes
> Does your company take steps to comply with general data protection Yes
rules/ framework?
O Sustaina.bility Does your company publish a sustainability report? Yes
(D Reporting Is sustainability data included in your regulatory filings? Yes
Disclosure Does your company provide sustainability data in line with any Yes
Practices sustainability reporting frameworks?
Does your company focus on specific UN Sustainable Development Yes
Goals (SDGs)?
Does your company set targets and report progress on the UN SDGs? Yes
External Are your sustainability disclosures assured or validated by a third No
Assurance party?
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Statement of Gender Pay Gap 2024

Name of the Company: Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited

Following are the gender pay gap calculated for the year ended September 30, 2024
()  Mean GenderPay Gap: 1:0
(I Median Gender Pay Gap: 1:0
() Any other data/ details as deemed relevant:

Currently, we have One Female Non-Executive Director on the Board and further there is no female
employees at mills because nature of business is seasonal (season of 3-4 months) and rest of the year,
repair & maintenance and capital expenditures in plant & machinery has been carried out on routine
basis. Mills is situated in rural area and due to the social and cultural barriers of the area, females are not
willing to go outside and act as a working women.

Policies and procedures are in place for females which includes but not limited to their appointment,
safety, anti-harassment, discrimination, pay gap, incentives & facilities and others. Further, the
Company is working on Education Program (male & female) and the details are given in Corporate
Social Responsibility Report under the relevant head.

For & on Behalf of the Board

Ghulam Hyder
Chief Executive Officer

Karachi: December 30, 2024
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Risk Management Framework
& Methodology

The Company's overall risk management program focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's operations. The Company's risk management policies are
established to identify and analyze the risk faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and control, and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring
the Company's risk management policies. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

Our Risk Management Framework is a comprehensive approach to identifying, assessing and mitigating risk
within the context of our risk environment. Our approach to risk management relies on continuously monitoring risk
and related mitigation procedures and revising these when required. These procedures are embedded in our day-
to-day activities.

Risk Governance Structure & Assessment
Business Process Owners
Identifies risk and devises mitigation plans.
Internal Audit

Provides assurance on the exposure of risk, assess the adequacy of internal controls and
provides recommendations.

Executive Management

Reviews the Company wide risks, assesses the extent of its exposure and finalize the action
plans for implementation.

Audit Committee & Risk Management Committee

Reviews the effectiveness of Risk Management Framework and assess the significance of Risk
and their mitigation plans.

Board of Directors
Overall responsibility for overseeing the risk management processes.
BOARD COMMITMENT TOWARDS RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the risk management and determining the Company's
level of risk tolerance. The Board regularly undertakes an overall review of business risks to ensure that the
management maintains a sound system of risk identification, risk management and related system and internal
controls to safeguard assets, resources, reputation and interest of the Company and shareholders. The Board has
evaluated risk tolerance carefully, considering market dynamics and stakeholder expectations. Our approach
emphasizes proactive risk identification, mitigation, and compliance with all relevant regulations. We pledge
transparency in our risk management practices, ensuring your confidence in our operations. This commitment will
safeguard our financial stability, reputation, and long-term success while allowing us to pursue strategic
opportunities.

The Board of Directors has carried out a detailed assessment of risks facing the Company originating from various
sources. The Board of Directors is satisfied with the Company's risk management practices and the mitigating
strategies adopted to counter such risks. Board of Directors has conducted an exhaustive assessment of the
primary risks confronting our Company. This comprehensive evaluation included a thorough analysis of risks that
have the potential to pose a significant threat to our business model, future performance, as well as our solvency
and liquidity. This in-depth examination underscores our unwavering commitment to sound corporate governance
and risk management. By identifying and understanding these critical risks, we can proactively implement
measures to mitigate and manage them effectively. Safeguarding our business model, ensuring sustained future
performance, and maintaining robust solvency and liquidity are essential components of our corporate strategy.
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We firmly believe that this proactive approach will not only protect our organization from potential setbacks but also
position us to seize opportunities for growth and innovation.

The Company considers the following material risk which may affect our business operations and mitigating
strategies for controlling these risks:

STRATEGIC RISK

This risk arises from potential failures in strategic planning that may lead to non-achievement of core objectives.

Risk

Area of Impact

Source
of Risk

Mitigating Action

Inconsistent & Arbitrary
changes in
Government Policies

Financial Capital

External

Regular advocacy through different forums, like
PASMA, to timely appraise the relevant
Government Departments and Regulators of all
issues that may have an adverse impact on the
Company and industry as a whole. Further, the
Company consult with the Consultants for
developing appropriate policies and cases to
defend the interest of the Company and present to
the Government.

Government intervention is beyond Company's
control, nevertheless, the Company actively
engages with all stakeholders to address related
issues impacting the industry and agriculture
sector.

Technological
Advancements

Manufactured Capital

Internal

The Company's management values automation of
operations and technological advancements. The
Company has invested in modernization of
production facilities utilizing latest technological
developments for cost/ output optimization.

Investments are being made regularly to
continuously improve product quality / quantity and
process efficiently.

OPERATIONAL RISK

This risk arises as a result of ineffective internal processes, people, systems or external events which can disrupt the flow

of business operations.

; Source PP .
Risk Area of Impact of Risk Mitigating Action
Maintenance Manufactured Capital Internal | Effective technical monitoring and preventive

maintenance are in place to ensure maximum plant
efficiency and capacity utilization.

Invest in modernizing production equipment and
adopting new technologies to effectively adapt to
shifts in production technologies.
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Risk

Area of Impact

Source
of Risk

Mitigating Action

Employee Retention &
Succession Planning

Human Capital

Internal

Company values its employees as essential human
assets and provides congenial environment and
growth opportunities.

Strategy on succession planning is in place to
support the management in assessing employee
performance for future growth and identify potential
placements.

The Company's key focus remains on the training
and development of its intellectual capital and to
provide meaningful opportunities to foster a thriving
work environment and a high performance culture.

Information System

Financial Capital

Internal /
External

Appropriate data back-up is in place. Further,
system related controls are in place and working
effectively to safeguard confidential and or
proprietary information.

National Catastrophe

Manufactured Capital /
Relationship Capital

External

Every possible aspects of safety measures has
been taken into consideration by the Company
during construction and erection of Building, Plant &
Machinery to ensured that any adverse or
unforeseen events / disasters cause minimum
disruption.

The Company has made comprehensive insurance
cover of all. Further, the Company has established
data backup to address any unwarranted events.

MARKET RISK

Marketrisk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates
or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer of the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative
activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market.

Risk

Area of Impact

Source
of Risk

Mitigating Action

Raw Material -
Sugar Cane

Financial Capital

External

The Company always maintains healthy relation-
ship with its farmers. The risk of raw material -
Sugarcane short supply and quality is mitigated to a
large extent by educating farmers with latest
cultivating techniques. The Company provides
harvesting advance to growers and also provide
fertilizers in the shape of advances for healthy crop.

The Management keep an eye on prices of
sugarcane offered by other adjoining mills and
maintain sufficient bank balances to get the cane at
prevailing market prices.

Commodity

Financial Capital

External

The Company diversify its revenue sources through
supply of sugar to Registered buyers as well as
Unregistered buyers.

Further, the Company made investments in plant &
machinery to reduce the consumption of Baggasse
and sell the surplus Baggasse after meeting our
own production requirements.
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Finished Goods - Sugar|  Financial Capital External | The management of the Company keep an eye and
in-touch with the market sentiments and players

respectively. This helps the management to do a
quick and aggressive decision for sugar sales in
scattered form orin bulk.

FINANCIAL RISK

This risk includes credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.

Source

Risk Area of Impact of Risk

Mitigating Action

Credit Risk Financial Capital External | To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of
trade receivables, management performs credit
reviews taking into account the customer's financial
position, past experience and other factors.

The Company also manages credit risk interalia by
setting out credit limits in relation to individual
customers and / or by obtaining advance against
the sales and/ or through letter of credits.

Interest Rate Risk Financial Capital External | Company's exposure to interest rate is associated
with the short term borrowings. The Company
monitors interest rate fluctuation and encounters
interest rate risk by utilizing optimal mix of different
types of borrowing arrangements and also
manages the risk through viable negotiations with
lenders and effective fund utilization.

Defer the capital and other not necessary
expenditures so that all the cash generated would
be utilized in debt reduction.

Working capital management strategies to be
placed to reduce the short term debt profiles.

Liquidity Risk Financial Capital External | The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
sufficient cash and ensuring the fund availability
through adequate credit facilities. The Company
has available un-availed borrowing facilities and
also has cash &bank balances.

Foreign Exchange Financial Capital External | The Company's treasury function closely monitors
Risk and manages the exposure to foreign currency risk.
The Company is not directly exposed to Foreign
Exchange Risk. When the Government allow
exports and the Company made export sales, the
Company obtained partial payment as an advance
and negotiate the rate with bank for the balance
payment. Moreover, the residual risk on purchases
is passed on as part of the product pricing subject to
market conditions and Government policies.
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COMPLIANCE RISK

This risk includes the Company's potential exposure to legal penalties, resulting from its failure to act in accordance with
laws and regulations.

; Source i .

Risk Area of Impact of Risk Mitigating Action
Risk of Litigation Social & Relationship | External | Significant litigation cases are handled through
Capital reputable law firms and our Consultants / lawyers

engaged by the Company which specialized in
particular areas.

Environmental Natural Capital Internal The Company has made serious efforts and are
installing equipment to reduce the pollution and
making a good impact of Company's business on
Environment. The Company has installed collection
units to retrieve oil / grease e.t.c. from the waste
water and ash collectors are also installed at the
chimneys to absorb the ash. The Effluent treatment
planthas also been run at the Mills.

Various environmentally friendly projects, such as
renewable energy initiatives, urban forests and
waste heat recovery systems have been
implemented to reduce our net carbon foot print.

Health & Safety Human Capital Internal | Issues are addressed by focusing on safety
measures such as conducting appropriate trainings,
use of equipments & safety practices. Providing
awareness to employees for precautionary
measures. Safety awareness and training sessions
are regularly conducted throughout the Company,
alongside safety internal audits to continuously
monitor and minimize exposure.

Implementation of Health & Safety policies and
training workshops, periodic review of safety related
incidents to ensure process effectiveness and also
provide protective equipment.

Collaborate with local healthcare authorities and
providers to support public health efforts.
Continuously monitor global health trends and
collaborate with health authorities to adapt our
health and safety measures accordingly

Regqlatory Laws & Relationship Capital Internal The Company closely monitors changes in the
Policies regulatory environment and adopts to all significant
changes in a timely manner, which is applicable to
the Company, to prevent any breach of law.

External experts are also engaged for consult-
ations. Engage with Governments, Regulatory and
public bodies to shape regulatory requirements and
mitigate risk.

Audit Committee and Internal Audit Department
reviews adequacy and effectiveness of controls
over compliance & reporting.

Unethical & Prohibited Relationship Capital Internal | Our code of conduct sets out the behaviors that is
Business Practices expected from the Company, the Directors, the

Executive & Managers and the Employees &
Workers. We are committed to conduct business in
an ethical manner and a reputation of trust &
reliance.

Additionally, the Company leverages economies of
scale procurement expertise to maintain price
competitiveness.
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Chairman of the Board of Directors

The key responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, includes but not limited to, are as follows:
Leadership of the Board

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board and ensure that the Board plays an effective role in
fulfilling its responsibilities.

Agenda and discussion in meetings

The Chairman set the agenda of the Board's meeting and ensure that reasonable time is available for
discussion of the same. All written notices, including the agenda of meetings be circulated at least seven
days prior to the meetings, except in the case of emergency meetings, where the notice period may be
reduced or waived.

Minutes of meeting

Ensuring that the minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors are kept in accordance with the requirements
of the CompaniesAct, 2017.

Appointment Letters

At the beginning of the term of each Director, the Chairman issue letter to the appointed Directors setting out
their role, obligations, powers and responsibilities in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and
Company's Articles of Association, their remuneration and entitlement.

Chairman Review Report

Every financial statements circulated under section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017 must contain a Review
Report by the Chairman on the overall performance of the Board and effectiveness of the role played by the
Board in achieving the Company's objectives.

Chairman of the General Meeting

The Chairman of the Board preside as Chairman at every Annual General Meeting and Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of the Company.

Under Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018:

The responsibility of the Chairman for general meeting, in which agenda of Special Business and the Election
of Directors is going to be held, for that purpose the Chairman is to record the time and date of receipt of ballot
papers, keep them in safe custody and ensure confidentiality of the result till it is formally announced and
immediately after the conclusion of poll, count votes cast during time of poll in person, through proxy, video-
link and by post and in case of e-voting unblock result of e-voting and also ensure completeness and
accuracy of the results of the voting and announced in the meeting, by the Chairman. The Chairman, after
announcement of result of poll shall send execution report of poll to the Company.

Where a scrutinizer has been appointed under the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 by the
Board, the Chairman must comply with the regulations, give details and follow the procedures, as listed
therein.
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Key Responsibilities
of the Chief Executive Officer

The key responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, includes but not limited to, are as
follows:

Issues to be placed for decision of Board of Directors

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company shall place significant issues for the information, consideration
and decision, as the case may be, of the Board of Directors or its Committees that include but are not limited
to the following:

The Chief Executive Officer foresees risk of default concerning obligations on any loans, borrowings or any
other debt instrument, the same shall be brought to the attention of Board; annual business plan, cash flow
projections, forecasts and strategic plan; budgets including capital, manpower and overhead budgets, along
with variance analysis; matters recommended and/or reported by the Audit Committee and other committees
of the Board; quarterly operating results of the Company as a whole and in terms of its operating divisions or
business segments; internal audit reports, including cases of fraud, bribery, corruption, or irregularities of
material nature; management letter issued by the external auditors; details of joint venture or collaboration
agreements or agreements with distributors, agents etc.; promulgation of or amendment to a law, rule or
regulation, applicability of financial reporting standard and such other matters as may affect the Company
and the status of compliance therewith; status and implications of any law suit or proceedings of material
nature, filed by or against the Company; failure to recover material amounts of loans, advances, and deposits
made by the Company including trade debts; any significant accidents, fatalities, dangerous occurrences
and instances of pollution and environmental problems involving the Company; significant claims made or
likely to be made against the Company, including any adverse judgment or order made on the conduct of the
Company or of another Company that may bear negatively on the Company; report on governance, risk
management and compliance issues; disputes with labor and their proposed solutions, any agreement with
the labor union or collective bargaining agent and any charter of demands on the Company; reports on
/synopsis of issues and information pursued under the whistle blowing policy; implementation of
environmental, social and governmental and health and safety business practices including report on
corporate social responsibility activities or any other regulatory framework as applicable; sale of assets,
investments and undertakings of material amount or significant nature, which is not in the ordinary course of
business; and quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the safeguards taken by management
against adverse exchange rate movement, if material.

Responsibility for Financial Reporting and Corporate Compliance

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer shall duly endorse the quarterly, half-yearly and
annual financial statements under their respective signatures prior to placing and circulating the same for
consideration and approval of the Board of Directors.

Chief Executive not to engage in business competing with Company's business

Chief Executive of Company shall not directly or indirectly engage in any business, which is of the same
nature, and directly competes with the business carried on by the Company.
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Terms of Reference for the

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The Terms of References of the Committee are as follows:

1.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.
15.

To review, agree and establish the Company's corporate strategy to ensure that corporate social
responsibility is and remains an integral part of the strategy and its implementation in practice and that
the social, environmental and economic activities are aligned;

To ensure that there is recognition of the impact of its activities upon all stakeholders including
shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees and the wider community and environment and that
those activities are regulated such that, consistent with sustainable business and development, they are
conducted in a socially responsible manner and have a positive impact on society;

To develop and recommend for acceptance by the Board policies on all key areas of CSR including the
environment, health and safety, product testing and customer safety, standards of business conduct,
ethics, employees and employee development, charitable activities and community initiatives;

To develop and support the activities necessary to convert CSR policies into an effective plan for
implementation and to agree a programme of specific CSR activities and focus for each financial year,
supported by appropriate targets and key performance indicators;

To monitor compliance with the CSR policies and review performance against agreed targets;

In conjunction with management and other committees of the Board including the Risk Management
Committee, to identify material environmental, social, health and safety risk areas and to ensure that
appropriate measures are taken to mitigate any such risks;

To evaluate and oversee on an ongoing basis the quality and integrity of any reporting to external
stakeholders concerning CSR matters and, specifically, to review and present to the Board for final
approval a CSR report for publication in the annual reports and accounts;

To develop and encourage effective two-way communication concerning CSR issues within the
business;

Where appropriate, to consider the appointment of external advisors to advise and support the
Committee in respect of CSR initiatives and to be responsible for establishing the selection criteria,
terms of reference and fees in respect of any such advisors;

CSR Commitment Statement to be placed and agreed in each meeting of the Committee with respect to
CSR definition, business value of CSR, vision and commitment (resources, time, personnel);

To determine the priority areas wherein the CSR projects are currently being managed (ongoing
projects) and are planned to be initiated (upcoming projects);

To allocate resources and earmark specific resources (quantifiable), specific criteria, or a proportion of
amount for selected CSR activities. The method of allocation of resources or identified criteria must be
predetermined and endorsed by the Committee / Board;

Hold orientation sessions for the Committee members and the Board to ensure that the members and the
Board have adequate understanding and expertise of CSR for making informed decisions and
incorporate CSR as part of Annual Board Evaluation;

Specifying the organizational approach towards CSR;
Incorporating the CSR approach into code of ethics of the Company;
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16.

17.

18.

Setting targets for achievement of CSR objectives and periodic monitoring and evaluation of CSR
activities;

Recognizing and documenting the shortfalls / failures and incorporating improvement in future CSR
policy/ plans; and

To consider such other topics and issues in relation to CSR as may be stipulated by the Board from time
totime.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee

The Board of Directors shall provide adequate resources and authority to enable the Audit Committee to
carry outits responsibilities effectively. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee shall be the following:

a)
b)

1)

m)

Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the Company's assets;

Review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the Company, prior to their approval
by the Board of Directors, focusing on:

— Major judgmental areas;

— Significantadjustments resulting from the audit;

— Going concern assumption;

— Anychanges in accounting policies and practices;

— Compliance with applicable accounting standards;

— Compliance with listing regulations and other statutory and regulatory requirements; and
— Significantrelated party transactions.

Review of preliminary announcements of results prior to publication;

facilitating the external audit and discussion with external auditors of major observations arising from
interim and final audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence of
management, where necessary);

Review of management letterissued by external auditors and management's response thereto;
Ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors of the Company;

Review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan, reporting framework and procedures and
ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate resources and is appropriately placed within the
Company;

Consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities characterized by fraud, corruption
and abuse of power and management's response thereto;

Ascertaining that the internal control systems including financial and operational controls, accounting
systems for timely and appropriate recording of purchases and sales, receipts and payments, assets and
liabilities and the reporting structure are adequate and effective;

Review of the Company's statement on internal control systems prior to endorsement by the Board of
Directors and internal audit reports;

Instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter specified by the
Board of Directors, in consultation with the chief executive officer and to consider remittance of any
matter to the external auditors or to any other external body;

Determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements;

Monitoring compliance with the regulations and identification of significant violations thereof;
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n)

0)

p)

Review of arrangement for staff and management to report to Audit Committee in confidence, concerns, if
any, about actual or potential improprieties in financial and other matters and recommend instituting
remedial and mitigating measures;

Recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment of external auditors, their removal, audit fees,
the provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the Company by the external auditors in
addition to audit of its financial statements. The Board of Directors shall give due consideration to the
recommendations of the Audit Committee and where it acts otherwise and shall record the reasons
thereof;

Consideration of any otherissue or matter as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

Related party transactions

The details of all related party transactions shall be placed periodically before the Audit Committee of the
Company and upon recommendations of the Audit Committee the same shall be placed before the Board for
review and approval.

The related party transactions, not executed at arm's length price, shall also be placed separately at each
Board meeting along with necessary justification for consideration and approval of the Board on
recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Company. The Board of Directors of a Company shall approve
the pricing methods for related party transactions, after recommendation of the Audit Committee that were
made on the terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transaction, only if such terms can be
substantiated.

Terms of reference of the
Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

The Terms of reference of Committee shall be the following:

a)

b)

¢)]

h)

Leading the process for Board appointments, identifying and assessing candidates who are qualified
for election of Directors (in particular, independent Directors) after invoking necessary procedures for
making recommendations to the Board prior to publishing names of nominees for election of Directors
by the general meeting;

Recommend to the Board for consideration and approval a policy framework for determining
remuneration of Directors (both executive and non-executive Directors and members of senior
management). The definition of senior management will be determined by the Board which shall
normally include the first layer of management below the chief executive officer level;

Undertaking annually a formal process of evaluation of performance of the Board as a whole and its
committees either directly or by engaging external independent consultant and if so appointed, a
statement to that effect shall be made in the Directors' report disclosing name, qualifications and major
terms of appointment;

Recommending human resource management policies to the Board;

Recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation (including
Retirement benefits) and succession planning of the chief executive officer;

Recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation (including
retirement benefits) of chief operating officer, chief financial officer, Company secretary and head of
internal audit;

Consideration and approval on recommendations of chief executive officer on such matters for key
management positions who report directly to chief executive officer or chief operating officer;

Where human resource and remuneration consultants are appointed, their credentials shall be known
by the Committee and a statement shall be made by them as to whether they have any other connection
with the Company.
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Terms of reference of the
Risk Management Committee

The Board constituted the Risk Management Committee to carry out a review of effectiveness of risk
management procedures and present a report to the Board. The Terms of Reference of the Committee shall

include the following:
a) Monitoring and review of all material controls (financial, operational, compliance);
b) Risk mitigation measures are robust and integrity of financial information is ensured;

c) Appropriate extent of disclosure of Company's risk management framework and internal control system
in Directors report.

Terms of reference of the
Information Technology& Steering Committee

The Board constituted the Information Technology & Steering Committee to carry out Information Technology
Governance. The terms of reference of the committee shall be the following:

a) To have properly documented and implemented Information Technology Governance Policy to ensure
integrated framework for evolving and maintaining existing Information Technology and acquiring new
technology to achieve the Company's Strategic focus

b) Todefine Information Technology Governance, Scope and its role & responsibilities;

c) Topromote accountabilities, due diligence, efficient and economic delivery of the Company's Information
Technology services;

d) To provide structured decision making process around Information Technology investment decisions;
e) Tolaydown solid structure for management decision making;
f) Todevelop & upgrade different modules to provide reliable, efficient and timely information.
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An Abstract of Policy for

Corporate Social Responsibility

The following are an abstracts of policy for Corporate Social Responsibility:

The objective is to promote the development of a framework for Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives
by the Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited (the Company).

Strategy of Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is socially responsible and committed to conduct its business ethically and with responsibility. The
Company is conscious of the role to play as responsible corporate entity in fulfilling the various needs of the society
concerning health, safety, environment, employee relationship and social welfare of the society. The Company
considers itself accountable to its stakeholders and has identified dimensions of performing the social
responsibilities which are contribution to economy, environment and society. The management peruses the
strategy by following strategic guidelines to be a good corporate entity:

1. Encouraging employment of work force living in the rural areas in order to yield significant gain and uplift their
living standard.

2. Continuously striving to improve greenery, protecting the environment, maintain a clean environment around
the factory and better housekeeping.

3. Making arrangement for civic, health, safety of people, education and accommodation facilities to employees
and people.

Support social causes and human rights.
Conducting business in a socially responsible and ethical manner and in compliance with the Law.

Behave responsibly and with sensitivity to local communities in the area in which we operate.

N o o A

Engaging, learning from, respecting and supporting the communities and cultures within which we work.

Sustainability & Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company acknowledges its social and ethical responsibility to carry out its business in order to keep it safe and
protect it for the generation to come. Sustainability Policy is considered to be essential for continuing of the
business. The Company considers itself accountable to its stakeholders and informs them about the initiative and
measures taken to ensure sustainability and has identified the following dimensions of performing social
responsibilities which contributing to economy, environment, health, education and society.

1. To support the sugarcane growers of the area and provide better quality seeds and fertilizers to achieve
improvement in quality of sugarcane and enhance its quantity and productivity in order to have regular,
constantand better supply in future the major basic raw material for sugar mills.

2. To alleviate illiteracy in the rural areas of the Country, the Company has launched education program and is
providing education facilities at the premises adjacent to the Mills' Employees' Colony by the qualified staff on
concessional basis to the children of the factory employees and persons living nearby in rural areas.

3. To contributing to the National growth by sharing its revenue with the nation in the form of taxes, rates and
duties.
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10.
1.
12.
13.
14.
15.

To improve foreign reserves of the Country by earning foreign currency through exports of sugar as and when
allowed.

To follow consciously the needs of the Society concerning health, safety and environment for achieving the
objective.

To make efforts to minimize the accidental risks, have necessary medical facilities and continuously shrine to
improve greenery and maintain clean and safe environment, better housekeeping, safeguarding the health of
employees.

To make efforts on improving the social conditions of the Communities and employees related to the Company
by establishing fair working conditions, ensuring occupational safety, setting social standard, establishing
minimum wages, zero tolerance on child labour and forced labour etc.

To encourage employment of workforce living in the rural areas in order to yield significant gain and uplift their
living standard.

To treat all employees fairly and compensates them according to the industry practice. Provides the benefits
such as perquisites, annual leaves, pick and drop, facility of mess, safe and healthy working conditions etc
along-with group insurance, making payments to Employees Old Age Benefits Institution, Worker's Welfare
Fund, Worker's Profit Participation Funds.

To maintain the principles of integrity and trust with respect to privacy of the employees of the Company.

To carry out activities at the time of natural calamity or engage in Disaster Management System.

To promote sustainability in collaboration with the industry associations.

To contribute to any fund setup by the Government, which may be recognized as CSR activity.

Monitor and review our CSR policies and procedures on a regular basis to ensure suitability and effectiveness.

Use continuous assessment to ensure our CSR activities meet identified performance objectives.
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An Abstract of Policy for

Directors' Remuneration & Meeting Fee

Following are an abstracts of the policy for Directors' Remuneration and Meeting Fee:

Meeting Fee of Directors

Non-Executive Directors do not have service agreements, but are engaged on the basis of a letter of
appointment. All Directors are subject to re-election after three years at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting.
Itis the policy of the Board of Directors that Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any of the
Company's bonus, share option, long-term incentive or Gratuity schemes.

Objective approach of the Company Fees (cash and shares) is to attract and retain Non-Executive Directors
of the highest caliber with broad commercial experience relevant to the Company. The fees paid to Non-
Executive Directors are determined by the Board of Directors, with recommendations provided. Fee levels
may be reviewed annually, with any adjustments effective from start of the financial year and are reviewed by
taking into account external advice on best practice and competitive levels. Time commitment and
responsibility are also taken into account when reviewing fees. Chairman and Non-Executive Director fees
may be delivered in cash. Aggregate fees are limited by the Company's Articles of Association. Travel and
expenses for Non-Executive Directors (including the Chairman) are incurred in the normal course of
business, for example in relation to attendance at Board and Committee meetings. The costs associated with
these are all met by the Company.

Any Non-Executive Director may waive the meeting fee from the Company, upon submission of waiver
consentin writing.

The remuneration to be paid to any Director except the Chief Executive and the working Director for attending
the meetings of the directors or a committee of directors shall not exceed the scale approved from time to time
by the Board of Directors, as the case may be.

The remuneration of a Director for performing extra services, including the holding of the office of the
Chairman, from time to time shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

Members representing management or others in any committee and the Executive Directors / Executives will
not be entitle for the Meeting Fee.

Executive Directors' Remuneration

Basic Salary:

Provides market competitive fixed remuneration that rewards to relevant skills, responsibilities and
contribution. Salaries are positioned within a market competitive range for companies of a similar size and
complexity. The Board / Committee does not slavishly follow data but use it as a reference point in
considering, in its judgment, the appropriate level having regard to other relevant factors including corporate
and individual performance and any changes in an individual's role and responsibilities.
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Benefits & Allowances:

To provide appropriate supporting monetary benefits. Provides appropriate insurance cover benefits. The
Company may periodically change the benefits available for the office at which an Executive Director works
in which case the Director would normally be eligible to receive the amended benefits on similar terms to all
relevant staff.

Increment:

It's a sole discretion of the Board of Directors to decide the Increment percentage on annual basis for
Executive Directors.

Gratuity:

Provides basic retirement benefits which reflects local market practice and for the permanent employee of
the Company as per policy.

Production Bonuses:

Supports delivery of short term operational, financial and strategic goals. Production Bonuses level and the
appropriateness of measures are reviewed annually to ensure they continue to support the strategy.
Production bonuses will be paid as per the policy of the Company and subject to the limit approved by the
Board of Directors for the Executive Directors.

Others:

The remuneration of a Director for performing extra services, including the holding of the office of the
Chairman, from time to time shall be determined by the Board of Directors. Interested Directors & their
relatives will not be eligible to participate and vote in the proceeding of the Board Meetings in which their
remuneration & benefits will be discussed. All taxes and or with-holding taxes will applicable on the
Remuneration and fee paid by the Company. These are subject to deduction of tax as per the applicable laws.
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An Abstract of Policy for Related Party
Transactions & Their Records

Scope of the Policy

This Policy applies to transactions between the Company and one or more of its Related Parties. It provides a
framework for governance and reporting of Related Party Transactions. It is intended to ensure due and timely
identification, approval, disclosure and reporting of transactions between the Company and any of its Related
Parties. Amendments, from time to time, to the Policy, if any shall be considered and approved by the Board. The
Policy covers all related party transactions of Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) as defined under
Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with related Regulation of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the Companies (Related Party Transactions and Maintenance of Related
Records) Regulations, 2018 issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the Commission). The
Policy is applicable to all the individuals responsible to initiate, authorize, record and report related party
transactions and also on all Related Party Transactions irrespective of their value and size.

Definitions & Explanations
(a) theexpression “office of profit” means any office

(i) where such office is held by a director, if the director holding it receives from the Company anything by way
of remuneration over and above the remuneration to which he is entitled as director, by way of salary, fee,
commission, perquisites, any rent-free accommodation, or otherwise;

(i) where such office is held by anindividual other than a director or by any firm,private company or other body
corporate, if the individual, firm, private company or body corporate holding it receives from the company
anything by way of remuneration, salary, fee, commission, perquisites, any rent-free accommodation, or
otherwise;

(b) the expression “arm's length transaction” means a transaction which is subject to such terms and conditions as
may be specified.

(c) the expression “related party” includes-

(iy adirectororhisrelative - “relative” means spouse, siblings and lineal ascendants and descendants of a
person:

(i) akeymanagerial personnel or his relative;

(iii) afirm,inwhich a director, manager or his relative is a partner;

(iv) aprivate company in which a director or manager is a member or director;
(

v) apubliccompany in which a director or manager is a director or holds along-with his relatives, any shares
of its paid up share capital;

(vi) anybody corporate whose chief executive or manager is accustomed to actin accordance with the advice,
directions orinstructions of a director or manager (exceptin professional capacity);

(vii) any person on whose advice, directions orinstructions a director or manager is accustomed to act (except
in professional capacity);

(viii) any company whichis;
(A) aholding, subsidiary or an associated company of such company; or
(B) asubsidiary of a holding company to which itis also a subsidiary;

(ix) such other person as may be specified;
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Conditions for Transactions With Related Parties to be Characterized as “Arm's Length
Transactions”

Subject to the requirements of section 208 of the Act, a transaction between related parties shall be characterized
as an “arm's length transaction”, only ifitis carried outin a way, as if;

(a) the partiesto the transaction were unrelated in any way;
(b) the parties were free from any undue influence, control or pressure;

(c) throughits relevant decision-makers, each party was sufficiently knowledgeable about the circumstances of
the transaction, sufficiently experienced in business and sufficiently well advised to be able to form a sound
business judgment as to what was inits interests; and

(d) each party was concerned only to achieve the best available commercial result for itself in all the circums-
tances.

Related Party Transactions
The Company may enter into any contract or arrangement with a related party with respect to:

a) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

(

(b) selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;

(c) leasing of property of any kind;

(d) availing orrendering of any services;

(e) appointmentof any agentfor purchase or sale of goods, materials, services or property; and
(

f) suchrelated party's appointment to any office or place of profitin the Company.

Provided that where majority of the directors are interested in any of the above transactions, the matter shall be
placed before the general meeting for approval as special resolution:

Further, nothing in the above mentioned will apply to any transactions entered into by the Company in its ordinary
course of business on an arm's length basis.

Register of Contracts or Arrangements in Which Directors are Interested

The Company shall keep one or more registers giving separately the particulars of all contracts or arrangements,
in such manner and containing such particulars as may be specified by the Commission, except for the contract or
arrangement;

(a) forthe sale, purchase or supply of any goods, materials or services if the value of such goods and materials or
the cost of such services does not exceed the limit prescribed by the Commission; or

(b) by abanking company for the collection of bills in the ordinary course of its business.

Every director shall, within a period of thirty days of his appointment, or relinquishment of his office, as the case
may be, disclose to the Company the particulars relating to his concern or interest in the other associations which
are required to be included in the register or such other information relating to himself as may be specified.

The register shall be kept at the registered office of the Company and it shall be open for inspection at such office
during business hours and extracts may be taken there from, and copies thereof as may be required by any
member of the company shall be furnished by the Company to such extent, in such manner, and on payment of
such fees as may be specified.

The register to be kept shall also be produced at the commencement of every annual general meeting of the
Company and shall remain open and accessible during the continuance of the meeting to any person having the
right to attend the meeting.
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Approval of Related Party Transactions

The details of all related party transactions shall be placed periodically before the Audit Committee of the Company
and upon recommendations of the Audit Committee, the same shall be placed before the Board for review and
approval.

Upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, the board will approve related party transactions and the following
minimum information shall be circulated and disclosed to the Directors along with agenda for Board's Meeting
called for approval of related party transactions;

(a) name of related party;
(b) names of the interested or concerned persons or Directors;

(c) nature of relationship, interest or concern along with complete information of financial or other interest or
concern of directors, managers or key managerial personnel in the related party;

d) detail, description, terms and conditions of transactions;

e) amountof transactions;

f) time-frame or duration of the transactions or contracts or arrangements;
g) pricing policy;

h) recommendations of the Audit Committee, where applicable; and

i) any other relevant and material information that is necessary for the Board to make a well informed decision
regarding the approval of related party transactions.

If majority of the directors are interested in related party transactions, the matter will be placed before the general
meeting for approval of members.

In case approval of members is required for related party transactions, the information will be provided to the
members in the statement of material facts in terms of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2017 with the notice of the
general meeting called for approval of the members for related party transactions.

Responsibility of Board Regarding Related Party Transactions
The Board will ensure that;

(a) toeducate and train management and relevant employees so that they can identify and report the related party
transactions to the Board or other authorized persons;

(b) to provide direction as to whom a Director or employee can consult, in case where they are uncertain if a
transaction is a related party transaction or not;

c) tosetgeneral criteria to approve transactions or arrangement with related parties at various levels;

d) toidentify and determine whether a related party transaction requires members' approval;

(
(
(e) thatany related party transactions that require members' approval are put before members;
(f) tofixthe responsibility foridentification and disclosure of related party transactions; and

(

g) thatthe Company meets its legal and regulatory obligations in relation to related party transactions.

Every contract or arrangement entered will be referred to in the Director's Report to the shareholders along with the
justification for entering into such contract or arrangement.

Where any contract or arrangement is entered into by a director or any other employee, without obtaining the
consent of the Board or approval by a special resolution in the general meeting, as the case may be, if it is not
ratified by the Board or, as the case may be, by the shareholders at a meeting within ninety days from the date on
which such contract or arrangement was entered into, such contract or arrangement will be voidable at the option
of the Board and if the contract or arrangement is with a related party to any director, or is authorized by any other
director, the directors concerned shall indemnify the Company against any loss incurred by it (if any).
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Record to be Maintained of Related Party Transactions and Contracts or Arrangements in
Which Directors Are Interested

Subject to the requirements of the Act, the Company should maintain at its registered office, one or more registers
with regards to transactions undertaken with related parties and contracts or arrangements in which directors are
interested, as per the forms specified in Regulations and enter therein the particulars of:

(a) contracts or arrangements, in which any director is, directly or indirectly, concerned or interested, as
mentioned under the Act; and

(b) contracts or arrangements with a related party with respect to transactions to which section 208 of the Act
applies.

The entries in the register will be made in chronological order and must be authenticated through signatures by the
Company Secretary or by any other person authorized by the Board in this behalf. The Company will keep all the
contracts, agreements and instruments in respect of transactions or arrangements with related parties at its
registered office. The register and record will be kept in the custody of the Company Secretary or any other person
authorized by the Board in this behalf and it must be preserved in good order.

The Company will provide extracts from such register to a member of the Company on his request, within seven
days from the date on which such request is made upon the payment of such fee as may be specified in the articles
ofthe Company but not exceeding ten rupees per page.

Disclosure of Information

Pursuant to the provisions of sub-section (2) of section 209 of the Act, a Director shall provide information to the
Company in the specified form as provided in Regulations. The Director giving notice of the interest will cause it to
be disclosed at the meeting of the Board held immediately after the date of the notice.

All such notices must be kept at the registered office in the custody of the Company Secretary or any other person
authorized by the Board in this behalf and must be preserved in good order.

The Company shall disseminate to the Pakistan Stock Exchange information about Related Party Transactions
which individually or taken together with previous transactions with a related party during a financial year, is of a
value equal to or more than 10% of total assets or annual total turnover as per last year's audited financial
statements of the Company, immediately upon entering into such transaction except for the transactions entered
into by the Company in its ordinary course of business. The information to be disseminate must include the
following:

Name of Related Party

Nature of Transactions

Amount of Transaction

Names of the Interested person(s) and their nature of interest in the transaction / related party
The interested persons' direct or indirect shareholding in the Company

Details, description, terms & conditions of transaction

O O O O o o o

The rationale for and benefit to the Company of such transaction

Scope of Limitation

In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Policy and the Companies Act, 2017 or any other statutory
enactments and rules, the provision of the Companies Act, 2017 or statutory enactments, rules shall prevail.
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An Abstract of Policy for Gender Diversity

Equal Opportunity Employment

Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) fosters a culture where the people are driven to operate and perform
with the highest integrity and values.

As an equal opportunity employer, the Company hires people purely on the basis of merit and is committed to
providing equal access to employment to all people, regardless of race, religion, gender, nationality, or disability.
The Company respects people and believes that the success of its business is created by good people working
togetherin ateam environment.

Some of the key steps taken to promote the equal opportunity mission are:

— Empowerment of women.
— Hiring of people with disabilities.
— Facilitation for candidates for internships who are willing to contribute.

The principal of equal remuneration shall be applied to all workers.
The four key aspects covered in policy that drive the promotion of gender equality are:

— Achieving equal pay for work of equal value

— Preventing and ending violence and harassment in the world of work

— Promoting work family balance and an equal sharing of childcare responsibilities
— Building a future of work that works for women

1. ACHIEVEING EQUAL PAY FORWORK OF EQUAL VALUE:

— Ensuring Commitment and leadership from the top

— Establishing and Implementing a comprehensive equal pay policy

— Measuring the gender pay gap and performing gender-neutral job evaluations
— Promoting pay transparency and reporting

2. PREVENTINGAND ENDING GENDER-BASED VIOLENCE AND HARASEMENT IN THE WORK PLACE:

Violence and harassment negatively impact the organization of work, workplace relations, worker engagement,
enterprise reputation and productivity. Those experiencing violence and harassment at work can suffer harm to
their psychological, physical and sexual health, including physical injuries, anxiety, depression, stress and other
lasting impacts of trauma as well as harm to their dignity and their family and social environment.

Afive step framework that the Company shall be implemented in daily functioning:

— Raise prevention awareness;

— Commit to all aspects of women empowerment;
— Implement supportive policies;

— Collaborate with other sectors; and

— Ensure transparency and accountability.

Key Standards & other Instruments

The concept of "Violence and Harassment" in the world of work is defined as "un acceptable behaviors and
practices, or threats thereof, whether a single occurrence or repeated, that aim at, resultin, or are likely to result in
physical, psychological, sexual or economic harm, and includes gender-based violence and harassment".

The Company is committed to eliminate violence and harassment at work and adopt a policy to:
— Affirmthat violence and harassment will not be tolerated;
— Establish violence and harassment prevention programmes with, if appropriate, measurable objectives;

— Specify the rights and responsibilities of the workers and the employer, including the right of the worker to
remove her or himself from a situation involving violence or harassment without fear or retaliation;
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— Establish complaint and investigation procedures;

— Ensure that all internal and external communications related to incidents of violence and harassment will be
duly considered, and acted upon as appropriate;

— Specify the right to privacy of individuals and confidentiality, while balancing the right of workers to be made
aware of all hazards;

— Include measures to address domestic violence; awareness rising, leave for victims, flexible work
arrangements, temporary protection against dismissal for victims of domestic violence and referral to public
mitigation measures; and

— Institute measures to protect complainants, victims, witnesses and whistle blowers against victimization or
retaliation.

Particular attention to be paid to the hazards and risks that:

— Arise from working conditions and arrangements, work organization and human resource management, as
appropriate;

— Involved third parties such as clients, customers, service providers, users, patients and members of the public;
and

— Arise from discrimination, abuse of power relations, and gender, cultural and social norms that support
violence and harassment.

Protection against Harassment of Women at the workplace Act, 2010:

To protect women against such harassment at their workplace, Government of Pakistan has implemented
“Protection against Harassment of Women at the Workplace Act, 2010” in all organizations. Every organization has
an internal committee to work in this regard and to undertake the measures for implementation of this Act.

3. PROMOTING WORK-LIFE BALANCE AND EQUAL SHARING OF CARE RESPONSIBILITIES:
The Company shall:

— Provide maternity protection in line with local applicable laws

— Preventdiscrimination against pregnant women and workers with family responsibilities
— Provide paid paternity leave and encourage uptake

— Provide paid gender-neutral parental leave

— Facilitate a smooth return to work after leave

— Provide flexible working arrangements

— Support breastfeeding in the workplace

— Assistwith on or near site subsidized childcare

4. BUILDING AFUTURE OF WORK THAT WORKS FORWOMEN

The Company shall:

— Provide gender-sensitive training with a focus on skilling, re-skilling and up-skilling

— Ensure that new technology does not perpetuate gender stereotypes

— Supportwomen entrepreneurs in the gig economy

— Promote the privacy and safety of women and girls in cyberspace
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Following are an abstract of policy for Whistleblowing;
Introduction

The Whistleblowing Policy gives legal protection to employee(s) or person(s) against being dismissed or penalized
by their employers as a result of alone or jointly, provides to the Regulatory Authorities and to the Sanghar Sugar
Mills Limited (the Company) with information regarding a contravention or indented contravention of the Laws and
policies administered by the Regulatory Authorities and the Company.

It is fundamental to any employment contract that an employee will be loyal to his or her employer and will not
disclose confidential information outside the organization. However, from time to time, a member of staff might
discover information which he or she believes shows wrongdoing or malpractice within the organization. On such
occasions, it must be made possible for the information to be disclosed without fear of reprisal.

Policy Statement

The Company is committed to the highest standards of honesty, openness and accountability. It aims to ensure
that it operates in a responsible manner, taking into account standards set out. It recognizes that individual
members of staff have an importantrole in helping to achieve this aim.

Itis often members of the Company who are first to know if someone in the Company, or connected with it, appears
to be acting illegally or improperly. They may feel apprehensive or anxious about raising their concerns, and their
loyalty to the Company or to a colleague may prevent them from doing so. They might also be concerned that they
will not be taken seriously or about any action against themselves that a disclosure might provoke. However, the
Company encourages individuals who have knowledge, or reasonable suspicion, of wrongdoing to come forward.
The Company takes all wrongdoing seriously and believes that any evidence suggesting such behavior should be
investigated thoroughly.

The purpose of this procedure is to assist and enable all person(s) and or employee(s) of the Company to raise
concerns or to disclose information which they believe, in good faith, may indicate malpractice.

Scope of the Policy and Procedure

The policy and procedures are concerned with alleged malpractice, impropriety or wrongdoing in the Company,
which it is in the Company's or Shareholder's interest to disclose. The purpose of this policy is to establish
appropriate handling of the receipt, retention, and treatment of Whistleblowing matters that may involve; (however
itis not an exhaustive list):

— Breach of Company's Polices / Manuals (Accounting policies, Department Manuals, Money Laundering,
Department Standard Operating Procedures or other policies / manuals);

— Breach of Internal Controls, management override of controls or other auditing matters;

— Non-compliance of various regulations and rules applicable on the Company (Companies Act, Income Tax
Ordinance, Listing regulations, Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange, Securities Act, Code of Corporate
Governance and etc. and their related rules, notifications, directives or circulars etc.);

— Non-compliance of Code of Conduct;

— Fraud that is the use of deception with the intention of gaining an undue advantage, avoiding an obligation or
causing loss to another party;

— False representations of a matter of fact whether by words or by conduct to clients or other stakeholders or any
other fraudulent activities;

— Misappropriation of assets;
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— Misuse of confidential information or deliberate falsification of records;

— Gross misconduct, gross incompetence, gross inefficiency orinadequate performance;
—  Willful omission to perform duty;
— lllicitand corrupt practices;

— Acts of omissions which are deemed to be against the interest of the Company, laws, regulations or public
policies;

— Deliberate damage to or misuse of Company's property, plant & equipment and resources;
— Takingorgiving bribes or any illegal gratification or any other questionable activity;

— Serious breach of confidence, including insider dealing in securities;

— Financial malpractice orimpropriety or fraud;

— Dangersto health and safety or the environment;

—  Criminal activity;

— Improper conduct or unethical behaviorincluding any offence;

— Miscarriage of justice; and

— Attempts to conceal any of the above and others.

It can be difficult to decide whether a particular action falls within the procedures and it may be that, when concerns
are investigated, it appears appropriate to address them through other more specific procedures. As part of its day
to day conduct of business, the Company takes decisions under established and reasonable procedures. It is not
intended that this procedure will allow such decisions to be questioned unless on grounds of malpractice,
impropriety or wrongdoing.

Conduct of Whistleblower
Whistleblower shall:

1. Act in good faith; explanation: protected disclosure shall not be 'in good faith' if the whistleblower has any
other secret or unrelated reason for making the disclosure;

2. Have reasonable grounds to suspect that the protected disclosure indicates that the Company or regulated
person has contravened or intends to contravene any administered legislation;

3. Refrain from making false accusations;

&

Take reasonable care to protect sensitive information and restrict disclosure to the relevant persons/authority
only;

5. Shallonly disclose the details which are related with the violations;

6. Ensurethatthe protected disclosure is accurate and complete to the best of his / her knowledge;
7. Provide original information;

8. Provide information voluntarily;

9. Provide complete evidence at his / her disposal to aid investigation of the issues reported; and

10. Provide information keeping in view the limitation as per Regulations.
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Internal Whistleblowing

Awhistleblower may make a protected disclosure before the Audit Committee or Board of Director of the Company
or regulated person. If the protected disclosure is in respect of a member of the Audit Committee, such disclosure
shall be made directly to the Chairman of the Board of Directors or his assigned representative.

Procedure for Internal Whistleblowing

The Whistleblower shall follow the following minimum procedure:

1.  Whistleblower to report, in writing, openly or confidentially any protected disclosure;
2. Toreview the protected information;

3. Toconductenquiry into the allegations made and review the findings of the enquiry;
4

To determine the penalty or consequences for the employee or official who has been found involved in violation
of applicable laws and rules made there under;

5. To report the findings of the enquiry to the Audit Committee and or Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company, as the case may be; and

6. Toreporttothe Commission.
Protection from Retaliation

The Company, its Board of Directors, Audit Committee or management shall ensure that no whistleblower, if
he/she is an employee/former employee, is subject to any adverse action.

Procedure for Making and Investigating a Disclosure

If there are grounds for proceeding, the designated person will decide how the investigation should be undertaken.
This will depend on the nature of the matter and may involve:

o An internal investigation conducted by a sufficiently independent senior employee of the Company or its
internal or external auditor;

o Anindependentexternalinquiry.

The investigation will not be conducted by the person who may have to take a significant decision arising from the
findings. It will be conducted as sensitively as possible, and normally be complete within due reasonable time of the
disclosure being made. The investigation will also take into account concepts of natural justice and the need to
safeguard individual reputations.

When an allegation concerns a named individual, the person concerned will be informed of the allegation and of
the evidence supporting it. He/she will be invited to respond to the allegation as part of the investigation and/or
before any final conclusion is reached. The point at which it is appropriate for the individual to be informed will
depend on the nature of the case.

In any hearing under these procedures, the individual making the disclosure and the person against whom an
allegation has been made are both entitled to be accompanied by his/her representative. The findings of any
investigation will be reported to the designated person who will reach a decision on any further action to be taken.

Following an initial investigation, other internal procedures may be identified as relevant and may be invoked. In
some cases, it may be appropriate to refer a matter outside the Company for further investigation. The designated
person will inform the individual making the disclosure of the conclusion reached and what action, if any, is to be
taken and why.

If the individual making the disclosure is dissatisfied about how an inquiry was carried out, and its resultant
outcome, then he/she may appeal but only on procedural grounds, to the Chairman of the Board / Audit Committee,
who may order a procedural review and establish its terms of reference.

112



SANGHAR SUGAR MILLS LIMITED Annual Report 2024

A report summarizing all disclosures and inquiries and any subsequent actions taken will be made by the
designated person to the Board / Audit Committee and such reports will be retained for a minimum of ten years.

Individual making a disclosure

The identity of the individual making an allegation will remain confidential, unless otherwise agreed with that
individual, as long as it does not hinder or frustrate the investigation and is compatible with natural justice.
However, the investigation process may at some stage need to reveal the source of the information, and the
individual making the disclosure may at that stage need to provide an attributable statement as part of the evidence
to be presented.

Unsubstantiated Allegations

No action will be taken against an individual who makes an allegation in good faith even if it is not confirmed by
subsequent investigation. If, however, an individual makes what are subsequently determined to be malicious or
vexatious allegations or made for personal gain, and particularly if he or she persists in making them, disciplinary
action may be taken. Adisclosure may be deemed malicious or vexatious at any stage of the procedure.

Others

This policy and procedure is designed to clarify for individuals the route through which concerns can be raised and
to assure them that such matters will be taken seriously and acted upon within the Company. The Company takes
the view that in the vast majority of cases an internal investigation and decision is likely to be the most appropriate
course of action.

If an individual raises matters of concern outside the Company, without first using this procedure, he/she may be in
breach of the procedure. That is potentially a disciplinary offence, especially if it causes, or might have caused,
unnecessary reputational damage of the Company. In particular, it would not usually be considered appropriate for
matters to be raised publicly before an investigation is completed.
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An Abstract of Policy for Evaluation of
Board's Performance

The Board Evaluation is to be adopted as Self-Evaluation of the Board, as a whole through open
discussion and question every yearin the Board Meeting.

The Evaluation System is to address areas of critical importance besides covering the following:
— Appraising the basic organization of the Board of Directors.

— Assessing the Board's overall scope of responsibilities.

— The efficiency and effectiveness of the operation of the Board and its Committees.

— Evaluate the flow of financial & other managementinformation.

— Focusing on the goals and results.

— Validating the support and information provided by the management.

The Board should review and assess the results and such areas which are identified forimprovement.
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An Abstract of Internal Control Framework

Internal Control is broadly defined as a process, affected by an entity's Board of Directors, management and other
personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in the following
categories:

o Effectiveness and efficiency of operations: These pertains to effectiveness and efficiency of the entity's
operations, including operational and financial performance goals and safeguarding assets against loss.

o Reliability of financial reporting: These pertain to internal and external financial and non-financial reporting
and may encompass reliability, timeliness, transparency, or other terms as set forth by regulators, recognized
standard setters, or the entity's policies.

o Compliance with applicable laws and regulations: These pertain to adherence to laws and regulations to
which the entity is subject to.

Any system of internal control is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives. The system that have been established can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material financial misstatement of loss.

Roles and Responsibilities
Everyone in the Company has responsibility for internal control.

Management - The Chief Executive Officer is ultimately responsible and is the owner of the system. To assist the
Chief Executive Officer in discharge of his responsibilities, the Management is responsible to look at annual
corporate objectives, approval and revision of budgets prior to presentation to the Board, review of strategy,
stewarding corporate and departmental objectives. Senior Managers, in turn, assign responsibility for
establishment of more specific internal control policies and procedures to personnel responsible for the
departments' functions.

Board of Directors - Management is accountable to the Board of Directors, which provides governance, guidance
and oversight. Board members are objective, capable and inquisitive. They have knowledge of the Company's
activities and environment, and commit the time necessary to fulfill their Board responsibilities.

The Company's control consciousness is influenced significantly by those charged with governance.
Considerations include whether there are sufficient individuals who are independent from management and
objective in their evaluations and decision-making. The importance of the responsibilities of those charged with
governance is recognized in codes of conduct and other laws and regulations or guidance produced for the benefit
of those charged with governance. Other responsibilities of those charged with governance include oversight of
the design and effective operation of whistle blower procedures.

Oversight from those charged with governance, structures, reporting lines, and appropriate authorities and
responsibilities in pursuit of its objectives. This includes considerations about: key areas of authority and
responsibility and appropriate lines of reporting; Policies relating to appropriate business practice, knowledge and
experience of key personnel, and resource provided for carrying out duties; and Polices and communications
directed at ensuring that all personnel understand the entity's objectives, know how their individual actions
interrelate and contribute to those objectives, and recognize how and for what they will be held accountable.

Internal Audit - Internal Audit plays an important role in evaluating the effectiveness of control systems, and
contribute to ongoing effectiveness, Because of the position and authority, internal audit plays a significant
monitoring role.

The responsibilities of an internal audit function includes performing procedures and evaluating the results to
provide assurance to management and those charged with governance regarding the design and effectiveness of
risk management, the system of internal control and governance processes. If so, the internal audit function plays
an important role in the entity's process to monitor the system of internal control. However, the responsibilities of
the internal audit function be focused on evaluating the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of operations.
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Other Personnel - Internal control is, to some degree, the responsibility of everyone in the Company and
therefore an explicit or implicit part of employee's job description. Hence all personnel are responsible for
communicating upward problems in operation, non-compliance with the ethics and business practices and other
policies of the Company.

Features of Internal Controls

The principle features of the Company's system of Internal Control are as follows:
Control environment

Control procedures

Corporate

Performance monitoring

Performance review

Investment projects

Corporate reporting

Human Resource (Performance Measures of Employees)
Risk identification and management

Monitoring

The Information System

Communication

O 0O O 0O O o O o o o o o o

Physical or Logical Control
Control environment:

The Board encourages a culture of integrity and openness. The Company has an organizational structure with
clear lines of accountability and authority across its operations, supported by appropriate reporting procedures.
Each of the department is accountable to the Chief Executive Officer and is managed within the strategic
guidelines and delegated authorities adopted by the Board. The functional heads, meets regularly to discuss
issues facing the Company.

The effectiveness of controls cannot rise above the integrity and ethical values of the people who create,
administer, and monitor them. Integrity and ethical behavior are the product of the Company's ethical and
behavioral standards or code of conduct. The communication of entity policies on integrity and ethical values may
include the communication of behavioral standards to personnel through policy statements and codes of conduct.

Control procedure:

Control procedures have been established in each of the Company's operations to safeguard the Company's
assets from loss or misuse and to ensure appropriate authorization and recording of financial transactions.

Corporate Plan:

Management submits an annual corporate budget and plan to the Board for approval. The budget and plan for
each department is the quantified assessment of its planned operating and financial performance for the next
financial year, together with a revision of the budget for current year. Management reviews the plans with each
operational team. The individual plans are based on key economic and financial assumptions and income
statementand cash flow.

Performance monitoring:

Performance and financial reports are produced for each department, with comparisons to budget. Reports are
consolidated for overall review by the Management, together with forecasts for the income statement and cash
flow.
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Performance Review:

Each department is subject to regular performance reviews with Management during the year. Actual results and
forecasts for the year are compared to budget. Key operational and financial results are reviewed together with
the risk profile and business environment of the reporting unit.

Investment project:

Investment projects are subject to formal review and authorization procedures with designated levels of authority,
including a review by the Audit Committee before these are recommended for Board approval.

Corporate reporting:

The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements and statement of compliance with Code of Corporate
Governance are reviewed by Audit Committee before these are recommended for Board approval and
dissemination to Pakistan Stock Exchange, Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan and shareholders.

Control Risk relevant to reliable financial reporting include external and internal events, transactions or
circumstances that may occur and adversely affect an Company's ability to initiate, record, process, and report
financial information consistent with the assertions of managementin the financial statements. Control Risks can
arise or change due to circumstances such as the following:

o Change in operating environment. Changes in the regulatory, economic or operating environment can
resultin changes in competitive pressure and significantly different risks.

o New personnel. New personnel may have a different focus on or understanding of the system of internal
control.

o New or revamped information system. Significant and rapid changes in the information system can
change therisk relating to the Company's system of internal control.

o Rapid growth. Significant and rapid expansion of operations can strain controls and increase the risk of a
break down in controls.

o New technology. Incorporating new technologies into production processes or the information system may
change risk associated with the Company's system of internal control.

o New business models, products, or activities. Entering into business areas or transactions with which an
entity has little experience may introduce new risks associated with the Company's system of internal control.

o Corporate restructurings. Restructuring may be accompanied by staff reductions and changes in
supervision and segregation of duties that may change the risk associated with the Company's system
internal control.

o Expended foreign operations. The expansion or acquisition of foreign operations carries new and often
unique risks that may affectinternal control.

o New accounting pronouncements. Adoption of new accounting principles or changing accounting
principles may affect risks in preparing financial statements.

o Use of IT. Maintaining the integrity of data and information processing. Risks to the Company's business
strategy that arise if the Company's IT strategy does not effectively supporting the Company's business
strategy; or Changes or interruptions in the Company's IT environment or turnover of IT personnel or when
the entity does not make necessary updates to the IT environment or such updates are not timely.

Human Resource (Performance Measures of Employees):

The Management of the Company demonstrates a commitment to attract, develop, and retain competent
individuals in alignment with its objectives. The Company ensures that the individuals have the knowledge and
skills necessary to accomplish the tasks that define the individual's job, such as:

o Standards for recruiting the most qualified individuals with an emphasis on educational background, prior
work experience, past accomplishments, and evidence of integrity and ethical behavior.
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o Training policies that communicate prospective roles and responsibilities, including practices such as training
and seminars thatillustrate expected level of performance and behavior;

o Periodic performance appraisals driving promotions that demonstrate the Company's commitment to the
advancement of qualified personnel to higher levels of responsibility; and

o Establishing performance measures, incentives and rewards for those responsible for internal control,
including how the measures are evaluate and maintain their relevance.

Risk Identification and Management:

As outlined in the Annual Report there is a mechanism for identifying, assessing, evaluating and mitigating the
risks face by the Company. Activities are coordinated by the Management. The CFO retains overall responsibility,
on behalf of the Board, for ensuring that the systems for indentifying and assessing significant risks are adequate,
that appropriate control systems and other mitigating actions are in place, and that residual exposures are
consistent with the strategy and objectives. In addition a process of periodic audit reviews is in place which involves
identification of major financial, commercial and operating risk.

The Company's risk assessment process includes how management identifies business risks relevant to the
preparation of financial statement in accordance with the Company's applicable financial reporting framework,
estimates their significance, assesses the likelihood of their occurrence, and decides upon actions to respond to
and manage them and the results thereof.

Monitoring

The Board reviews the effectiveness of established internal control through the Audit Committee, which receives
reports from management, Internal Audit, and the external auditor on the systems of internal control and risk
management arrangements.

The Board confirms that the actions it considers necessary have been or are being taken to remedy such failings
and weaknesses as it has determined to be significant from its review of the system of internal control. This has
involved considering the matters reported to it and developing plans and programs that it considers reasonable in
the circumstances.

The Internal Audit department, through Head of Internal Audit, reports administratively to the Chief Executive
Officer and functionally to the Chairman Audit Committee. It carries out internal audit of various activities in
accordance with audit plan approved by Audit Committee prior to execution. Emphasis continue to be on internal
compliance measured against set standards and best practices. Management is required to comply in with defined
policies and procedures. The Audit Committee is responsible for ascertaining the adequacy and effectiveness of
internal controls including financial and operational controls, accounting systems and reporting structure.

Information System
These relevant to financial reporting encompasses policies, procedure and records that:
o Identify and record all valid transactions.

o Describe on a timely basis the transactions in sufficient detail to permit proper classification of transactions for
financial reporting.

o Measures the value of transactions and a manner that permits recording their proper monetary value in the
financial statements.

o Determine the time period in which transactions occurred to permit recording of transactions in the proper
accounting period.

o Presentproperly the transactions and related disclosures in the financial statements.
o Capture, process and disclose information about events and conditions other than transactions.
Communication

Communication involves providing an understanding of individual roles and responsibilities pertaining to the
entity's system of internal control may take a such forms as policy manuals, accounting and financial reporting
manuals and memorandum. Communication also can be made electronically, orally, and through the actions of
management.
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Control in the control activities component consist of application controls and general IT controls, both of which may
be manual or automated in nature, and may pertain to the following:

o Authorization and approvals an authorization affirms that a transaction is valid. An authorization typically takes
the form of an approval by a high level of management or of verification and a determination if the transaction is
valid.

o Reconciliations compare two or more data elements and, if difference are identified action is taken to bring the
data into agreement. Reconciliations generally address the completeness or accuracy of processing transa-
ctions.

o \Verifications compare two or more items with each other or compare an item with a policy, and perform follow-
up action when two items do not match or the items is not consistent with policy. Verifications generally address
the completeness, accuracy, of validity of processing transactions.

Physical or logical controls

These includes those that address security of assets against authorized access, acquisition, controls that
encompass:

The physical security of assets, including adequate safeguards such as secured facilities over access to assets
and records. The authorization for access to computer programs and data files (i.e, logical access). The periodic
counting and comparison with amount shown on control records.

Segregation of duties

Assigning different people the responsibilities of authorizing transactions, recording transactions, and maintaining
custody of assets. Segregation of duties is intended to reduce the opportunities to allow any person to be in a
position to both perpetrate and conceal errors or fraud in the normal course of the person's duties.

Limitations of internal control

Internal control, no matter how effective, can provide an entity with only reasonable assurance about achieving the
Company's financial reporting objectives. The likelihood of their achievement is affected by the inherent limitations
of internal control. These include the realities that human judgment in decision-making can be faulty and that
breakdowns in internal control can occur because of human error.

Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the collusion of two or more people or inappropriate management
override of internal controls. Further, in designing and implementing controls, management may make judgments
on the nature and extent of the controls it chooses to implement, and the nature and extent of the risks it chooses to
assume.
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Report of The Audit Committee

on Compliance with the Regulatory Requirements

The Audit Committee has concluded its annual review of the conduct and operations of the Company during
the financial year ended September 30, 2024 and reports that:

THEAUDIT COMMITTEE:

0 The Audit Committee (the Committee) is constituted by the Board and comprises of three Members, all
are non-executive Directors and the Chairman and one Member of the Committee are Independent
Directors.

o The Committee members are financially literate with immense experience in the fields of finance,
governance and business management.

o The Committee is accountable to the Board for the determination of appropriate measures to safeguard
the Company's assets, review of the Company's internal control systems prior to endorsement by the
Board, review the internal audit reports and forwarded to the Board for consideration, recommendation
of appointment of external auditors, directing and monitoring the audit function, reviewing the adequacy
and quality of the audit process and recommendation to the Board for approval of related party
transactions.

o The Committee gives additional assurance to the Board for the accuracy of the financial information and
also ensures that the Company has an effective internal control framework.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

o The Company has issued a "Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019" (Compliance Statement) along-with the details of non-compliances of
non-mandatory Regulations with the explanations thereon, which has also been reviewed by the
Statutory Auditors of the Company and issued a Review Report thereon.

o The Committee has also reviewed the Compliance Statement and confirm that the requirements of the
Regulations have been complied except for those as stated therein for non-mandatory Regulations.

o The Committee has reviewed the revised “Code of Conduct” of the Company which has been prepared
as per the Guidelines for preparing Code of Conduct and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and
recommended to the Board for approval, adoption and dissemination and has further ensured that
appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting
policies and procedures.

o The Committee ensured that a complete record of particulars of significant policies along-with the dates
on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

o Alldirect and indirect trading and holdings of the Company's shares by Directors and or their spouses
were duly notified in writing to the Company Secretary along with the price, the number of shares, form of
shares, and the nature of the transaction. All such transactions were disclosed at the Pakistan Stock
Exchange and Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan and reported to the Board of Directors.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -ANNUAL REPORT 2024:

o The Company has issued a very comprehensive Annual Report 2024 which comprise the statement of
financial position as at September 30, 2024, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, which gives fair, balanced and understandable information in excess of
the regulatory requirements to offer an in-depth understanding of the management style, the policies set
in place by the Company, its performance during the year, and future prospects to various stakeholders
of the Company.

o0 The Audit Committee believes that the Annual Report 2024 includes both financial and non-financial
performance, risk and opportunities and outcomes attributable to Company's activities and key
stakeholders having significant influence on its value creation ability.

o The Committee has briefly reviewed the details, contents and the adequacy of the details and
information reported in the Directors' Review on Condensed Interim Financial Statements during the
year and the Directors' Report on Annual Financial Statements.

o The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have endorsed the financial statements of the
Company before presenting to the Committee and the Board. They acknowledge their responsibility for
true and fair presentation of the Company's financial statements, accuracy of reporting, compliance with
regulations, applicable accounting standards, establishment and maintenance of internal controls and
systems of the Company.

o TheAnnual Audited Financial Statements presents a true and fair view of the Company's affairs, results
of operations, (losses)/ profits, cash flows and changes in equity for the year under review.

o The Committee has reviewed the Condensed Interim Quarterly Financial Statements and Annual
Audited Financial Statements for the year 2023-24 and recommended to the Board for approval and
focused on the followings:

— Majorjudgmental areas

— Significant adjustments resulting from the audit (if any)

— Going concern assumptions

— Changesin accounting policies and practices (if any)

— Compliance with accounting policies and practices

— Compliance with rules, regulations, statutory and regulatory requirements
— Allrelated party transactions

0 The Related Party Transactions made by the Company in the normal course of business has been
reviewed by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval.

o Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments. Certain valuation reports like
Revaluation Report of Property, plant & equipment and the Actuarial Valuation of retirement benefits
conducted by the third party professionals have been examined and incorporated in the Financial
Statements. Proper and adequate accounting records have been maintained by the Company. The
Financial Statements comply with the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 and the external reporting is
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consistent with management processes and adequate for shareholders need.

o Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017. The
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 and are in agreement with the books of
account and returns of the Company.

o The Committee reviewed all the announcement of results of the Company prior to external
communication and publication.

RISKMANAGEMENT & INTERNAL CONTROLS:

o The Company's system of internal controls are sound in design and has been continually evaluated for
effectiveness and adequacy.

o The Company has in place a Risk Management Framework through which risk are identified, analyzed,
evaluated and mitigated through appropriate actions in the form of policies and procedures. The
Company periodically monitors the emerging risks, suggests actions and obtain reports on the
implementation status of risk mitigating actions.

o The Committee has ensured the achievement of operational, compliance, risk management, financial
reporting, control objectives and safeguarding of the assets of the Company.

o0 The Risk Management Framework is reviewed and monitored annually by the Risk Management
Committee and the Audit Committee for recommendations to the Board. No material risk was noted
during the period that has not been appropriately mitigated by the management.

o There were no complaints and or cases reported to the Committee during the year regarding accounting
&internal controls, fraud and whistle blowing.

INTERNAL AUDIT:

o The Committee confirmed that the Head of Internal Audit is experienced and conversant with the
Company's policies and procedures.

o The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and conducted
meetings without the presence of Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer and External Auditors
of the Company to comply with the regulatory requirements. The Committee has ensured that the
function has the necessary access to the management and right to seek the information and
explanations.

o The Committee ensured that the Internal Audit Plan provides a financial and business segment wise
coverage and devotes effort to the review of the risk management framework surrounding the major
business risk.

o Internal Audits were executed across all business by suitably qualified and experienced employees of
the internal audit department, who are well conversant of the Company's policies, procedures, relevant
rules, regulations and laws. The Internal Audit were conducted its assignments, based on the Internal
Audit Plan approved by the Board, as recommended by the Audit Committee. Observations were
discussed taking appropriate action or bringing the matters to the Board's attention, where required.

o Coordination between the External and Internal Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and
contribution to the Company's objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and compliance
with the Laws and Regulations.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

o0 The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the Key Audit Matters and observations with the
external auditors. The Management Letter issued by the External Auditors on audit observations for the
year 2022-23 was discussed with them by the Committee and for the year 2023-24 will be discussed with-
in the specified time, as required by the Code of Corporate Governance.

o0 The Committee conducted meeting with External Auditors and discussed the matters that the external
auditors wished to highlight, were freely discussed with them, as required by the regulations. The
Committee also met the External Auditors in the absence of Chief Financial Officer and the Head of
Internal Audit, in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance.

o The external Auditors firm has been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review
Programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and the firm is fully compliant
with the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) Guidelines on Code of Ethics, as adopted by
ICAP. The External Auditors have indicated their willingness to continue as External Auditors.

o Being eligible for reappointment under the Listing Regulations and the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 the Committee has recommended the re-appointment of
external auditors Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co. (Chartered Accountants) and their remuneration, the
provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the Company by the external auditors in addition to
the audit of financial statements for the ensuing financial year 2024-25.

M. Abdul Jabbar
Karachi: December 30, 2024 Chairman - Audit Committee
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Independent Auditor's Review Report to the
Members of Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Sanghar Sugar Mills
Limited (the Company) for the year ended September 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation
36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. Areview is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also
ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and
have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the
Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess
and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party
transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended September 30, 2024.

CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS

Place: Karachi
Date: December 30, 2024

UDIN: CR2024102218cwHzLmBu
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of the Company: Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited
Year Ending : September 30, 2024

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. Thetotal number of Directors are Seven as per the following:

a) Male: Six

b) Female: One
2. The composition of Board is as follows:

Independent Directors
Mr. Mehmood Alam
Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar
Mr. Muhammad Qasim
Ms. Misbah (Female)

Executive Directors
Mr. Ghulam Hyder
Haji Khuda Bux Rajar

Best practices of Corporate Governance entail having an optimal number and mix of Board members with core
competencies, diversity, requisite skills, knowledge, experiences and fulfils any other criteria as deem relevantin
the context of the Company's operations. The current Board of Directors of the Company adequately meets this
requirement. Further, existing independent directors play an effective part within the Board and make valuable
contributions. Therefore, the fraction (2.33) forindependent directors has not been rounded up.

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven listed companies,
including this company.

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their
date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

6. Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the
Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

8. TheBoard have formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act
and these Regulations.

9. The following are the details of Directors who are duly Certified or exempted from Directors' Training Program:
At the time of Election of Directors on November 02,2023:

1. Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar - Certified
2. Mr. Ghulam Hyder - Certified
3. Mr. Muhammad Qasim - Certified
4. Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar - Certified
5. Haji Khuda Bux Rajar - Exempted
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Subsequent to the year ended September 30, 2024:
6. Mr. Mehmood Alam - Certified
7. Ms. Misbah - Certified

The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration, terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements
ofthe Regulations.

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
Board.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
a) Audit Committee:

Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Qasim Member
Mr. Mehmood Alam Member
b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee:
Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Chairman
Mr. Ghulam Hyder Member
Ms. Misbah Member
c) Risk Management Committee:
Mr. Mehmood Alam Chairman
Haji Khuda Bux Rajar Member
Mr. M. Abdul Jabbar Member
d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Qasim Member
Ms. Misbah Member
Syed Rehan Ahmad Hashmi Member
e) Information Technology & Steering Committee:
Mr. Ghulam Hyder Chairman
Syed Rehan Ahmad Hashmi Member
Mr. Sheraz Khan Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee Five meetings
b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee Two meetings
c) Risk Management Committee Two meetings
d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Two meetings
e) Information Technology & Steering Committee Two meetings

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified and experienced
for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
Quality Control Review program of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent
and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit,
Company Secretary or Director of the Company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied
with; and

126



SANGHAR SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

Annual Report 2024

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below:

NSC; Regﬂlation Requirement Explanation of Non-Compliance
. o.
1 5 Representation of Minority Shareholders None of the person representing minority
- The minority members as a class shall shareholders, filed Consent to act as director with
be facilitated by the Board to contest the Company during the timeline as specified in
election of directors. the Election of Directors held on November 02,
2023. Therefore, the elected Directors of the
Company will take due care of minority
shareholders.
2 10(1) Responsibilities of the Board of Directors - Non-mandatory provision of the Regulations and
Adoption of Corporate governance are partially complied. The Company is
practices by the Company deliberating on full compliance with all the
provisions of Regulations.
3 10(6) Al directors of a company shall attend its Two Directors have attended the 38th Annual
general meeting(s), (ordinary and General Meeting (AGM) of the Company.
extraordinary unless precluded from doing Remaining directors provided reasonable cause
so due to any reasonable cause. for not attending the AGM
4 | 10(A) Role of the Board and its members to At present, the Board provides governance and
address sustainability risk and oversight in relation to Company's initiatives on
opportunities. The Board is responsible for environmental, social and governance (ESG)
setting the Company's sustainability matters and prefers to continue the same practice.
strategies, priorities and targets to create | Currently, the Board has not constituted a separate
long term corporate value. The Board may Sustainability Committee and the functions are
establish a dedicated Susta|nab|l|ty being performed by the Corporate Social
Committee. Responsibility Committee.
5 19(3) Directors' Training - Companies are also The Company will comply with this Regulation in
encouraged to arrange training for: (i) at least due course of time. However, this is non-
one female executive every year under the | mandatory Regulation but will give benefit to the
Directors' Training program from year July Company.
2020; and (i) at least one head of
department every year under the Directors'
Training program from July 2022.
6 29 Nomination Committee - The Board may Currently, .the.Board ha§ not constituted a.
constitute a separate committee, separatq nomination committee and the functions
designated as the nomination committee, are being performed by the Human Resource
of such number and class of Directors, as and Remuneration Committee.
it may deem appropriate in its
circumstances
7 35 Disclosure of Significant Policies on website All the policies are well circulated among the
- The Company may post key elements of relevant employees and Directors, the Board
its significant policies including diversity, shall consider posting such policies and synopsis
equity & inclusion and protection against on its website.
harassment at workplace (as advised by
SECP vide its SRO 920(1)/2024 dated June
12, 2024), brief synopsis of terms of
reference of the Board's Committees on its
website and key elements of the Directors'
remuneration policy.

Karachi: December 30, 2024

Ghulam Dastagir Rajar
Chairman
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OPERATIONAL DATA

Duration of Season (Days)

Cane crushed (Tons)
Sucrose Recovery (%)

Sugar Made (Tons)
Molasses (Tons)

All figures are in Rs in '000
PROFIT OR LOSS RESULTS

Turnover - Net
Gross Profit / (Loss)
Operating Profit / (Loss)

(Loss) / Profit before
levies & taxation

(Loss)/Profit for the year
ASSETS EMPLOYED
Operating Assets

Long Term Deposits
Deferred Cost

Current Assets

Total Assets Employed
FINANCED BY
Shareholder's equity
Long Term Financing
Deferred Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Total Fund Invested

KEY OPERATING &
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
95 85 125 108 109 100 142 133 117 137
515,994.296 406,402.792 581,109.556 451,275.963 387,302.875 490,932 712,124 625237 563617 630,317
10.135 10.263 10635 10012 10263 1076 1037 1012 1020  10.19
5229350 4171125  61,785.00 4523950 39,804.25 5279925 73776 63380 57,387.5 64,271
2465000 21,300.00 2629134 18720 16,802 23590 42,017 30300 27,040 34,299
5415204 3922156 3,872,185 2,860,053 2,938,182 2,770,439 3,405,535 2,583,232 2,832,657 2,869,164
339,327 519742 360641 32,913 156161 131778 98520 (70,660) 151,582 257,087
124,412 281506 177,281 (92,080) 49137 24059 146,802 (165,398) 59,919 170,905
(80,321) 132,451 70466 (16,094) (98,846) (148,608) 24,868 (259,678) 11,060 89,783
(139,660) 104,883 1,609 (29,826) (118,755) (98,855 19,426 (287,104) 13953 57,400
3425535 3552387 3,707,666 2,615,681 2,712,815 2,807,695 2,909,416 1,745965 1465348 1,167,508
709 1,059 4586 20581 20231 17,323 18823 20961 15467 10,966

— - - — — — 8771 17543 28885 33373
1,882,399 1,468,147 1622488 1,220,197 606939 815755 1,131,843 1,302,916 915207 688,656
5,308,643 5021503 5334740 3,856,459 3,330,085 3,640,773 4,068,853 3,087,385 2,424,907 1,900,503
1,908,924 2057446 1965075 1,080,845 1,108,108 1,223,854 1,330,699 569,165 863437 860,635
131,277 - 1752 114,145 247536 145670 250,863 345291 262,532 103,640
857,560 842488 850,123 483704 508584 519,916 603790 300,074 295067 325,349
2,410,882 2121659 2,517,790 2,177,765 1,475,757 1,751,333 1,883,501 1,872,855 1,003,871 610,879
5308,643 5021593 5334740 3,856,459 3,330,085 3,640,773 4,068,853 3,087,385 2,424,907 1,900,503
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Graphical Presentation
of Financial Highlights

Total Assets Employed - 2024 Total Assets Employed - 2023

B Operating Assets B Operating Assets

Long Term Deposits Long Term Deposits

Deferred Cost Deferred Cost

Current Assets Current Assets

Total Fund Invested - 2024 Total Fund Invested - 2023

= Shareholder's equity = Shareholder's equity

Long Term Liabilities Long Term Liabilities

Deferred Liabilities Deferred Liabilities

Current Liabilities Current Liabilities
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Horizontal Analysis of
Financial Statements

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
................................. Rupees in 000 Variance in % .....oeveenseeseesenseenne

FINANCIAL POSITION
Total Non-Current Assets 3,426,244 3,553,096 3,712,252 2,636,262 2,733,046 (3.57) (4.28) 40.81 (3.54) (3.26)
Total Current Assets 1,882,399 1,468,497 1,622,488 1,220,197 606,939 28.19 (9.25) 3297 101.04  (25.60)
Total Assets 5,308,643 5,021,593 5334,740 3,856,459 3,339,985 5.72 (5.87) 38.33 1546 (8.26)
Total Equity & Surplus on revaluation 1,908,924 2,057,446 1,965,075 1,080,845 1,108,108 (7.22) 4.70 81.81 (2.46) (9.46)
Total Non-Current Liabilities 988,837 842,488 851,875 597,849 756,120 17.37 (1.10) 42.49 (20.93) 13.60
Total Current Liabilities 2,410,882 2,121,659 2,517,790 2,177,765 1,475,757 13.63 (15.73) 15.61 4757  (15.74)
Total Equity & Liabilities 5,308,643 5,021,593 5,334,740 3,856,459 3,339,985 5.72 (5.87) 38.33 1546 (8.26)
PROFIT OR LOSS
Sales 5415294 3,922,156 3,872,185 2,860,053 2,938,182 38.07 1.29 3539  (2.66) 6.05
Cost of sales (5,075,967) (3,402,414) (3,511,544) (2,827,140) (2,782,021) 49.19 (3.11) 24.21 1.62 543
Gross Profit 339,327 519,742 360,641 32,913 156,161 (34.71) 4412 995.74 (78.92) 18.50
Trading activities — — 111 — — —  (100.00) 100.00 — —
Distribution cost (3,219)  (11,153) (696) (766) (710) (71.14)  1,502.44 (9.14) 789  (94.41)
Administrative expenses (159,981)  (134,539)  (132,656) (114,239) (99,630) 18.91 1.42 1612 14.66 9.32
Other operating expenses (51,715)  (92,544) (50,119) (9,968)  (6,684) (44.12) 84.65 402.80 49.13 5.03
Other income 46,616 2,155 3,664 187,106 5463  2,063.16 (41.18) (98.04)3,324.97  120.37
Operating Profit 171,028 283,661 180,945 95,046 54,600 (39.71) 56.77 90.38 74.08  126.94
Finance cost (251,349) (151,210)  (110,479) (111,140) (153,446) 66.23 36.87 (0.59) (27.57)  (11.13)
(Loss) / Profit before
levies & taxation (80,321) 132,451 70,466  (16,094) (98,846)  (160.64) 87.96 537.84 (83.72)  (33.49)
Levies & Taxation (59,339)  (27,568) (68,857)  (13,732) (19,909)  (269.73) (59.96) 401.43 (31.03) (140.02)
(Loss) / Profit for the year (139,660) 104,883 1,609  (29,826) (118,755)  (183.42) 6,418.52 105.39 (74.88) 20.13
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Vertical Analysis of
Financial Statements

2024 2024 2023 2023 2022 2022 2021 2021 2020 2020
Rupees in 000 % Rupees in 000 %  Rupeesin000 % Rupeesin000 % Rupeesin000 %
FINANCIAL POSITION
Total Non-Current Assets 3,426,244 64.54 3,553,096 70.76 3,712,252 69.59 2,636,262 68.36 2,733,046 81.83
Total Current Assets 1,882,399 3546 1,468,497 29.24 1,622,488 3041 1,220,197 3164 606,939 18.17
Total Assets 5,308,643 100.00 5,021,593  100.00 5,334,740  100.00 3,856,459 100.00 3,339,985  100.00

Total Equity & Surplus on revaluation 1,908,924 3596 2,057,446 40.97 1965075  36.84 1,080,845 28.03 1,108,108 33.18

Total Non-Current Liabilities 988,837 18.63 842,488 16.78 851,875 1597 597,849 1550 756,120 22.64
Total Current Liabilities 2,410,882 4541 2,121,659 42.25 2,517,790  47.20 2,177,765 56.47 1,475,757 44.18
Total Equity & Liabilities 5,308,643 100.00 5,021,593  100.00 5,334,740  100.00 3,856,459 100.00 3,339,985  100.00
PROFIT OR LOSS

Sales 5,415,294 100.00 3,922,156  100.00 3,872,185 100.00 2,860,053 100.00 2,938,182  100.00
Cost of sales (5,075,967) (93.73) (3,402,414)  (86.75)(3,511,544)  (90.69) (2,827,140)  (98.85) (2,782,021)  (94.69)
Gross Profit 339,327 6.27 519,742 1325 360,641 9.31 32,913 115 156,161 5.31
Trading activities — — — — 1M — — — — —
Distribution cost (3,219) (0.06) (11,153) (0.28) (696)  (0.02) (766) 0.03 (710) (0.02)
Administrative expenses (159,981) (2.95)  (134,539) (3.43) (132,656)  (3.43) (114,239) (3.99)  (99,630) (3.39)
Other operating expenses (51,715) (0.95) (92,544) (2.36)  (50,119)  (1.29) (9,968) (0.35) (6,684) (0.23)
Other income 46,616 0.86 2,155 0.05 3,664 0.09 187,106 6.54 5,463 0.19
Operating Profit 171,028 3.16 283,661 7.23 180,945 467 95046 3.32 54,600 1.86
Finance cost (251,349) (4.64) (151,210) (3.86) (110,479)  (2.85) (111,140) (3.89)  (153,446) (5.22)
(Loss) / Profit before

levies & taxation (80,321) (1.48) 132,451 338 70,466 182 (16,094) (0.56)  (98,846) (3.36)
Levies & Taxation (59,339) (1.10) (27,568) (0.89) 68,857 1.78 13,732 0.48 19,909 0.68
(Loss) / Profit for the year (139,660) (2.58) 104,883 267 1,609 0.04  (29,826) (1.04)  (118,755) (4.04)
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Stakeholder Engagement,
Investor Relations & Financial Ratios

The Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) recognizes and protects the rights of the various
stakeholders (internal as well as external) established under relevant laws and regulations and has put in
place relevant policies and codes for their protection. The Company maintains sound collaboration
relationships with its stakeholders. Procedure for stakeholder's engagement includes communication, good
harmony, compliance with laws and regulations and sugarcane growers focused approach which is the key
factors for establishment of collaboration relationship with stakeholders. Summary of the rights of the various
stakeholders has been discussed below:

Shareholders

Access to shareholder records, enquiries concerning verification of transfer deeds, transfer of share
certificates, change of address etc., are directed to the Shares Registrar. We have disclosed essential
information to the shareholders and treated them equitably. Shareholders meeting along with timely and
accurate reporting to our shareholders are the effective modes of engagements with our shareholders

Regulators

The Company make compliance with laws, rules, regulations and guidelines as directed by the Regulators.
Timely, appropriately and accurately disclosures of information, as required by law, are our high priority. We
have submitting periodic reports, providing and gives information as and when required.

Customers & Suppliers

The Company receive high-quality services and supplies from our suppliers and ensure that the product we
give to our customers should be of high standards. We establish the confidentiality of customer information
and redressal their complaints and concerns with honesty and trustworthy. We have maintain a good
relationship with our customers and suppliers.

Employees

As a good employer, the Company gives equal employment opportunity, gives performance based
remuneration. Having Human Resource policies and procedures, the Company maintains effective
communication between the management and the staff. To secure maximum cooperation o fthe employees
and to motivate them to give their best. Gives full attention to redressal of complaints & grievances.

Community

The Company acknowledges its social and ethical responsibility to carry out its business in order to keep it
safe and protect it for the generations to come. Gives priority to the fair distribution of resources, opportunites
and financial assistances. The Company is contributing to the National growth by sharing its revenue with the
nation in the form of taxes, rates, duties and other levies.

Financial Reporting & Communication

Communication with the users of financial statements is give high priority. Annual, half yearly and quarterly
reports are distributed to the shareholders and provided to other users with in the time specified by the
Regulators and also makes it available on the Company's website for the easy access for the shareholders
and potential shareholders. There is also an opportunity for individual shareholder to participate at the
General Meetings to ensure high level of accountibility. The Company notifies information to the Regulators
from time to time. This help the shareholders remain connected with the Company. The notifications mainly
include Financial Results, Board of Directors meetings, shareholders meetings etc.
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Media & Website

The Company disseminates information through print, electronic, social and other web media. The Company
is maintaining its website providing complete information about the Company, Investors Relations, Investors
Informations, Governance, Policy & Procedures and contact details. This can be accessed through a link
www.sangharsugarmills.com

Public Information

Financial analysts, stock brokers, interested investors and financial media desiring information about the
Company and its product may contact the Chief Financial Officer and or the Company Secretary at Head
Office, Karachi.

Financial Ratios

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

PROFITABILITY RATIOS

Gross Profit Ratio (%) 6.27 1325 9.31 1.15 5.31 4.76 289  (2.74) 5.35 8.96
Net Profit to Sales (%) (2.58) 2.67 0.04 (1.04)  (4.04) (3.57) 057  (11.11) 0.49 2.00
Return on Capital Employed (%) 8.96 13.79 9.21 8.79 4.93 1.97 11.03  (85.28) 12.82  37.87
TURNOVER RATIOS

Inventory Turnover Ratio 410 3.04 3.44 5.50 6.51 3.78 3.51 3.12 4.59 5.21

Fixed Assets Turnover Ratio 158.09 11041 104.44 109.35  108.31 98.67 117.05 147.96  193.37 245.93

INVESTOR INFORMATION

Price Earning Ratio (1.99) 142  103.94 (6.49) (1.74) (3.15) 15.36 (1.55) 36.39 5.31
Market Value per Share 23.26 1250  14.00 16.20 17.34 26.05 2498  37.35 4250 4174
Book Value per Share 159.80 17223  164.50 9048 9276 10245 11139  54.02 46.68  37.78
Eaming / (Loss) per Share (11.69) 8.78 0.13 (250)  (9.94) 8.28 1.63  (24.03) 1.17 4.80

LIQUIDITY RATIOS

Current Ratio 0.78 0.69 0.64 0.56 0.41 047 0.60 0.69 091 1.13
CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIOS

Debt Equity Ratio 0.54 0.05 0.42 0.97 0.68 0.86 1.05 3.10 1.1 0.53
Interest Cover Ratio 0.68 1.88 1.64 0.86 0.36 0.14 120 (1.75) 1.23 2.1
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Statement of Value Addition
and its Distribution

.................... 2024 ... S | 2. R
Value Addition (Rs. '000) % (Rs. '000) %
Turnover Gross 7,273,928 99.363 5,225,178 99.959
Other Income 46,616 0.637 2,155 0.041
7,320,544 100.000 5,227,333 100.000
Cane Procurement and
related expenses 5,806,133 103.691 3,175,764 83.151
Other Expenses (206,677) (3.691) 643,516 16.849
5,599,456 100.000 3,819,280 100.000
1,721,088 23.510 1,408,053 26.936
Value Distribution
Distributed as follows
To Employees
- Remuneration 20.382 20.206
350,790 284,508
To Government
- Sales Tax, FED & Others 999,688 58.085 634,330 45.050
- Levies 81,196 4.718 60,139 4.271
- Deferred Tax (20,048) (1.165) (34,961) (2.483)
- Cess & Fees 8,385 0.487 6,604 0.469
1,069,222 666,112

To Providers of Capital

- Finance Cost 14.604 10.739

251,349 151,210
To Corporate Social Responsibility
- Charity & Donations 5,603 0.326 7,142 0.507
5,603 7,142
Retained in the Business
- Depreciation & Amortization 183,785 10.678 194,198 13.792
- (Loss) / Profit for the year (139,660) (8.115) 104,883 7.449
44,125 299,081
1,721,088 100.000 1,408,053 100.000
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Graphical Presentation of
Value Distribution

Value Distribution - 2024

[ ] To Employees
To Government
To Providers of Capital
To Corporate Social Responsibility

Retained in the Business

Value Distribution - 2023

u To Employees
To Government
To Providers of Capital

To Corporate Social Responsibility

Retained in the Business
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Independent Auditors' Report
to the Members of Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited, ("the Company") which
comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2024, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
CompaniesAct, 2017 (XIX 0of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at September 30, 2024 and of the loss and other comprehensive loss, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (“the Code”) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 22.1.3 of the annexed financial statements, which describes the uncertainty
related to the outcome of legal matters related to minimum sugar cane price and other matters. Our opinion is
not qualified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matter. Following are the Key audit matters:
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S.No.

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1.

Contingencies

The Company is under litigations in respect of
various matters from years related to sugar
price fixation and other sugar industry matters
including tax orders and related contingen-
cies as well as other miscellaneous claims in
respect of the assets/ payables of the
Company as disclosed in note 22 of the
annexed financial statements.

These contingencies requires continuous
follow up of management's judgments and
estimates in relation to the interpretation of
relevant laws, notifications and regulations
and the recognition and measurement of any
provisions that may be required against such
contingencies. Due to inherent uncertainties
and the time period such matters may take to
resolve, the management judgments and
estimates in relation to such contingencies
may be complex and can significantly impact
the annexed financial statements. Accordingly
these are considered as key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

® Assessing the management's processes to identify new
possible litigations, obligations and changes in existing
obligations through inquiries from management and
review of the minutes of meetings of the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee.

® Review of the relevant information including case
proceedings, interim and final adjudication orders with
related industry information and correspondences in
respect of the ongoing litigations.

® Obtaining confirmation from the legal counsel of the
Company to evaluate the status of the resolved and
pending litigations on the reporting date and view point
of the Company's legal counsel thereon.

® Examining legal and professional expenses to confirm
that all pending legal matters are identified and
disclosed.

® Re-computing the amounts of obligations and recorded
liabilities based on available underlying information and
confronted parameters.

® Assessing the adequacy and appropriateness of the
related disclosures made in the accompanying
financial statements in light of IAS-37 “Provisions and
Contingencies”.

Recognition of Revenue

The Company is engaged in the production
and sale of sugar and by-products and
recognized revenue there from for the year
ended 30 September 2024.

We identified recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter in consistency with the previous
year keeping in view the importance and
relevance thereto with the materiality as well
as complexity of revenue being one of the
key performance indicators of the Company
and gives rise to an inherentrisk thatrevenue
could be subject to misstatement to meet
expectations or targets.

(Refer to note 4.12 and 23 to the financial
statements).

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

® Obtaining an understanding of the process relating to
recognition of revenue and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over recording of revenue.

® Assessing the appropriateness of the Company's
accounting policies for revenue recognition under
distressed circumstances and compliance of those
policies with applicable accounting standards.

® Obtaining an understanding of the nature of the
revenue, testing a sample of sales contracts to confirm
our understanding and assessing whether or not
management's application of IFRS 15 requirements
was in accordance with the standard.

® Performing analytical procedures and test of details by
selecting samples of transactions for comparing with
sales orders, sales invoices, delivery orders and other
underlying records.

® Comparing a sample of revenue transactions recorded
during the year end with the sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery orders and other relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the related revenue was
recorded in the appropriate accounting period.

® Reviewing the adequacy of disclosure as required
under applicable financial reporting framework.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual report of the Company, but does notinclude the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Managementis responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, managementis responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

® FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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® Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
accountand returns;

c) Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company's business; and

d) Inouropinion, no Zakatwas deductible at source under Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Fahad Ali Shaikh.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Place: Karachi
Date: December 30, 2024
UDIN: AR202410221n075UISzL
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Statement of Financial Position

As at September 30, 2024

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Long term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other receivables

Income tax refundable - net of provision
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized capital

20,000,000 shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Unappropriated profit
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term finance

Lease liabilities

Deferred liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Accrued finance cost

Short term borrowings

Unclaimed dividend

Current portion of lease liabilities
Current portion of long term finance

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

5
6

© N

11
12

13

14

16
17
18

19
20
21

17
16

22

September 30 September 30
2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
3,425,535 3,552,387
709 709
3,426,244 3,553,096
75,265 82,686
1,497,402 977,463
27,924 27,924
123,862 129,787
3,712 2,422
76,652 103,368
27,125 25,316
50,457 119,531
1,882,399 1,468,497
5,308,643 5,021,593
200,000 200,000
119,460 119,460
185,181 252,764
1,604,283 1,685,222
1,908,924 2,057,446
131,277 —
857,560 842,488
988,837 842,488
1,454,524 2,009,318
57,036 6,394
860,000 100,000
3,731 4,696
— 1,251
35,591 —
2,410,882 2,121,659
5,308,643 5,021,593

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive

Director

Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended September 30, 2024

Restated
September 30 September 30
2024 2023
Notes (Rupees in ‘000)

Sales 23 5,415,294 3,922,156
Cost of sales 24 5,075,967 3,402,414
Gross Profit 339,327 519,742
Distribution cost 25 3,219 11,153
Administrative expenses 26 159,981 134,539
Other operating expenses 27 51,715 92,544

214,915 238,236
Operating Profit 124,412 281,506
Other income 28 46,616 2,155

171,028 283,661
Finance cost 29 251,349 151,210
(Loss) / Profit before levies and taxation (80,321) 132,451
Levies 30 79,387 62,529
(Loss) / Profit before taxation (159,708) 69,922
Taxation 31 (20,048) (34,961)
(Loss) / Profit for the year (139,660) 104,883
(Loss) / Earning per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 32 (11.69) 8.78
The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended September 30, 2024

September 30 September 30

2024 2023
Notes (Rupees in ‘000)
(Loss) / Profit for the year (139,660) 104,883
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Remeasurement loss on actuarial valuation of 18.3.4 &
defined benefit and leave encashment plan 18.41 (12,843) (18,134)
Related deferred tax 18.1 3,981 5,622
(8,862) (12,512)
Total comprehensive (Loss) / Income (148,522) 92,371

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended September 30, 2024

Issued, Unappropriated Surplus on
Subscribed & profit revaluation of Total
Paid-up Capital property, plant &
equipment
........................................ (RS in "000) .cccoreeeiiiiecccemnmeeee e e e e e eeeas

Balance as at October 01, 2022 119,460 68,999 1,776,616 1,965,075
Total Comprehensive income for the
year ended September 30, 2023

Income for the year — 104,883 — 104,883

Other comprehensive loss — (12,512) — (12,512)

— 92,371 — 92,371

Transfer on account of incremental
depreciation charged on surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and
equipment - net of deferred tax — 91,394 (91,394) —
Balance as at September 30, 2023 119,460 252,764 1,685,222 2,057,446
Balance as at October 01, 2023 119,460 252,764 1,685,222 2,057,446
Total Comprehensive loss for the
year ended September 30, 2024

Loss for the year — (139,660) — (139,660)

Other comprehensive loss — (8,862) — (8,862)

— (148,522) — (148,522)

Transfer on account of incremental
depreciation charged on surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and
equipment - net of deferred tax — 80,939 (80,939) —
Balance as at September 30, 2024 119,460 185,181 1,604,283 1,908,924

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended September 30, 2024

September 30 September 30

2024 2023
Notes (Rupees in ‘000)
(Loss) / Profit before levies and taxation (80,321) 132,451
Adjustment for non cash charges and other items:
Depreciation 5.1.2 183,239 190,653
Depreciation on right-of use assets 5.3 546 3,545
Employees retirement benefits expense 18.3.2&18.4.2 37,047 26,167
Provision for market committee fee 18.2 5,160 4,064
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 51.3 (684) (1,188)
Provision for slow moving items and obsolescence 71 1,250 2,054
Finance cost 29 251,349 151,210
477,907 376,505

Cash flow from operating activities before
adjustment of working capital changes 397,586 508,956
Changes in Working capital
Decrease / (Increase) in current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 6,171 (23,333)
Stock - in - trade (519,939) 285,966
Trade debts — 4,830
Loans and advances 5,925 (1,791)
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (1,290) (16)
Other receivables 26,716 (47,129)

(482,417) 218,527
(Decrease ) / Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables (554,794) 353,588

(639,625) 1,081,071
Employees retirement benefits paid during the year (15,949) (15,417)
Finance cost paid during the year (200,575) (176,963)
Decrease in long term deposits during the year — 3,527
Levies and income taxes paid during the year (81,196) (60,139)

(297,720) (248,992)
Net cash (outflows) / inflows from operating activities (937,345) 832,079
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Note

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Additions to property, plant and equipment

Net cash outflows from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term financing

Payments of unclaimed dividend

Long term finance obtained

Increase / (decrease) in short term borrowings - net
Payments of lease liabilities

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year - restated

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 33

Restated
September 30 September 30
2024 2023

(Rupees in ‘000)

700 1,424
(56,949) (39,155)
(56,249) (37,731)
(17,870) (74,022)

(965) —
184,738 —
685,000 (559,855)

(1,383) (16,841)
849,520 (650,718)
(144,074) 143,630
94,531 (49,099)
(49,543) 94,531

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer
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1.2

2.2

23

24

2.41

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2024

COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Company is a public limited Company incorporated in 1986 in Pakistan and its shares are quoted
on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the Company is situated at Office No.
204, 2nd Floor, Clifton Centre, Block 5, Clifton, Karachi.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of sugar and sale of its by-products
i.e. molasses and bagasse. The Company has also installed bagasse fired transmission equipment to
sell surplus electric power. The manufacturing facilities are located at Sanghar Sindhri Road, Deh
Kehore, District Sanghar in the province of Sindh. The total area of industry land / manufacturing
facilities which includes the main factory is spread over 320.625 Acres. Covered Area of Building is
approximately 299,759 Sq. Feet.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

— International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

— Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

— Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the
requirements of IFRS and IFAS standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Accounting Convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the
following:

employee retirement benefits that are based on actuarial valuation;

items of property, plant and equipment carried at revalued amounts;
stock in trade when valued at net realizable value;

right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities in accordance with IFRS-16; and
Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the
year ended September 30, 2024

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that became effective during the year

There were certain new amendments to the approved accounting standards and a new interpretation
issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which became
effective during the year but are considered not to be relevant or have any significant effect on the
Company's operations, therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements except IAS-12
application which is explained below:
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2.4.2

IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes

During the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan ('ICAP') has withdrawn Technical
Release 27 “IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)" and issued “IAS 12 Application Guidance on
Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes” vide its circular No. 07/2024 dated May 15, 2024
('the Guidance'). According to the Guidance, the minimum taxes and the final taxes that are not
calculated on the ‘taxable profit' as defined in IAS 12 but calculated on turnover or other basis in
excess of normal tax liability, and the tax deducted at source other than from dividends from
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates under final tax regime, are out of scope of IAS 12 “Income
Taxes” and fall in the ambit of IFRIC 21 “Levies” and IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”.

Accordingly, the Company has changed its accounting policy to recognize such taxes as 'Levies'
which were previously being recognized as 'Income Tax'. This change has been accounted for
retrospectively in line with the requirements of IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors”. There has been no effect of restatement on the statement of financial position,
the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and earning / loss per
share as a result of this change.

Before change in Impact of After Change in
Accounting policy adjustment  accounting policy

Effect on statement of profit or loss

For the year ended September 30, 2024

Levies - 79,387 79,387
Loss before taxation (80,321) (79,387) (159,708)
Taxation 59,339 (79,387) (20,048)
For the year ended September 30, 2023

Levies - 62,529 62,529
Profit before taxation 132,451 (62,529) 69,922
Taxation 27,568 (62,529) (34,961)

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and
the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have
significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting
period beginning

on or after:
IAS-1 Presentation of Financial Statements January 1, 2024
IAS-7 Statement of Cash Flows January 1, 2024
IFRS-16 Leases (Amendments) January 1, 2024
IAS-21 The Effects of changes in Foreign January 1, 2025
IFRS-7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures January 1, 2026
IFRS-17  Insurance Contracts January 1, 2026
IFRS-9 Financial Instruments — Classification January 1, 2026
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Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards and interpretation, which have not
been notified locally or declared exempt by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) as at June 30, 2024.

IFRS -1  First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS - 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

IFRS - 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

IFRIC - 12 Service Concession Arrangement

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards
requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affects the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under that circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
judgment about carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcome that
require material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and any future period affected.

Judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting standards that have
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next period are discussed in the following paragraphs of these note.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates,
judgments and assumptions which are significant to the financial statements:

- Levies and Taxation :

In making the estimates of the levies and income tax liabilities, the management considers
current income tax law and decisions of appellate authorities. Deferred tax estimate is made
considering future applicable tax rate.

- Employees Retirement Benefits:

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in these financial statements
for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligation and leave encashment plan. Any
changes in these assumptions in future years might effect gains and losses in those years. The
actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases
and mortality rates.

- Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets

The management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation / amortisation
charge for its property, plant and equipment / intangible assets. The management reviews the
value of assets for possible impairment on financial year end. Any change in the estimate in the
future years might effect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and
equipment / intangible assets with a corresponding effect on the depreciation / amortization
charge and impairment.

- Stock in trade

The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock in trade to assess any diminution in the
respective carrying values. Net realizable value is determined with reference to the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost necessary to make the
sale.
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- Contingencies

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment
as the outcome of the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based
on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and
liabilities which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future event(s).

- Expected credit losses against trade debts, deposits, advances and other receivables

The Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, advances and other receivables to
assess amount of doubtful debts and expected credit losses required there against periodically.
While determining the losses, the Company considers financial health, market information,
aging of receivables, credit worthiness, credit rating, past records and business relationship.

- Slow Moving Stores and Obsolescence

In making estimates of quantum of slow moving items and obsolescence, the aging analysis,
current condition of various items and expected use in future are considered.

- Impairment against non financial assets

The Company reviews carrying amount of assets periodically to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is
estimated and impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

- Leases

The Company uses judgments and estimates in the measurement of right of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities with respect to discount rates, lease terms including exercise of
renewal and termination options etc.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies adopted and consistently applied on the financial statements are set
out below:

Property, plant and equipment
Operating Assets

Owned assets

Recognition & Measurement

An item of property, plant & equipment is recognised as an asset if and only if, the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. These are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any, except for free hold land, buildings and plant and machinery which are stated at
revalued amounts.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged, on a systematic basis over the economic useful life of the asset, on reducing
balance method, which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed by
the Company, at the rates specified in respective note. Depreciation on additions is charged from the
month in which the assets are put to use while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the
assets are disposed off.

Revaluation Surplus - owned assets

Revaluation of freehold land and building on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any
revaluation increase in the carrying amount of freehold land, factory and non-factory buildings on
freehold land and plant and machinery is recognized, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and
presented as a separate component of equity as “Revaluation surplus on property, plant and
equipment” except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset
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4.2

4.3

4.4

previously recognized in statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that
reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to
the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to
statement of profit or loss. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's
shareholders. Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss account and depreciation based on the
asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation reserve to the unappropriated profit.

Subsequent Cost

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal; or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from
the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in the statement of profit or
loss when the item is derecognized.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right of use assets at the commencement date of the lease. (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-usee assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment lossess, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets include amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct
costs incurred, the lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
assets at the end of the lease term, the recognized right-of-use assets are depreciated using reducing
balance method. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a reducing balance basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset, transfers of the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
an asset.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the reporting date less impairment if any
and represents expenditure incurred on property, plant and equipment in the course of construction /
installation / implementation / development including borrowing cost on eligible assets. These
expenditures are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment as and when the
assets become available for use.

Intangible Asset

Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Software costs are only
capitalized when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the software will flow to the
Company and the same is amortized, on a monthly proportionate basis applying the straight line
method at the rate stated in respective note to these financial statements.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at cost calculated on a moving average basis less provision for obsolescence, and
slow moving items, except for the items in transit, which are valued at costs accumulated up to the
reporting date.

Stock in trade

Stock of sugar is valued at lower of the weighted average cost and net realizable value. By-products
i.e. Molasses and Baggasse are valued at net realizable value (NRV). Cost in relation to work in
process and finished goods consists of material cost, proportionate manufacturing overheads.
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Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

Trade debts, loans, deposits and other receivable

Trade debts, loans, deposits and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Provision is made on the basis of
lifetime ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts,
loans and other receivables. Bad debts are written off when considered irrecoverable.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are recognized initially at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Company and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Employees Retirement benefits:
Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all employees eligible to the scheme with
qualifying service period. Provision is made annually to cover the obligation on the basis of actuarial
valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method and is charged to the statement of profit or
loss, related details of which are given in the respective note to the financial statements.
Remeasurement gains or losses are recognized in full as and when arise and are charged to other
comprehensive income.

Defined benefit plan - Leave Encashment

The Company provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in the period in which
these are earned in accordance with the terms of employment. Provision is made annually to cover
the obligation on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method and is
charged to statement of profit or loss, related details of which are given in the respective note to the
financial statements. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognized in full as and when arise and
are charged to other comprehensive income.

Lease liability

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If the implicit rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate is used. Subsequently these are increased by interest, reduced by lease
payments and remeasured for lease modifications, if any.

Liabilities in respect of certain short term and low value leases are not recognised and payments
against such leases are recognised as expense in profit or loss.

Taxation
Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation (after taking
into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any) or minimum tax and
alternate corporate tax under sections 113 & 113 (C) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
respectively whichever is higher. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where
considered necessary, to provision for taxation made in previous years arising from assessments
framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their tax base
and is recognized on the basis of the expected manner of the realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profit will
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be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax asset is
reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Levies

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount
paid / payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income or any minimum tax which is not
adjustable against future income tax liability is classified as levy in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 12/IAS 37.

Sales tax and Federal Excise Duty (FED)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net off amount of sales tax/FED except:

- Where amount incurred on a purchase of asset or service is not recoverable from the taxation
authorities, in which case the tax / duty is recognized as part of the cost of the acquisition of the
assets or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

- Receivables or payables that are stated with the amount of Sales tax / FED included.

The net amount of sales tax and FED recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when or as performance obligations are satisfied by
transferring control of a promised good or service to a customer, and the control transfers at a point in
time, i.e. at the time the goods are dispatched / shipped to customer. Revenue is measured at fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, returns rebates and
government levies.

- Sale of sugar is recognized when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring
control of a promised good to a customers.

- Electric power supply is recognized when the supply of power is passed on through
transmission lines.

- Rental income is recorded on an accrual basis.

- Mark-up on growers’ loans is accounted for in line with the recovery of the respective loan due
to exigencies involved in such matters.

Foreign currency transaction and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded into reporting currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are subsequently translated into reporting currency using year-end spot foreign exchange
rates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when the
values were determined. Exchange differences on foreign currency translations are included in the
statement of profit or loss.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past event, and it is probable that outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and reliable estimates can be made. Where the outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is remote.
However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best
estimate.

Borrowing cost

Mark-up, interest and other charges on borrowings are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of
the respective qualifying assets. All other mark-up, interest, profit and other charges are charged to
the statement of profit or loss.
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4.14 Financial Instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets in to following three categories:
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

- Measured at amortized cost.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition.

4.14.1 Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup
income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Equity Investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in the statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest / markup or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.
Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

4.14.2 Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the
Company becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets
comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in active markets and includes trade debts, advances, other receivables and cash and
cash equivalent. The Company derecognizes the financial assets when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are
transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control over the transferred asset.

4.14.3 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortized costs are initially measured
at fair value minus transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.
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Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if the Company has a legal enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and
intends either to settle on net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and bank balances net of short term borrowings Running
Finance.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in
which these are approved. Transfer between reserves made subsequent to the statement of financial
position date is considered as a non-adjusting event and is recognized in the financial statements in
the period in which such transfers are made.

Impairment of assets

4.18.1 Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial
assets measured at amortized cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12- month ECLs:

- Other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring
over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than past due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs
that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a
shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the Gross
carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on
whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expect no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

The adoption of the expected loss approach has not resulted in any material change in impairment
provision for any financial asset.
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4.18.2 Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets and
inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and
fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are Companied together into the
smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Companies of assets. An impairment loss is
recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss

2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets - Owned Note - 5.1 3,376,270 3,513,293
Capital work-in-progress Note - 5.2 49,265 35,454
Right of use assets Note - 5.3 — 3,640

3,425,535 3,552,387
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5.1  Operating Fixed Assets - Owned:

Net carrying value as at
September 30, 2024

Opening Net Book
Value (NBV)

Transfer from capital work
in progress

Transfer from right of use
assets

Disposal at NBV

Depreciation charge for
the year

Closing Net Book Value

Gross carrying value as
at September 30, 2024

Cost

Accumulated Depreciation

Revaluation

Incremental Depreciation

Closing Net Book Value

Depreciation rate % per
annum

Net carrying value as at
Sep 30, 2023

Opening Net Book
Value (NBV)

Transfer from capital work
in progress

Direct Additions at Cost

Transfer from Right of use
Assets

Transfer from Diminishing
Musharkah

Disposal at NBV

Depreciation charge for
the year

Closing Net Book Value

Gross carrying value as
at September 30, 2023

Cost

Accumulated Depreciation

Revaluation

Incremental Depreciation

Closing Net Book Value

Depreciation rate % per
annum

Factory Non-Factory ) Computer Stores & Spares
Free hold Building on Building on Plant_and Fum_'“_"e Vehicles Equipment & | held for capital | Grand Total
land free hold land | free hold land Machinery | and Fittings Appliances expenditure
.................................................................................. Rupees in’000 ...........cccocorrveenniennanns
224,000 233,951 54,052 | 2,978,598 962 16,219 1,948 3,563 3,513,293
— — — 43,138 — — — — 43,138
— — — — 3,094 — — 3,094
— — — — — (16) — — (16)
— (23,395) (5,405) | (150,558) (96) (3,398) (209) (178) | (183,239)
224,000 210,556 48,647 2,871,178 866 15,899 1,739 3,385 3,376,270
7,043 164,303 12,365 | 1,737,897 6,869 48,089 13,298 5,867 1,995,731
— (89,712) (10,957) | (643,657) (6,003) (32,190) (11,559) (2,482) (796,560)
7,043 74,591 1,408 1,094,240 866 15,899 1,739 3,385 1,199,171
216,957 278,865 106,655 | 2,326,520 = = = = 2,928,997
= (142,900) (59,416) | (549,582) = = = = (751,898)
216,957 135,965 47,239 1,776,938 — — — — 2,177,099
224,000 210,556 48,647 2,871,178 866 15,899 1,739 3,385 3,376,270
— 10 10 5 10 20 10 & 20 5
Factory Non-Factory ) Computer Stores & Spares
Free hold Building on Building on Plant_ and Fum_'“_"e Vehicles Equipment & | held for capital | Grand Total
land free hold land | free hold land Machinery | and Fittings Appliances expenditure
.................................................................................. Rupees in’000 ...........cccocerevenniennnaens
224,000 259,945 60,058 | 3,022,083 1,069 9,485 2,184 3,751 3,582,575
— —_ — 32,162 —_ — — — 32,162
— — — — — 2,909 — — 2,909
— — — 79,417 — 6,327 — — 85,744
— — — 792 — — — — 792
— — — — — (236) — — (236)
— (25,994) (6,006) | (155,856) (107) (2,266) (236) (188) (190,653)
224,000 233,951 54,052 2,978,598 962 16,219 1,948 3,563 3,513,293
7,043 164,303 12,365 | 1,694,759 6,869 42,087 13,298 5,867 1,946,591
— (81,423) (10,801) | (586,741) (5,907) (25,868) (11,350) (2,304) (724,394)
7,043 82,880 1,564 1,108,018 962 16,219 1,948 3,563 1,222,197
216,957 278,865 106,655 | 2,326,520 — — — — 2,928,997
— (127,794) (54,167) | (455,940) — — — — (637,901)
216,957 151,071 52,488 1,870,580 — — — — 2,291,096
224,000 233,951 54,052 2,978,598 962 16,219 1,948 3,563 3,513,293
— 10 10 5 10 20 10 & 20 5
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5.1.1 The Company's freehold land, building and plant and machinery were revalued on September 30, 2022,
by independent professional valuator M/s Joseph Lobo (Pvt) Limited at fair market value. The resultant
surplus on revaluation has been credited to the surplus on revaluation of property, plant & equipment.

5.1.2 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as under:

2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
Cost of Sales Note 24 173,952 179,197
Administrative Cost Note 26 9,287 11,456
183,239 190,653
5.1.3 The following Property, plant and equipments were disposed off during the year:
Particulars Cost Written Down Sale Gain on Mode of Purchaser
Value Pr d Disp Disp |
....................... Rupees in '000............ccccerneneee
Vehicle having book Mr. Arsalan Laghari
value below Rs. 500 S/o Shafi Muhammad
thousand 681 16 700 684 Negotiation CNIC No. 44205-1449147-9
(Note 28) Goth Jaffar Khan Laghari,
Post Office Jaffar Khan
Laghari, Dathro, Sinjhoro,
Sanghar.
September 30, 2024 681 16 700 684
September 30, 2023 1,379 236 1,424 1,188
5.2 Capital work-in-progress
Capital expenditure | Transferred to
Cost at incurred during operating fixed Cost at
October 01 the year assets September 30
.............................................. Rupees in ‘000 .........ccceeceerreccmerrrseessssnerssssemesssnnnes
Plant & Machinery 35,454 56,949 (43,138) 49,265
September 30, 2024 35,454 56,949 (43,138) 49,265
September 30, 2023 32,162 35,454 (32,162) 35,454
5.3 Right of use assets
2024 | | 2023
Gross carrying value Plant and . Plant and .
Machinery Vehicles Total Machinery Vehicles Total
................. Rupees in '000 ................ rerserenseennees RUPEES N '000 ...
Opening Net Book Value — 3,640 3,640 80,309 12,620 92,929
Transfer to owned operating fixed = (3,094) | (3,094) (79,417) (6,327) (85,744)
assets
Depreciation charge for
the year (Note 24) = (546) (546) (892) (2,653) (3,545)
Closing Net Book Value — — — — 3,640 3,640
Gross carrying value
Cost — — — — 6,682 6,682
Accumulated Depreciation — (3,042) (3,042)
Closing Net Book Value — — — — 3,640 3,640
Depreciation rate % per annum 5 20 5 20
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2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)

6 LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Considered good:
Utilities 404 404
Other security deposits 305 305
709 709
7 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 55,806 61,506
Spare parts 42,735 43,285
Loose tools 3,099 3,020
101,640 107,811
Less: Provision for slow moving items
and obsolescence Note 7.1 26,375 25,125
75,265 82,686
7.1 Reconciliation of provision for slow moving
and obsolete items
Opening balance at the beginning 25,125 23,071
Charge for the year Note 27 1,250 2,054
Closing balance at the end 26,375 25,125
8 STOCK-IN-TRADE
Sugar Note 8.1 & 24 1,483,991 974,234
Sugar in process Note 24 2,559 979
Molasses 5,263 287
Bagasse 5,589 1,963
1,497,402 977,463
8.1  The closing stock of sugar having carrying value of Rs. 684,522 thousand (2023: Nil) has been
pledged against financing obtained from Banking Company.
9 TRADE DEBTS
Local Sales - Unsecured, Considered
good under contracts Note 9.1 29,494 29,494
Less: Impairment allowance of tariff adjustment (1,570) (1,570)
27,924 27,924
9.1  This represents Rs. 27,924 thousand (2023: Rs. 27,924 thousand) in respect of receivable against

supply of electric power to Hyderabad Electric Supply Corporation in previous year. The matter is
pending since the tariff / gazette is yet to be received from Ministry of Energy - Power Division in

respect of power tariff, in official Gazette of Pakistan.
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10

10.1

10.2

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Secured and Interest free

Loan to Employees:
Other than CEOQO, Directors & Executives Note 10.1

Un-Secured

Advances to

- Employees against salaries

- Contractors and suppliers

- Growers Considered good - interest free Note 10.2
Considered good - interest bearing Note 21.2

Considered doubtful

Impairment allowance against doubtful growers advances

2024

2023

(Rupees in ‘000)

4,747 4,823
514 190
21,325 14,764
9,749 13,162
87,527 96,848
7,515 7,515
104,791 117,525
7,515 7,515
97,276 110,010
123,862 129,787

Loans have been given to employees for the purchase of house hold equipment's, for solar power and
for housing assistance in accordance with the terms of the employments and are repayable in the

different monthly installments and are against their balances of retirement benefits.

The Company makes advances to growers in the form of cash payments and in the shape of fertilizers
/ seeds, which are adjustable against the supplies of sugarcane during the following season.

10.2.1 1t includes an amount of Rs. 3,500 thousand (2023: Rs. 915 thousand) in respect of due from
related parties. The maximum month end aggregate amount due from related parties during the

year was Rs. 3,500 thousand (2023: Rs. 7,174 thousand).

10.2.2 Aging analysis of due from related parties is as follows:

From 91 to 180 days

2024

2023

(Rupees in ‘000)

3,500

915

3,500

915
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12

121

12.2

2023 2022
(Rupees in ‘000)
TRADE DEPOSITS & SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
Trade Deposits

Rent and other deposits | 355 | | 355]
Short Term Prepayments
Prepaid insurance 1,070 877
Prepaid rent 1,705 628
Labour Court - Hyderabad Note 22.1.4 582 562
3,357 2,067
3,712 2,422
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered Good
Subsidy due from Provincial Government Note 12.1 47,080 47,080
Road Cess receivable Note 12.2 — —
Receivable from Nazir of Honourable
High Court of Sindh Note 22.1.7 20,661 47,377
Receivable from Competition Commission
of Pakistan & Others Note 12.3 8,911 8,911
76,652 103,368
Considered doubtful
Inland freight subsidy receivable Note 12.4 18,713 18,713
Further sales tax refundable Note 12.5 8,558 8,558
27,271 27,271
Impairment allowance against doubtful (27,271) (27,271)
76,652 103,368

A cash freight subsidy of Rs. 10.70 / kg was announced by the Federal Government through Ministry
of Commerce vide letter No. 7(2)/ 2012-Exp.lll and further, on equal sharing basis, an amount of Rs.
9.3/ kg was also announced by the Provincial Government and Federal Government, in lieu of which,
the Company exported 8,800 M. Tons of sugar during 2018 and submitted the total claim of subsidy of
Rs. 176,000 thounsand with State Bank of Pakistan (the SBP). Out of the subsidy claimed, the
Company has received Rs. 128,920 thousand till date. This remaining subsidy amount relates to the
Provincial Government whereas the share pertaining to the Federal Government has been realized in
full. The Company despite every effort to recover the subsidy amount of Rs. 47,080 thousand from
the Sindh Government via the SBP has been unable to get the same. Consequently, the Company
filed a Constitutional Petition No. 5562 of 2021 in the Honourable Sindh High Court against the Sindh
Government and the SBP for recovery of entitlement. During the preceding year, the Honorable High
Court of Sindh passed the judgment/order in favor of the Company and the petitions stand disposed
off with the directions to the Finance Department, Government of Sindh to re-allocate funds in the
budget and make payment to Sugar Mills within the first quarter of financial year. The outcome from
the Finance Department, Government of Sindh is still awaited.

This represents receivable of the Company's & Growers share of Sugarcane (Development) Cess for
the crushing season 2014-15 amounting to Rs. 3,613 thousand. The Company has paid the Cess and
as per the notification issued by the Agriculture, Supply & Prices Department, Government of Sindh,
the Company has filed documentation in this respect in the relevant department for refund of the said
Cess. During the previous year the Company has net-off the amount receivable against its
corresponding liability, to be payable to growers. The outcome of the same is awaited.
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12.3

12.4

12.5

13

131

13.2

13.3

This represents an amount of Rs. 8,911 thousand (2023: Rs. 8,911 thousand) receivable in respect of
recovery made by the Competition Commission of Pakistan as disclosed in note 22.1.6 of the
financial statements.

These were the receivable from the Government of Pakistan through Trade Development Authority of
Pakistan. Total receivable in this respect amounted to Rs. 21,703 thousands; however an amount of
Rs. 2,990 thousand relating to the export sales of year 2013-14, was not accounted for in the books
as a matter of prudence. Further, due to uncertainties regarding the recoverability of the subsidy, and
as a matter of prudence, an impairment allowance has been made against the amount of Inland
Freight Subsidy already recorded.

This represent Further Sales Tax of one percent on sales to unregistered persons. The Company
paid Further Tax in the monthly Sales Tax & Federal Excise Returns for the month of June 2013
amounting to Rs. 764 thousand and July 2013 amounting to Rs. 3,519 thousand on buyers behalf
which aggregated to Rs. 4,283 thousand and not received by the buyers. In addition, an amount of
Rs. 4,275 thousand on account of Further Tax at the rate of two percent on sales to unregistered
persons was again been paid by the Company and not received from the buyers. Further, due to
uncertainties regarding the recoverability, and as a matter of prudence, an impairment allowance has
been made against the amount of Further Tax already recorded.

2024 2023
CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Rupees in ‘000)
Cash in hand 399 324

Cash at banks
In current accounts Note 13.1 51,688 113,654
In current account - Linked with Treasury Call Note 13.2 6,240 6,119

Impairment allowance against the
dormant bank accounts Note 13.3 (7,870) (566)

50,058 119,207
Note 33 50,457 119,531

Cash at banks include Rs. 4,112 thousand (2023: 2,552 thousand) with shariah compliant financial
institutions.

This represents amount placed with commercial bank in “Unclaimed Dividend Account’, linked with
Treasury Call Account. Profit earned in this account will be used in corporate social responsibility activities.

2024 2023
Reconciliation of impairment allowance (Rupees in ‘000)
against dormant bank accounts

Opening balance
Charge / (reversal) for the year Note 27 & 28
Closing balance

14 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL
2024 2023
10,860,000 10,860,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each allotted
for consideration paid in cash
1,086,000 1,086,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
allotted as bonus shares

11,946,000 11,946,000

566
7,304

900
(334)

7,870

566

108,600

10,860

119,460

108,600

10,860

119,460

14.1 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Holders of these
shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at

general meetings of the Company.
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15

15.1

15.2

16

2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Gross opening balance 2,284,936 2,413,660

Incremental depreciation charged on surplus on revaluation

of property, plant and equipment - net of deferred tax (80,939) (91,394)

Deferred tax on incremental depreciation charged on

surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (33,059) (37,330)
(113,998) (128,724)
2,170,938 2,284,936

Related deferred Tax Note 18.1.1 (566,655) (599,714)

Revaluation surplus net of deferred tax 1,604,283 1,685,222

The Company carries its land, building and plant and machinery on revaluation model in accordance
with IAS - 16 “Property, Plant & Equipment”. An independent valuer carried out revaluation and
issued report on September 30, 2022. Fair value has been determined by the valuer using New
Replacement Value i.e., the estimated cost to replace an existing asset or with a substitute of like kind
and equal utility using the current standards of materials and design and with no deduction for
depreciation as follows:

(Rupees in '000)

Discount Present
Factorin % Market Value Fair Value
as at 30 as at 30
Sept. 2022 Sept. 2022
Free hold Land 15% 224,000 190,000
Building (Factory & Non-Factory) 15% 320,000 272,000
Plant & Machinery 20% 3,085,000 2,468,000

The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve and is not available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company in accordance with the section 241 of the Companies
Act, 2017.

2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
LONG TERM FINANCING
Secured
From Other than Banking Company under

profit arrangements with Shahria
compliant financial institution

Diminishing Musharakah - | Note 16.1 92,730 —
Diminishing Musharakah - |l Note 16.2 74,138 —
166,868 —
Current portion shown under current liabilities (35,591) —
131,277 —
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16.1

16.2

17

171

18

18.1

This represents Diminishing Musharakah arrangement from shariah compliant financial institution
M/s. OLP Financial Services Pakistan Limited under profit arrangements and repayable in three
years in monthly installments with a profit payments @ 6 months KIBOR + 4.50%. This loan is
secured against the title over specific machinery.

This represents Diminishing Musharakah arrangement from shariah compliant financial institution
M/s. OLP Modarabah under profit arrangements and repayable in two years in monthly installments
after the grace period of one year with a profit payments @ 6 months KIBOR + 4.50%. This loan is
secured against the title over specific machinery.

2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
LEASE LIABILITIES

Balance at the beginning of the year Note 17.1 1,251 16,179
Financial charges on lease liabilities 132 1,913
Repayments during the year (1,383) (16,841)

— 1,251
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities — 1,251

The Company had entered into direct lease agreement with OLP Financial Sevices Pakistan Limited
for two vehicles, for an amount of Rs. 6,805 thousand. Minimum lease payments were discounted
using rates linked with KIBOR ranging between 24.79 % to 27.75 % (2023: 18.17 % to 27.75 %) being
rates implicit in the lease. Lease rentals were payable in 36 months in arrears on monthly basis. The
lease liability has been fully repaid during the year and corresponding asset has been acquired by the
Company.

2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deferred taxation Note 18.1 576,194 600,223
Market committee fee Note 18.2 95,264 90,104
Employees retirement benefits
- Defined benefit plan Note 18.3 179,712 147,861
- Leave Encashment plan Note 18.4 6,390 4,300
857,560 842,488
Deferred taxation:
Opening Balance 600,223 640,806
Impact of deferred tax on actuarial loss (3,981) (5,622)
Credited to statement of profit or loss Note 31 (20,048) (34,961)
Closing balance 576,194 600,223
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18.1.1 Deferred tax (debit) / credit arising due to:
Deferred tax credit arising due to:
- surplus on revaluation Note 15
- accelerated depreciation
- assets obtained under finance lease

Deferred tax debit arising due to:
- provisions / impairment
- lossess, minimum and tax credit carried forward

18.2 Market committee fee
Opening Balance
Charge during the year
Closing balance Note 18.2.1

2024

2023

(Rupees in ‘000)

566,655 599,714
212,075 205,800
— 693
778,730 806,207
(99,333) (79,722)
(103,203) (126,262)
576,194 600,223
90,104 86,040
5,160 4,064
95,264 90,104

18.2.1 The Company has filed a suit in the Honourable High Court of Sindh against the levy of market
committee fee by the Government of Sindh on sugarcane purchases at the factory. The Honourable
High Court of Sindh has granted status quo. Full provision has been made as a matter of prudence.

18.3 Employees Retirement Benfits - Defined Benefits Plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees eligible to the benefit effective
from July 01, 2003 and provision is made as per actuarial valuation of the scheme conducted as of
September 30, 2024 by M/s Nauman Associates (Consulting Actuaries) under the “Projected Unit
Credit ” method. The significant actuarial assumptions used for actuarial valuation for the gratuity

scheme are as follows:

18.3.1 Movement in the present value of the obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year Note 18.3.2
Current service cost Note 18.3.2
Interest cost
Benefits paid during the year
Actuarial losses & experience adjustments Note 18.3.4
Present value of obligation at the end of the year

18.3.2 Expense for the year charged to statement of Profit or Loss
Current service cost
Interest cost

2024

2023

(Rupees in ‘000)

147,861 118,900
14,394 11,556
21,677 14,042
36,071 25,598

(14,888) (14,771)
10,668 18,134

179,712 147,861
14,394 11,556
21,677 14,042
36,071 25,598
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18.3.3 Charge for the year has been allocated as under:

2024

2023

(Rupees in ‘000)

Cost of sales Note 24.1 27,053 19,199
Administrative cost Note 26.1 9,018 6,399
36,071 25,598
18.3.4 Total Remeasurements chargeable in
Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurements of plan obligation:
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions 7,209 770
Experience adjustments 3,459 17,364
10,668 18,134
18.3.5 Significant Actuarial Assumptions
Discount rate used for interest cost in P or L Charge 16.75% 13.25%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 12.00% 16.75%
Salary increased used for year end obligation 12.00% 15.75%
Next salary is increased at 01-Oct-2024 01-Oct-2023
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60
Withdrawal Rates Age-Based Age-Based
Mortality Rates SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

Setback 1 year

18.3.6 Year end Sensitivity Analysis (+ 100 bps)
on Defined Benefit Obligation
Discount Rate + 100 bps
Discount Rate - 100 bps
Salary Increase + 100 bps
Salary Increase - 100 bps

18.3.7 Expected Benefit Payments for the next 10 years and beyond

Year

FY 2024

FY 2025

FY 2026

FY 2027

FY 2028

FY 2029

FY 2030

FY 2031

FY 2032

FY 2033

FY 2034

FY 2035 onwards

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5 years

160,615
178,072
178,195
160,352

39,152
20,839
29,559
17,080
29,205
43,393
15,980
19,617
29,511
18,252

879,303

Setback 1 year

130,738
143,541
143,710
130,482

33,257
13,781
22,264
31,277
16,920
33,058
49,021
17,849
22,729
44,527
1,451,992
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18.4 Employee Retirement Benefits - Leave Encashment plan:

The Company operates an unfunded leave encashment scheme for its employees eligible to the
benefit and provision is made as per actuarial valuation of the scheme conducted as of
September 30, 2024 by M/s Nauman Associates (Consulting Actuaries) under the “Projected Unit
Credit ” method. The significant actuarial assumptions used for actuarial valuation for the leave
encashment scheme are as follows:

2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
18.4.1 Movement in the present value of the obligation

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 4,300 4,377
Charge for the year
Current service cost Note 18.4.2 353 774
Interest cost Note 18.4.2 622 537
976 1,311
Benefits paid during the year (1,061) (646)
Actuarial (gains) / losses from changes in
financial assumptions (58) 28
Experience adjustments 2,233 (770)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 6,390 4,300
18.4.2 Expense for the year charged to Statement
of Profit or Loss
Current service cost 353 774
Interest cost 622 537
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions — 28
Experience adjustments — (770)
976 569
18.4.3 Charge for the year has been allocated as under:
Cost of sales Note 24.1 732 427
Administrative cost Note 26.1 244 141
976 569
18.4.4 Significant Actuarial Assumptions
Discount rate used for interest cost in P or L Charge 16.75% 13.25%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 12.00% 16.75%
Salary increased used for year end obligation 11.00% 15.75%
Next salary is increased at 01-Oct-2024 01-Oct-2023
Retirement Assumption Age 60 Age 60
Withdrawal Rates Age-Based Age-Based
Mortality Rates SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

Setback 1 year Setback 1 year
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2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)

18.4.5 Year end Sensitivity Analysis (+ 100 bps)
on Defined Benefit Obligation

Discount Rate + 100 bps 5,990 4,116
Discount Rate - 100 bps 6,616 4,511
Salary Increase + 100 bps 6,626 4,517
Salary Increase - 100 bps 5,976 4,107
18.4.6 Expected Benefit Payments for the next 10 years and beyond

Year

FY 2024 — 1,266
FY 2025 1,849 456
FY 2026 739 611
FY 2027 1,389 1,133
FY 2028 522 486
FY 2029 857 770
FY 2030 1,156 1,321
FY 2031 622 584
FY 2032 722 628
FY 2033 1,181 1,462
FY 2034 527 26,829
FY 2035 onwards 18,588 —

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5 years
19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors Note 19.1 288,974 181,052
Accrued liabilities 52,317 44,909

Advances from customers
Sugar 698,482 1,279,932
Molasses 21,797 107,947
Baggasse 5,695 189
Sales tax payable Note 19.2 381,973 377,080
Workers' Profit Participation Fund Note 19.3 — 7,113
Workers' Welfare Fund Note 27 — 4,027
Other liabilities Note 19.4 5,286 7,069
1,454,524 2,009,318

19.1 This includes Nil (2023: Rs. 29,250 thousand) due to related parties.

19.2 This includes sales tax default surcharge amounting to Rs. 104,650 thousand (2023: Rs. 99,883
thousand).
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19.3

19.4

2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
Workers Profit Participation Fund

Opening balance at the beginning of the year 7,113 3,784
Interest paid on funds utilized by the Company Note 29 1,021 504

8,134 4,288
Less: Payments made during the year (8,134) (4,288)
Add: Allocation for the year Note 27 — 7,113
Closing balance at the end of the year — 7,113

Other liabilities

Income tax deducted at source 1,402 2,849

Cane field staff Note 19.4.1 493 355

Others - Employees' social security & old age

benefits, workers compensation & others 3,391 3,865
5,286 7,069

19.4.1 These represents amount received from cane field employees under Company's motor cycle policy.

20

21

211

21.2

ACCRUED FINANCE COST
Accrued profit / mark-up:

- On long term financing - Shariah compliant financial instituiton 530 —

- On short term borrowings 56,506 6,394
57,036 6,394

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured:

Cash Finance Note 21.1 685,000 —

Growers Finance Note 21.2 75,000 75,000

Running Finance Note 21.1 & Note 33 100,000 25,000

860,000 100,000

The aggregate financing facilities obtained amounted to Rs. 1,475,000 thousand (2023: Rs. 1,175,000
thousand), out of which amount of Rs. 615,000 thousand (2023: Rs. 1,075,000 thousand) were un-
availed as at the year end. These are secured by pledge of sugar stocks under the supervision of
approved muccadum and hypothecation over current assets of the Company, exclusive & pari passu
hypothecation charge on Company's plant & machinery and 1st equitable mortgage charge over fixed
assets of the Company. The financing facilities are collaterally secured by the personal guarantees of all
the sponsor directors. The facilities carries markup at 3 months KIBOR as base rate plus 1 % (2023: 3
months KIBOR as base rate plus 1%) chargeable and payable quarterly. The facilities are renewable
annually at the time of maturity.

The aggregate financing facility obtained amounted to Rs. 75,000 thousand (2023: Rs. 75,000
thousand) directly disburseable to the growers' bank account and the Company recovers the amount
of finance from adjustments in cane procurement payments and or recovered through re-payment to
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221

the Company by the respective growers. This is secured by hypothecation over current assets of the
Company, exclusive & pari passu hypothecation charge on Company's plant & machinery and 1st
equitable mortgage charge over fixed assets of the Company. The financing facility is collaterally
secured by the personal guarantees of all the sponsor directors. The facility carries markup at 3
months KIBOR as base rate plus 1% (2023: 3 months KIBOR as base rate plus 1%) chargeable and
payable quarterly, which is recovered from the growers. The facility is renewable annually at the time
of maturity.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies:

22.1.1 The Company has filed a petition in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan against a show cause

notice issued by the Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP), challenging the vary jurisdiction of
the Competition Commission. The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan has disposed of the
petition on the ground that this matter is already under proceedings with Honourable High Courts and
refrained CCP from passing any final / penal order till a final decision is achieved at Honourable High
Courts. Proceedings are pending there at. There are no financial implications related to this, at the
moment.

22.1.2 The Company has filed a suit before the Honourable High Court of Sindh against Pakistan Standards

and Quality Control Authority (the Authority) Challenging the levy of marking fee under PSQCA Act-VI
of 1996. The Authority has demanded a fee payment @ 0.1% of ex-factory price for the year 2008-
2009 amounting to Rs. 1,915 thousands. The Company is of the view that demand notifications so
raised are without any lawful authority under the PSQCA Act-VI of 1996 and are in violation of the
constitution. The Honourable High Court of Sindh has accepted the petition and termed that
impugned notifications have been issued without lawful authority and suspended the operation of the
impugned notifications. The constitutional petition filed before the Honourable High Court of Sindh
has been allowed in favour of the Company. In the meantime, the legal counsel of the Company has
filed caveat in respect of an appeal to be filed by PSQCA against the judgment in the Honourable
Supreme Court of Pakistan. No provision has been made in this respect, as the Company is confident
that the same is not likely to be materialized.

22.1.3 During the preceding year, the Government of Sindh issued a notification no. 8(142)/ S.O(EXT)2017,

according to which, the minimum price of sugarcane has been fixed at the rate of Rs. 182 per 40 kg for
the crushing season 2017-2018. The Company along with other Sugar mills has filed a petition in the
Honourable High Court of Sindh dated 19 December 2017 against the said notification. Thereafter, the
Honourable Court after deliberations with all stakeholders announced the judgment fixing the purchase
price at Rs. 160 to be paid to growers and the balance of Rs. 22 per 40 kg to be decided by the
Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan which is pending. The differential amount aggregating to
Rs. 391,668 thousand has not been accounted for since the purchase price has been agreed with the
parties and outcome of the Honourable Supreme Court is not likely to be against the Company.
Furthermore, the Company along with other sugar mills have also filed petition in the Honourable
Supreme Court challenging the minimum price fixation mechanism, which is also pending before the
Honourable Court.

22.1.4 During the preceding year, the Company has filed an appeal in the Honourable Supreme Court of

Pakistan against the order passed by the Honourable High Court of Sindh — Circuit Court Hyderabad
in the matter of Constitutional Petition No. D - 334 of 2012 (Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited vs Sindh
Labour Appellant Tribunal and Others). The said appeal was also filed against the Sindh Labour
Appellate Tribunal for the decision made by the Appellate Tribunal (Hyderabad). The Honourable
Supreme Court of Pakistan has suspended the operation of the impugned judgements and directed
the Company to let the amount of salary on the basis of last drawn arrears of salary during season and
salary of retention during off season and as per directions the Company has deposited an amount of
Rs. 582 thousand (2023: Rs. 562 thousand) in the Labour Court of Hyderabad. The Case has
challenged the decision of Labour Appellate Tribunal and the Honourable High Court of Sindh,
wherein the chances of Company's success are higher.

169



SANGHAR SUGAR MILLS LIMITED Annual Report 2024

22.1.5 During the preceeding year, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has passed the
Orders under Section 122 (1) / (5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 in respect of tax years from
2015 to 2019 creating a tax demand of Rs. 24,818,724 thousand and also passed the Orders under
Section 161 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax years from 2017 to 2020 amounted to Rs.
119,608 thousand creating an exorbitant tax demand.

The Company contested the appeals and an Appellant Tribunal Inland Revenue deleted all the
demands raised and set aside the orders of the Department. Similarly, orders for the tax year 2017 to
2020 were framed under section 161 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 by revoking section 236 G
and H of the Ordinance, relating to tax collection from wholesalers and distributors which also set
aside at first appellate stage.

During the year, the DCIR again took up the matter of tax year 2017 to 2020 and passed the Orders
amounted to Rs. 25,428 thousand, which were framed previously under section 161 of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 for Section 236 G / H of the Ordinance, relating to tax collection from
wholesalers and distributors, which were set aside at first appellate stage. The Company has paid the
principal amount i.e. Rs. 12,787 thousand and the balance amount related to penalty and default
surcharge has again contested and at the forum of Appellant Tribunal Inland Revenue, which is being
heard.

Management of the Company believe that all the matters will be decided in Company's favour as the
demands raised through the stereo type orders by the FBR created on the basis of using stock
phrases, imagination based workings and predetermined mindset and are illegal, ultra-vires and
without any justification or basis and the Company is continuously contesting the same at designated
forums of Inland Revenue Services. The Company has also filed application for stay against these
Orders in the Honourable Sindh High Court which have been granted by the said Honourable Court.

22.1.6 The Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) in August 2021 passed orders and imposed penalty
on PSMA and member sugar mills alleging them to be guilty of collusive activities and cartelization.
The penalty imposed on the Company aggregated to Rs. 188,522 thousand. The PSMA and the
Company along with other member sugar mills of PSMA filed the Suit against the orders of the
Competition Commission of Pakistan before Honourable Sindh High Court. The Honorable Court
passed the interim order on 07.10.2021 that the operation of impugned orders dated 06.08.2021 and
13.08.2021 shall remain suspended till the hearing is underway and final order issued on 22.08.2022
whereby the matter was referred to Competition Appellate Tribunal and suspended all previous
orders of CCP including direction for withdrawal of all recovery notices/demands and withdrawal of
debit blocks and attachment of bank accounts' notices.

Further, The Competition Appellate Tribunal, Islamabad has assigned the Case of the Company with
other Cases while the appeals are being heard.

The CCP vide communication bearing no. F. N. # 366 / Sugar Enq / C&TA / CCP / 2020 dated
September 07, 2022 intimating withdrawal of Recovery Notice dated 29.06.2022 issued under
section 40(1) of the Competition Act, 2010 till the final decision of the relevant appeals pending before
the Competition Appellate Tribunal.

22.1.7 During the previous year, out of the total export approved by the ECC of 250,000 metric tons of sugar,
Sindh was allocated 80,000 MT by the Ministry of Commerce to be distributed among the mills
through the Cane Commissioner, Sindh. The Cane Commissioner equally distributed the quota as
2,500 MT to each of the 32 sugar mills in Sindh Province. Meanwhile, JDW Sugar Mills Ltd filed the
suit against the equal distribution of export quota in February, 2023 in the Honourable High Court of
Sindh. The Honorable Court stayed the export of sugar after which the Company and other sugar
mills became party to the petition as defendants being aggrieved in Suit No. 145 of 2023 and Suit No.
149 of 2023. The single bench of the Honorable Court passed the judgementin March 3, 2023 and set
aside Sindh Cane Commissioner’s decision and directed to Cane Commissioner to re-issue the quota
in accordance with Federal Government policy. The Company and other Sugar Mills filed the High
Court Appeal (HCA) before the Honorable Divisional Bench of Honourable Sindh High Court on
March 9, 2023 vide HCA number 64 and 65/2023 against the judgment order of single judge. The
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Honorable Divisional Bench passed the interim Order and allowed to Export of 1,500 metric tons to
each of Sugar Mills till further orders.

Further, in continuation of earlier order dated 09.03.2023, the Honourable Court has passed an
another Order to allow export of the remaining (undisputed and disputed quantity) of 32,000 M. Tons
of sugar with terms and conditions imposed on export proceeds of undisputed and disputed quantity.
The export proceeds realized, based on the formula set by the Honourable Court was retained by the
Company on undisputed quantity, while on disputed quantity, the export proceeds realized was
deposited with the Nazir of the Honourable Court and the Nazir till the decision of the case.

Subsequent to the year-end, the Honourable Court has announced the decision and the amount of
Rs. 20,661 thousand has been refunded to the Company (respondant), which are appearing in the
respective note of other receivables, the balance amount of Rs. 26,716 thousand related to the
appellant has been written off in the statement of profit or loss.

Guarantee:

The Company has available bank guarantee facility for an amount of Rs. 75,000 thousand which is
secured againt 25% and rest is against the existing charge over current and fixed assets of the
Company, already held as collateral. However as at year-end no bank guarantee is unsecured on
behalf of the Company.

Commitments:

22.3.1 Capital commitments in respect of plant & machinery amounting to Rs. 27,000 thousand (2023: Rs. 6,000

thousand).

22.3.2 The Company has committed for donation of 5 acre of land through the Board of Directors' decision in

23

their meeting held on October 29, 2016 which recommended donation of 5 acre land out of total 320
acres Company’s land at factory located at Sanghar to Workers Welfare Fund, Government of
Pakistan, Islamabad, for the purpose of construction of Fifty Beds Hospital in the vicinity of factory
premises of Sanghar Sugar Mills. This has already been approved by the shareholders of the
Company in their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on November 23, 2016. The carrying value of
the land as on the year end date is Rs 110 thousand whereas its market value based on revaluation
report dated September 30, 2022 by an independent professional valuator is Rs. 3,493 thousand. In
order to implement the agreement, the formalities of transfer of Land and other documentation are in
process till date.

2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
SALES
Local Sales 6,184,408 4,113,233
Export Sales 196,798 429,724
6,381,206 4,542,957
Less: Sales Tax (943,384) (616,871)
Less: Federal Excise Duty (14,400) —
Less: Brokerage and Commission (8,128) (3,930)
5,415,294 3,922,156
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2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)

24 COST OF SALES
Sugar cane consumed (including cane

procurement expenses) 5,806,133 3,175,764
Salaries, wages and staff benefits Note 24.1 234,098 188,281
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed 203,048 176,625
Fuel, power and utilities 15,787 13,945
Insurance 13,512 9,490
Repairs and maintenance 10,157 9,352
Vehicle running expenses 15,335 13,127
Depreciation Note 5.1.2 173,952 179,197
Depreciation on right-of use assets Note 5.3 546 3,545
Other expenses 16,060 11,883
6,488,628 3,781,209

Sugar -in-process
- Opening 979 873
- Closing Note 8 (2,559) (979)
(1,580) (106)
6,487,048 3,781,103
Sale of Molasses Note 24.2 805,500 605,900
Inventory adjustment for molasses 4,976 192
810,476 606,092
Sale of Baggasse Note 24.3 87,222 58,862
Inventory adjustment for bagasse 3,626 (11,488)
90,848 47,374
Cost of goods manufactured 5,585,724 3,127,637

Finished sugar

- Opening stock 974,234 1,249,011
- Closing stock Note 8 (1,483,991) (974,234)
(509,757) 274,777
5,075,967 3,402,414

24.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 27,053 thousand (2023: Rs. 19,199 thousand) in respect of
defined benefit plan and Rs. 732 thousand (2023: Rs. 427 thousand) in respect of leave encashment
plan.

24.2 These figures are net off sales tax of Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. Nil) being zero related sales to exporters.

24.3 These figures are net off sales tax and further tax of Rs. 15,952 thousand (2023: Rs. 11,140
thousand).
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2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)

25 DISTRIBUTION COST

Handling and stacking 1,667 978
Export charges 1,552 10,175
3,219 11,153
26 ADMINISTRATIVE COST

Salaries, wages and staff benefits Note 26.1 116,692 96,227
Rent, rates and taxes 3,638 3,345
Communication 1,418 1,099
Repairs and maintenance 3,798 3,579
Utilities 3,229 813
Entertainment 608 453
Subscription 2,966 2,206
Cartage 31 68
Printing and stationery 3,023 1,876
Insurance 4,504 3,163
Legal and professional charges 2,650 1,674
Conveyance and traveling 6,252 7,101
Depreciation Note 5.1.2 9,287 11,456
Others 1,885 1,479
159,981 134,539

26.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 9,018 thousand (2023: Rs. 6,399 thousand) in respect of
defined benefit plan and Rs. 244 thousand (2023: Rs. 141 thousand) in respect of leave encashment

plan.
27 OTHER OPERATING COST

Auditors' remuneration Note 27.1 3,294 2,857

Corporate social responsibility costs Note 27.2 5,603 7,142

Workers' Profit Participation Fund Note 19.3 — 7,113

Workers' Welfare Fund Note 19 — 2,703

Provision for slow moving and obsolete items Note 7.1 1,250 2,054

Exchange loss on export proceeds realization - net 37 1,453

Write off against receivable from Nazir

of Honourable High Court of Sindh Note 12 & 22.1.7 26,716 —

Sales tax default surcharge 7,511 69,222

Impairment allowance against

dormant bank account Note 13.3 7,304 —
51,715 92,544
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2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)

27.1 Auditors' remuneration
Statutory Auditors - Kreston Hyder Bhimji and Co.

Audit fee 1,832 1,665
Half yearly review fee 237 215
Code of corporate governance certification 154 140
Certification of Free Float of Shares & reconciliation 193 175
Sindh Sales Tax on Services 362 176
2,777 2,371
Cost Auditors - A.D. Akhawala & Co.

Cost Audit Fee 450 450
Sindh Sales Tax on Services 68 36
518 486

3,294 2,857

27.2 Corporate social responsibility costs do not include any amount paid to any person or organization
that exceeds Rs. 1,000,000 and also no director or their spouse has any interest in any donee.

28 OTHER INCOME
Income from non financial assets:

Gain on sale of property, plant & equipment Note 5.1.3 684 1,188
Others - Rent & related receipts 166 92
850 1,280
Income from others:
Scrap Sales Note 28.1 1,244 —
V. Filter Cake Sales Note 28.2 796 —
Reversal of provision of dormant bank account Note 13.3 — 334
Liabilities written back 43,726 541
45,766 875
46,616 2,155

28.1 These figures are net off sales tax and further tax of Rs. 268 thousand (2023: Nil).
28.2 These figures are net off sales tax and further tax of Rs. 175 thousand (2023: Nil).
29 FINANCE COST

Profit on long term financing Note 29.1 25,388 8,391
Mark-up on short-term borrowings 223,393 139,355
Financial charges on lease liabilities 132 1,913
Bank charges 1,415 1,047
Interest on workers' profit participation fund Note 19.3 1,021 504

251,349 151,210

29.1 This represents profit paid in respect of financing under shariah compliant arrangements.
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30.1

31

31.1

31.2

32

33

2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
LEVIES
Minimum tax Note 30.1 & 31.1 79,387 62,529

This represent minimum tax or turnover under section 113 and 154 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
representing levies in terms of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

TAXATION

Deferred (20,048) (34,961)

The Company's liability in respect of levies and taxation represents the minimum tax on turnover tax
under section 113 and 154 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 net of available tax credits, hence tax
reconciliation of tax expense with accounting profit is not presented for the current year.

The Company records tax expense based on generally accepted interpretation of tax laws and
accordingly sufficient provision in respect of taxation is available in these financial statements.
Difference in Tax year 2023 is due to adjustment / reversal of prior year's excess provision. Following
analysis shows the comparison of last three years between tax provision and tax assessment:

Provision for tax as per Tax assessed as per
financial statements income tax return

Tax Year — .cvvviiieeenreneenenn (Rupees in 000) ........cccceeemrrrrnninnneennnas

2024 62,529 58,707

2023 55,771 55,771

2022 52,587 43,822
(LOSS) / EARNING PER SHARE - Basic and Diluted 2024 2023
(Loss) / Profit for the year (Rupees '000) (139,660) 104,883
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 11,946,000 11,946,000
(Loss) / Earning per share - (Rupees) (11.69) 8.78

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earning per share of the Company.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalent comprise of the following items

Cash and bank balances Note 13 50,457 119,531
Less: Short term borrowings - running finance Note 21 (100,000) (25,000)
(49,543) 94,531

Previously, the Company classified all its short term borrowings as a part of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows. However, during the year, the Company has
classified only running finance as part of cash and cash equivalents to meet the criteria of cash and
cash equivalents as per the requirements of IAS -7 “ Statement of Cash Flows”. Accordingly
adjustment in comparative figures are as follows:

As previously Effect of

reported restatement As Restated
Statement of Cash Flows
Cash flow from financing activities (88,950) (561,768) (650,718)
Cash flow from operating activities 830,166 1,913 832,079
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year (683,954) 634,855 (49,099)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 19,531 75,000 94,531
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial assets and liabilities at the

following reporting periods:

2024
Interest / Mark-up bearing Non Interest / Mark-up bearing
Interest/ Maturity  Maturity Sub Maturity Maturity Sub
markup upto one after one Total upto one after one Total Total
rate year year year year
............................................ (Rupees in ‘000) .........ccrvmrrnminimmnrsines e
Financial Assets
Deposits — — — 355 709 1,064 1,064
Trade Debts — — — 27,924 — 27,924 27,924
Other receivable — — — 29,572 — 29,572 29,572
Loans and advances — — — 5,261 — 5,261 5,261
Cash and bank Linked with
balances Treasury Call 6,240 — 6,240 44,217 — 44,217 50,457
TOTAL 6,240 — 6,240 107,329 709 108,038 114,278
Financial Liabilities
Long term Financing 6 M Kibor
+4.5% 35,591 131,277 166,868 — — — 166,868
Trade & other payables — — — 728,550 — 728,550 728,550
Accrued finance cost — — — 57,036 — 57,036 57,036
Short-term borrowings 3 M Kibor
+1% 860,000 — 860,000 — — — 860,000
Unclaimed dividend — — — 3,731 — 3,731 3,731
TOTAL 895,591 131,277 1,026,868 789,317 — 789,317 1,816,185
2023
Interest / Mark-up bearing Non Interest / Mark-up bearing
Interest/ Maturity = Maturity Sub Maturity Maturity Sub
markup upto one after one Total upto one after one Total Total
rate year year year year
............................................ (Rupees in ‘000) .........ccceeeerenmrrierrsreeer e snes e e s seeeenes
Financial Assets
Deposits — — — 355 709 1,064 1,064
Trade Debts — — — 27,924 — 27,924 27,924
Other Receivable — — — 56,288 — 56,288 56,288
Loans and advances — — — 5,013 — 5,013 5,013
Cash and bank Linked with
balances Treasury Call 6,119 — 6,119 113,412 — 113,412 119,531
TOTAL 6,119 — 6,119 202,992 709 203,701 209,820
Financial Liabilities
Lease Liabilities 18.17% to
27.75% 1,251 — 1,251 — — — 1,251
Trade & other payables 7,113 — 7,113 610,110 — 610,110 617,223
Accrued finance cost — — — 6,394 — 6,394 6,394
Short-term borrowings 3 M Kibor
+1% 100,000 — 100,000 — — — 100,000
Unclaimed dividend — — — 4,696 — 4,696 4,696
TOTAL 108,364 — 108,364 621,200 — 621,200 729,564
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34.2

RELATIONSHIP WITH THE ISLAMIC AND CONVENTIONAL FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

The Company in the normal course of business deals with pure Islamic financial institution as well as
the financial institution who have both the conventional and Islamic window operations. The detail of
the segregation relevant assets/ liabilities and expenditures between Islamic Mode and Conventional
Mode is as under:

September 30, 2024 | September 30, 2023
(Rupees in '000)
Islamic | Conventional Total Islamic Conventional Total
Mode Mode Mode Mode
Lease liabilities — — — — 1,251 1,251
Long term finance 166,868 — 166,868 — — —
Short term borrowings — 860,000 860,000 — 100,000 100,000
Accrued finance cost 530 56,506 57,036 — 6,394 6,394
Bank balances (4,112) (53,816) (57,928) (2,552) (117,221) (119,773)
163,286 862,690 | 1,025,976 (2,552) (9,576) (12,128)
September 30, 2024 | September 30, 2023
(Rupees in '000)
Islamic | Conventional Total Islamic Conventional Total
Mode Mode Mode Mode
Finance cost 25,388 225,961 251,349 8,391 142,819 151,210
35 FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT
35.1 Financial Risk Management Objectives, Policies and Responsibilities
The Company's overall risk management programs focus on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's operations. The Company's risk
management policies are established to identify and analyze the risk faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and control, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company’s
risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.
The Company's senior management provides policies for overall risk management, as well as
policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risks, interest rate risks, credit risks,
financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. It is the Company's policy that no trading in
derivatives for speculative purpose shall be undertaken.
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Market risk
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
35.1.1 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes
in market interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer of the
instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities
and liquidity in the market. The Company is subject to following market risks;
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35.1.1.1

35.1.1.2

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk represents the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk
arises mainly from future economic transaction or receivables or payables that exist due to
transactions in foreign exchange. During the year the Company has exposure to foreign currency
risk due to export sales and managed through mix of advance receipts and partial payments
before shipments and as at year end the Company was not directly exposed to foreign currency
risk.

Interest / Mark-up / Profit rate risk

Interest / mark-up / profit rate risk is the risk that value or future cash flows of the financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest / mark-up / profit rates. The
Company has mainly long term financing, short term borrowings and workers' profit participation
fund which are based at varying rates.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest / mark-up
bearing financial instruments are as follows:

2024 2023 2024 2023
Effective interest / markup rate Carrying amount
(in percent) (Rupees in '000)
Financial liabilities
Variable rate instruments
Long Term Finance 6 M Kibor +
4.5% — 166,868 —
Lease liabilities — 18.17% to
27.75% — 1,251
Short term borrowings 3 M Kibor + 3 M Kibor +
1% 1% 860,000 100,000
Less: Cash at bank
in saving account 11% to 15% 12% to 16% (6,240) (6,119)
1,020,628 95,132

Sensitivity analysis
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate instruments at fair value through statement of
profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments.

A change of 100 basis points in interest / mark-up rates at the reporting date would have
decreased / (increased) profit / loss before tax for the year by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2023.

178



SANGHAR SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

Annual Report 2024

35.1.1

35.1.2

3

a)

.............. 2024 ..........eceen.. wenrrrennenes 2023
(Rupees in '000 ) (Rupees in '000)
Profit and loss 100 bp Profit and loss 100 bp
Financial liabilities (increase) decrease (increase) decrease
Cash flow sensitivity - on
statement of financial position (10,206) 10,206 (951) 951

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit / loss for the
year and assets / liabilities of the Company.

Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows from a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
The Company does not have financial instruments dependent on such market prices.

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter
parties failed to perform as contracted. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade
receivables, management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial
position, past experience and other factors. Sales contracts and credit terms are approved by the
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director. The Company manages credit risk interalia by
setting out credit limits in relation to individual customers and / or by obtaining advance against the
sales and / or through letter of credits and / or by providing adequate allowance for doubtful debts.
Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties or by obtain
advance payments from counter parties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet
contractual obligation to be similarly effected by the changes in economic, political or other
conditions. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure before any
credit enhancements. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)

Deposits 1,064 1,064
Trade debts 27,924 27,924
Loans and advances 5,261 5,013
Other receivable 29,572 56,288
Bank balances 50,058 119,207

113,879 209,496

Deposits

As at the year end, the deposits are placed against the utility facilities like electricity & water
with Government entities and other deposits in normal course of business. The Company
believes that it is not exposed to significant credit risk in this respect.
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Trade Debts

These represents balances due from registered buyer against sale of power and the Company
believe that it is not exposed to significant credit risk in this respect. Since the buyer is a
Government owned entity.

Loans and Advances

These represent balances due from employees that are mostly against their balances of
retirement benefits. Advances given to growers in cash or through fertilizer / seeds are
recovered through the adjustments in cane supplies payments in the ensuing season.
Impairment allowance has been made against the growers loan became past due and non
recoverable. The Company actively pursues for the recovery and based on past experience the
Company does not expect that these will fail to meet their obligations, hence, no impairment
allowance is necessary other than already made in these financial statements.

Other Receivables

These represents balances due against receivable from Nazir of Honourable High Court of
Sindh and receivable from the Competition Commission of Pakistan against force recovery.
The Company is actively pursuing the matters which are pending at the disposal of Provincial
Government and Appellate Tribunal and based on the past experience the Company does not
expect that these will fail to meet their obligations, hence, no impairment allowance is
necessary, in this respect. Subsequent to the year end, receivable from Nazir of Honourable
High Court of Sindh has been received (as per the decision of the Honourable Court) and the
remaining amount has been write off in the statement of profit or loss.

Balances with Bank

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by maintaining bank balances only with counter-
parties that have stable credit rating. Management actively monitors credit ratings of the
counter parties and given their high credit ratings, management does not expect that the
counter party will fail to meet their obligations.

The bank balances along with the short term credit ratings are tabulated below:
2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
Credit Ratings

A-1+ 11,889 118,520
Al+ 43,838 —
A-1 1,885 1,252
A1 314 —
A-3 1 1
57,927 119,773

35.1.2.1 Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

35.1.3

The credit quality of financial assets that are either past due or impaired can be assessed by
reference to historical information and external ratings or to historical information about counter
party default rates as disclosed in respective notes. Management believes that there are no
financial asset that are either past due or impaired, other than disclosed in the Financial
Statements.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk represent the risk where the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations

associated with financial liabilities. The maturity profile of the Company's financial assets and
liabilities as at the reporting date with respect to period lags is given in Note 34.1.
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The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and ensuring the fund
availability through adequate credit facilities. As at September 30, 2024, the Company has
available un-availed short term borrowing facilities of Rs. 615,000 thousand (2023: Rs. 1,075,000
thousand) and also has cash & bank balances of Rs. 50,457 thousand (2023: Rs. 119,531
thousand). Based on the above, the management believes that the Company is not significantly
exposed to the liquidity risk.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares and take other measures commensuration to the circumstances.
The Company finances its expansions projects through equity, borrowings and management of its
working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance
to minimize risk.
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
shareholders equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as total loans and borrowings less cash
and bank balances. The Company's strategy was to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing
ratio as at reporting date is as follows:
2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
Total financing and borrowings including lease liabilities 1,026,868 101,251
Less: Cash and bank balances (50,457) (119,531)
Net debt 976,411 (18,280)
Total Equity 1,908,924 2,057,446
Total capital employed 2,885,335 2,039,166
Gearing Ratio 33.84% -0.90%

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company manages its capital risk by monitoring its liquid
assets and keeping in view future investment requirements and expectation of the shareholders.

FAIR VALUES / MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosure require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial, if any and non-financial assets and liabilities. When measuring the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inp1uts for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the management recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred. There were no transfers between
different levels of fair values mentioned above.

Management assessed that the fair values of cash & cash equivalent, short term deposits, trade
debts, loans & advances, other receivable, trade payables, short term borrowing and other current
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments. For long term asset and long term liabilities, management considers that their carrying
values approximates fair value.

The fair value of land and buildings and plant and machinery is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. Management engages an independent external expert / valuator to carry out periodic
valuation of its non-financial assets (i.e. Land, Building and Plant and Machinery) and selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained by the valuer. The Fair Values were determined with reference to market based
evidence, based on active market prices and relevant enquiries and information as considered
necessary, adjusted for any difference in nature, location or condition of the specific property. Recent
valuation was carried on September 30, 2022 and following factors were considered:

Land and Building  The valuation is considered on the factors of location, need of the buyers, the
overall prevailing market situation and other considerations linked with this.

Plant and Machinery Factors taken into consideration in order to assess the present value of the
machinery include Make, Model, Quality, Operational Capacity, Existing
Condition, Demand and Resale Prospects, Depreciation and Obsolescence
etc.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
The aggregate amount charged during the year for remuneration, including all benefits to the Chief
Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company were as follows:

Chief Executive Directors Executives Total

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
............................................................ (Rupees in ‘000) ..........ccovmrnemmrnemrnmrsnses s s

Non executive Directors'
meeting fee - 5 Directors

(2023: 5 Directors) — — 780 875 — — 780 875

Managerial remuneration

- Basic 8,066 5,628 7,431 5,105 7,570 6,085 23,067 16,818

Perquisite (Bonuses,

House Rent & Others) 8,011 7,684 7,385 7,149 7,108 9,359 22,504 24,192

Reimbursable expenses =~ 5,887 5,152 4,311 4,783 2,117 1,885 12,315 11,820
21,964 18,464 19,127 17,037 16,795 17,329 57,886 52,830

Number of persons 1 1 1 1 3 4 5 6

The Chief Executive and Executives as stated above are provided with the Company maintained cars
and telephone facilities.

Some of the Directors waived their Meeting's fee for Board & their respective Committees, which was
approved in the Board of Directors meeting.
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39
39.1

39.2

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company in the normal course of business carried out transactions with related parties as
detailed below:The Company in the normal course of business carried out transactions with related
parties as detailed below:

Name of Related Party Relationship with Company Nature of Transaction 2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
Mr. Gul Mohammad Rajar  Brother of Chief Executive Cane purchased 1,435 1,469
.......... Do.......... veveeeDoG Advance against cane
purchased (Paid / Adjusted) - 466
Mr. Muhammad Hashim Ex-General Manager Cane purchased — 7,261
.......... Do.......... vereeeenn DO Advanceag_ainstc_ane — 245
purchased (Paid / Adjusted)
Mr. Faisal Rehman Rajar  Brother of Chief Executive Cane purchased 30,416 22,001
.......... Do.......... veeeenDol Advance against cane . 2029
purchased (Paid / Adjusted) ’
Haiji Khuda Bux Rajar Director & Father of Chief Cane purchased 35,337 14,684
Executive
.......... Do.......... veveeeDoc puéﬂ\;esagge(sg%r}s;&ir;?ed) 69 2.401
Mr. Abdul Hakeem Rajar Son of Chairman Cane purchased 9,492 9,514
.......... Do.......... ceeenDO Advance against cane 4,703 7,336

purchased (Paid / Adjusted)

Transactions, as applicable in relation to Directors of the Company and Key Management Personnel
(KMP) have been disclosed in note # 37. Key Management Personnel are those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity directly or
indirectly.

Outstanding balances of related parties as of the statement of financial position date and maximum
month end aggregate balance during the year are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial
statements. The advances to related parties against supply of cane were disbursed for the crushing
season 2023-24 (2023: 2022-23) out of which significant amount had already been adjusted against
cane supplied during the crushing season whereas remaining amount is being adjusted subsequent
to the year-end against the cane supplied for the crushing season 2024-25 (2023: 2023-24).

ENTITY - WIDE INFORMATION

The Company constitutes of a single reportable segment, the principal class of product is Sugar and
by products are Molasses and Baggasse, which does not constitute as a reportable segment, as the
same does not meet the threshold.

Information about geographical areas

The Company does not hold non-current assets in any foreign country. There is revenues from
external customers for attribution to foreign countries in these financial statements. The Company is
also not dependent on any single customer. The analysis of sugar sales, by products and sales of
trading activities are as follows:
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2024 2023
(Rupees in ‘000)
Local Sales - net

Sugar 5,218,496 3,492,432
Molasses 805,500 605,900
Baggasse 87,222 58,862
Export Sales - Afghanistan 196,798 429,724
6,111,218 4,157,194

Information about major customers

The Company does not have transactions with any external customer, which amounts to 10 percent
or more of its revenues.

40 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
2024 2023
Quantity No. of Quantity No. of
M. Tons days M. Tons days
Crushing capacity 8,500 Per day 8,500 Per day
Capacity based on actual
working days 807,500 95 722,500 85
Actual crushing 515,994.296 406,402.792 85
Sucrose recovery (in %) 10.135 10.263
Sugar production from cane 52,293.50 41,711.25
40.1 Main reason for under utilization of production capacity is lesser availability of sugarcane during the
season.
41 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
2024 2023
(In Numbers)
Total number of Permanent & Contract employees
as at the year end 301 319
Average number of Permanent & Contract
employees during the year 310 328
42 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue on December 30, 2024 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.
43 GENERAL
43.1 Figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand of rupees.
43.2 Certain comparative figures have been rearranged and regrouped for more appropriate presentation
and comparison.
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Pattern of Shareholding
As at September 30, 2024

Number of Shareholding Total Percentage
Shareholders From To Shares Held %

822 1 100 32,275 0.27

158 101 500 36,687 0.31

84 501 1000 53,319 0.45

72 1001 5000 164,046 1.37

42 5001 10000 275,856 2.31

2 10001 15000 22,000 0.18

2 15001 20000 36,500 0.31

5 20001 25000 113,410 0.95

5 25001 30000 135,016 1.13

2 40001 45000 84,500 0.71

2 45001 50000 97,900 0.82

1 95001 100000 97,240 0.81

1 190001 195000 190,200 1.59

1 220001 225000 222,600 1.86

1 240001 245000 241,487 2.02

1 250001 255000 252,500 2.1

2 265001 270000 532,372 4.46

1 325001 330000 326,500 2.73

1 360001 365000 360,179 3.02

1 395001 400000 400,000 3.35

1 400001 405000 403,100 3.37

1 485001 490000 486,390 4.07

1 495001 500000 496,000 4.15

1 520001 525000 522,600 4.37

1 545001 550000 547,350 4.58

1 570001 575000 573,372 4.80

1 655001 660000 659,250 5.52

1 670001 675000 674,750 5.65

1 855001 860000 858,000 7.18

1 910001 915000 913,000 7.64

1 1040001 1045000 1,043,116 8.73

1 1090001 1095000 1.094.485 9.16

1,218 11,946,000 100.00

* Note: The slabs representing nil holding have been omitted.
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
As at September 30, 2024
Number of Percentage
Sr# Category of Shareholders Shares Held %
1 Directors, Chief Executive and their spouse 1,608,556 13.4652
and minor children

2 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 1,162,482 9.7311
3 NIT & ICP 1,043,516 8.7353
4 Banks, DFls, NBFls, Mudarabas and Pension Fund 101,550 0.8501
5 Insurance Companies 100 0.0008
6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds — —
7 Share holders holding 10% — —
8 General Public — Local 8,013,823 67.0837
— Foreign 100 0.0008
9 Other Companies 15,873 0.1328
TOTAL 11,946,000 100.0000
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Detail of Pattern of Shareholding
As per Requirement of Code of Corporate Governance
As at September 30, 2024

Cat i Cat
Number of Percentage ~ o 3o W€ ategory

S# Category Name shares held % Number of wise Perc;‘r:tage
shareholders shares held
1 Directors, Chief Executive and their
spouse and minor children 11 1,608,556 13.4652
Haji Khuda Bux Rajar 241,487 2.0215
Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar 659,250 5.5186
Mr. Ghulam Hyder 653,819 5.4731
Mr. Muhammad Qasim 2,000 0.0167
Mr. Mehmood Alam 2,750 0.0230
Ms. Misbah 3,000 0.0251
Mrs. Khanzady W/o Haji Khuda Bux Rajar 2,750 0.0230
Mrs. Shahneela Rajar W/o Mr. Ghulam Hyder 43,500 0.3641
2 Associated Companies, Undertaking
and Related Parties 3 1,162,482 9.7311
Mr. Gul Mohammad 674,750 5.6483
Mr. Faisal Rehman 222,600 1.8634
Mr. Abdul Hakeem 265,132 2.2194
3 NIT&ICP 2 1,043,516 8.7353
CDC - Trustee National
Investment (Unit) Trust 1,043,116 8.7319
Investment Corporation of Pakistan 400 0.0033
4 Banks, Development Financial Institutions,
Non Banking Financial Institutions 4 101,550 0.8501
5 Insurance Companies 1 100 0.0008
6 Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest — — 0.0000
7 Other Companies 5 15,873 0.1329
8 General Public
A. Local 1191 8,013,823 67.0837
B. Foreign 1 100 0.0008
1,218 11,946,000 100.0000
9 Trading in the Shares of Company During the year by the Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief

Financial Officer, Company Secretary and their Spouses and Minor Children - Information under

the Code of Corporate Governance

Number of

Nature shares held
Directors and Spouse:
Mr. Ghulam Hyder Buy 293,640
Mrs. Shahneela Rajar W/o Mr. Ghulam Hyder Buy 43,500
Mr. Mehmood Alam* Buy 2,750
Ms. Misbah* Buy 3,000
Related Parties:
Mr. Faisal Rehman Buy 222,600
Mr. Abdul Hakeem Buy 265,132

*

Purchased before appointment as Director on 02.11.2023.

Percentage
%

2.4581
0.3641
0.0230
0.0251

1.8634
2.2194
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Dividend Payments through Electronic Mode

In accordance with the provisions and under section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, shareholders are entitled to
receive their dividends by way of direct credit to their bank account instead of receiving them through dividend
warrants.

Therefore, to receive your future dividends directly in your bank account, please give us complete details and
inform us in writing duly signed along with a copy of your CNIC /NTN to the Share Registrar or the Company and in
case Shares held in CDC then please inform concerned Participant/ CDC investor Account Services.

SHARE HOLDER'S SECTION

The Company Secretary, The Share Registrar,

Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited, Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Limited
Office No. 204, 2nd Floor, Clifton Centre, Karachi Chambers, Hasrat Mohani Road,
Block 5, Clifton, Karachi. Karachi

Phone: 021 35371441 to 43 (3 lines) Phone: 021 32424826

Fax: 021 35371444 Fax: 021 32424835

| hereby wish to communicate my desire to receive my future dividends directly in my bank account as detailed
below:

Name of shareholder

Folio number

Contact number of shareholder

Name of Bank

Bank Branch & mailing address

Bank Account No. (Full)

Title of Account

CNIC No.

NTN (in case of corporate entity) :

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct to the best of my knowledge and | shall keep the
Company informed in case of any changes in the said particulars in future.

Shareholder's Signature

CNIC / NTN No.
(Copy attached)
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Consent to receive Hard Copies of
Notices and Audited Financial Statements

In supersession / partial modification of notification No. 470(1) dated May 31, 2016 and notification No. 787(1)/2014
dated September 08, 2014, the SECP has issued latest S.R.O. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023 read with
Section 223(6) and 223 (7) of the Companies Act, 2017 which states that the Members of the Company who wish to
receive the hard copy of Audited Financial Statements and Reports of the Company instead of sending the same
through email, are requested to provide a "Standard Request Form", duly filled and signed in all respects, to
communicate the need of hard copy, to the Company Secretary / Share Registrar. Therefore, to receive Hard
Copies of current and future notices and audited financial statements, please give us complete details and inform
us in writing duly signed along with a copy of your CNIC / NTN to the Share Registrar or the Company and in case
shares held in CDC then please inform concerned Participant/ CDC investor Account Services.

SHARE HOLDER'S SECTION
SHARE HOLDER'S SECTION

The Company Secretary, The Share Registrar,

Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited, Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Limited
Office No. 204, 2nd Floor, Clifton Centre, Karachi Chambers, Hasrat Mohani Road,
Block 5, Clifton, Karachi. Karachi

Phone: 021 35371441 to 43 (3 lines) Phone: 021 32424826

Fax: 021 35371444 Fax: 021 32424835

| hereby wish to communicate my desire to receive notices and audited financial statements through mail as
detailed below:

Name of shareholder

Folio number/CDC Account No.

Contact number of shareholder

Contact Address of shareholder

CNIC No.

NTN (in case of corporate entity) :

Itis stated that the above particulars given by me are correct to the best of my knowledge and | would like to opt the
option of receiving the hard copies of notices and audited financial statements of the Company and | shall keep the
Company informed in case of any changes in the said particulars in future.

Shareholder's Signature & date
(Affix stamp for corporate entity)

CNIC / NTN No.
(Copy attached)
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IMPLEMENTATION OF SECTION 72 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
CONVERSION OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO BOOK-ENTRY FORM

Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 (the “Act”) requires every company having share capital to have its shares in book-
entry form only, from the date notified by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the Commission). Further,
every existing company is required to replace its physical shares with book-entry form. A period of four years is specified in
the Act forimplementation of this provision and the deadline was ended on May 30, 2021. Section 72 is reproduced below
for ready reference:

“72. Issuance of shares in book-entry form.—(1) After the commencement of this Act from a date notified by
the Commission, acompany having share capital, shall have shares in book-entry form only.

(2) Every existing company shall be required to replace its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as
may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission, within a period not exceeding four years from
the commencement of this Act:

Provided that the Commission may notify different dates for different classes of companies:

Provided further that the Commission may;, if it deems appropriate, extend the period for another two years
besides the period stated herein.

(3) Nothing contained in this section shall apply to the shares of such companies or class of companies as may be
notified by the Commission.”

Furthermore, Regulation 17 of the Companies (General Provisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018 states as under:-

“17. Issuance of shares in book-entry form. — Subsequent to the notification under section 72 of the Act, all
companies required to replace its physical shares with book-entry form shall apply to a Central Depository in
terms of the relevant Regulations for declaration of company's shares as eligible securities and comply with the
requirements of the Central Depository for issuance of sharesin book entry form.”

In view of the above-mentioned requirements of the Act and as a step further towards digitization, the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) is considering to make it obligatory for all public listed, public unlisted, public
interest and private limited companies to have their shares in book-entry form in compliance with Section 72 of the
Companies Act, 2017. Shares held in book-entry form shall have the same rights and privileges as shares held in physical
certificate form. However, rights and privileges of shares held in physical form may be restricted at a future date due to
non-compliance with the provision of section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017. Once notified, all companies required to
replace their physical shares with book-entry form shall apply to a central depository licensed by the SECP for conversion
of existing physical shares and further issuance of shares in the book entry form. The central depository shall prescribe
procedures for such conversion and issuance of shares including documentation required, process to be followed and
applicable fee and charges.

Further, the conversion of shares into book-entry form will make the process of share handling more efficient, risk free and
would help to minimize shareholding disputes. Handling of shares in case of corporate actions i.e. issue of bonus/right
shares and transfer or selling of shares would be much easier, if shares are converted into book-entry form. Book entry
securities can be pledged to a bank to obtain financing against them. Furthermore, it would help to reduce the risks and
costs associated with storing of physical share certificates, which are susceptible to be lost, stolen and /or damaged and
conversion of shares would help to avoid such problems.

Therefore, it is requested to all the Shareholders (who have shares in physical form) of Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited to
convert their physical shares in to book-entry form on immediate basis otherwise the Shareholders (who have shares in
physical form) and the Company would be unable to comply with the requirement of the Commission as mentioned
above.
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Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited
PROXY FORM

WL e W /ST D Of i
being a member of Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited, holding .............cccccoiiiiiiiiiiinl, Shares of the
Company, hereby appoint Mr. / Mrs. ... ..o, W/S/Dof oo
CNIC NO oo Folio NO ...coiiii CDC Participant's ID. / Sub
Account NO ..o holding ..oeei i Shares of the
Company, or failing him/ her, appoint Mr. /Mrs. .......cocccciiiiiiiiiiin. W/S/Dof i
CNIC NO o FOlio NO ..o, CDC Participant's ID. / Sub
Account NO ... holding ......oooviiiii Shares of the

Company, as my/our Proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday January 27, 2025 at 11:30 a.m. at 3rd Floor, PSX
Auditorium, Pakistan Stock Exchange Building (Administration Block), Stock Exchange Road, Karachi and at
any adjournment thereof.

Folio No. C.D.C. 1. D./ Sub Account No.

Signature Over Revenue Stamp

Signed this ................... dayof.......ooooeene. 2025 in the presence of:

Witness 1 Witness 2

SIgnature @ ..o Signature @ ..o

NAME & oo NAME & e

CNIC NO.: oo CNIC NO.: i

AAreSS & .o AAreSS & oot

NOTES:

1)  Proxy should be member of the Company and should produce his/her CNIC at the time of meeting for
identification.

2)  Signature of the member must agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.

3) CDCAccountholder or Sub Accountant holder should enclose valid copy of his/her CNIC/ Passport with Proxy
Form. Representatives of the Corporate members should bring the necessary documents as usually required
for such purpose.

4) Proxy Form dully filled-in and signed must be deposited with the Company Secretary at Company's
Registered Office: Office No. 204, 2nd Floor, Clifton Centre, Block - 5, Clifton, Karachi not later than 48 hours
before the time fixed for holding this meeting.

5) Ifthe memberis a corporate entity its common seal should be affixed to the proxy.

6) Ifamemberappoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member
with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.
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Oiead Hho )57 580 4S5
Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited

REGISTERED / HEAD OFFICE:

o Office # 204, 2nd Floor, Clifton Centre,
Block 5, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan.

© 021 35371441 to 43 (3 lines)
@ 021 35371444

& info@sangharsugarmills.com
@ www.sangharsugarmills.com

MANUFACTURING FACILITIES

& 13 K.M., Sanghar - Sindhari Road
Deh Kehore District Sanghar, Sindh

©® (0345) 3737001 - 8222911

-
=,
=
@
o
3
P
L--]
o
o
@
8
o
=
)
w





